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In this section, the specific accounting, budgeting, reporting, and cash management practices to be
used by Minnesota counties are described.  The function of this section of the manual, as
distinguished from the prior section of Standard Procedures is:

N Standard Procedures--the accepted accounting, reporting, budgeting, and internal control rules.

N Specific Practices--the process that counties should implement so they can move toward
achieving the standards.

For example, the “cash basis” of accounting is presently used for record keeping by most Minnesota
counties.  Under this basis of accounting, revenues are accounted for only when received in cash, and
expenditures are accounted for only when cash is paid out.  There is general agreement that this
approach will continue to be used by most of the county users of this manual during the accounting
year.

The specific practices recognize this.  However, at the close of each fiscal year, for reporting
purposes, the county’s records are required to be adjusted to show taxes due and other revenues
earned during the year for which no cash has yet been received and to adjust for cash received that
relates to the prior year.  The records must also show all expenditures made during the year from
which the county has received benefits, but for which it has not yet made a cash outlay.  Counties
could institute practices whereby they could use the modified accrual accounting basis as an ongoing
practice for some of its interim reporting.

The specific practices are divided into the following sections:

Accounting

N The Accounting Structure

N Accounting Concepts Regulating the Accounting Process

N Accounting System Records
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N Use of Funds

N Classification of Revenues

N Interfund, Internal, and Intra-Entity Activity

Reporting

N County Financial Statements  

N Preparing Fund Financial Statements

N Preparing Government-Wide Financial Statements

N Annual Financial Reporting Requirements

N Suggested Interim Reporting

N Financial Statement Publication

Budgeting

N Preliminary Budget Preparation

N Annual Operating Budget

N Utilizing the Budget as a Management Tool

N Annual Summary Budget Publication and Reporting
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Cash Management

N Petty Cash Accounts

N Bank Account Reconciliations

N Monitoring Cash Balances

N Electronic Funds Transfers

N Use of Credit Cards

In the future, as they are identified, other specific practices will be included in the manual.
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SUBJECT:

The Accounting Structure

PURPOSE:

To illustrate the means of identifying and recording accounting transactions.

PRINCIPLES:

Each county fund can use the Uniform Chart of Accounts as the medium to record all
transactions.  To aid in record keeping and effective presentation of financial information,
general ledger accounts are classified into two groups:

1. Balance Sheet Accounts--assets, liabilities, and fund equity.

2. Budgetary (Operating) Accounts--revenues and expenditures.

In governmental accounting, budgetary accounts are kept in the same accounting records as
asset, liability, and fund equity accounts.  They are used to record fund operations only for a
single accounting period (one year) and are closed at the end of the period.

KEY DEFINITIONS:

Revenues increase the assets owned by a county, unlike cash receipts, which may or may not
constitute revenue.

For example, a property tax receipt for taxes owed to the county and other taxing districts is
part revenue to the county, but also include amounts collected for the other taxing districts and,
therefore, are not revenues of the county.   Likewise, the proceeds of a sale of an investment
are not revenue since one asset (cash) is increased while another asset (investment) is reduced.

Expenditures are incurred to pay for operations, maintenance, or matured debt of any given
county fund.  Expenditures represent decreases in assets and a decrease in the fund balance.
On a modified accrual basis, an expenditure, rather than decreasing an asset (cash), may
increase a fund liability (accounts payable).



SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4210

Accounting (Continued) Page 2

August 2003

Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

Recording Transactions Affecting the County:

All activities of the county which affect the amount of or relationship between the assets,
liabilities, and fund equity can be reduced to entries in the county’s financial records
(purchases, tax collections, borrowing, investments, etc.).  Each transaction will have a dual
effect on the county records but not change the fundamental accounting equation:

ASSETS = LIABILITIES + FUND EQUITY

Purchases only change the types of assets; they do not just increase one.  Tax collections affect
the balance sheet accounts and budgetary accounts; a new asset is received (a balance sheet
account) and revenue is also received (a budgetary account).  Tax collections thus increase
county assets and fund equity equally.

The fundamental accounting equation for governmental funds can now be expanded to
illustrate how every possible transaction that affects a fund can be recorded:

ASSETS = LIABILITIES + FUND EQUITY + REVENUES - EXPENDITURES

To use this model and track the dual effect of each transaction, the amounts of each type of
asset, liability, and fund equity (increases and decreases) must be systematically recorded.

This is done using the Uniform Chart of Accounts and a standardized, controlled recording
method.  This can be illustrated by using separate “T” accounts and conventional “debits” and
“credits” (debits and credits are often abbreviated as “dr” and “cr”).

“T” Accounts:

A “T” account is the format used to segregate increases and decreases in each account balance
as follows:

Property Taxes (Account Title)

debit credit

(dr) (cr)
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Each transaction is expressed in terms of its debit or credit effect on a given account.  If an
amount is entered on the left side of the “T,” the account is “debited;” if entered on the right,
the account is “credited.”  The effect of each entry (or transaction) is expressed in terms of
debits or credits (not left and right or increases and decreases in the account).  The “account
balance” is the difference between the total debits and total credits.

Balance Sheet Accounts:

If the accounting model is overlaid into the “T” account structure, the assets will appear on the
left (debit) side and the liabilities and fund equity are recorded on the right (credit) side.

Conversely, decreases in assets are recorded on the right or credit side, and decreases in
liabilities and fund equity are recorded on the left or debit side.  Asset accounts typically have
a debit balance; and liability accounts and fund equity typically have a credit balance.  The
accounting equation always remains in balance and debits always equal credits.

Budgetary (Operating) Accounts:

The concept and reasoning behind increasing assets with debits and increasing liabilities and
fund equity with credits is fairly straightforward.  Sometimes confusion exists concerning why
expenditures are increased by debits and revenue accounts are increased by credits.  There is
sound reasoning for this too.

The fund balance is on the right side of the accounting equation and it normally has a credit
balance.  Increases to the fund balance (via credits) or decreases (via debits) are seldom made
directly.  They are usually recorded in other accounts which describe the nature of the
transaction.  The fund balance is determined as follows:

Opening credit balance in the fund balance account

+ Revenue Accounts (credit balances increasing equity)
-  Expenditures          (debit balances decreasing equity)

Ending Fund Balance (equity)
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To summarize, the five basic classifications of accounts are affected by debits and credits as
follows:

             Effect of            
Account Classification    Debits     Credits  

Assets         +         -
Liabilities         -         +
Fund Equity         -         +
Revenue         -         +
Expenditures         +         -

These relationships are critical to an understanding of double-entry accounting as used in this
manual.

Sample Transactions:

The initial step in recording a given transaction is to identify its dual effect.  The following are
samples of how individual transactions would be analyzed for recording in individual accounts
of a county’s general fund.

1. Joe Smith pays a fine of $50.

                    Cash                             Revenues - Fines         
      Debit            Credit            Debit           Credit     

       $50        $50

Explanation:  A receipt of cash in payment of a fine means revenue for the county.
Accordingly, the accounts reflect the increase in the amount of the asset “Cash” and an
equal increase in fine revenues received.  There is a debit and a credit; therefore, the
accounting equation remains in balance.
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2. The county buys supplies for $25.

     Expenditures - Supplies                         Cash                 
      Debit            Credit            Debit           Credit     

       $25        $25

Explanation:  The purchase of supplies is an expenditure which also reduces the assets
of the county by an equal amount.

3. The county invests $5,000.

              Investments                                  Cash                 
      Debit            Credit            Debit           Credit     

    $5,000      $5,000

Explanation:  Investments change one asset (cash) into another kind of asset
(investments).

Basis of Accounting:

The sample transactions represent “cash basis” accounting.  It records expenditures when cash
is actually paid out and recognizes revenues when received.

We have used the cash basis for our examples because of its simplicity and its similarity to the
accounting practices now followed in many counties.  This does not imply, however, that the
cash basis is an entirely satisfactory approach.  A major problem with it is that it ignores the
existence of other resources which are available or being used by the county, which should be
accounted for to more accurately present the true picture of the county’s financial position.

To illustrate the differences, assume the county has just received an invoice in the amount of
$500 for architectural services it has purchased.  The invoice states that payment is due in 30
days.  Using the cash basis, the transaction will not be recorded in the accounting records until
the date the invoice is actually paid, up to 30 days later.  Consequently, any financial reports
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issued by the county prior to the payment would not reflect that $500 of services were
performed, nor would they show the $500 claim against the county for payment.  Thus, cash
basis accounting does present certain problems.  Conversely, the accrual and modified accrual
approaches more accurately reflect the financial position of a county at any point in time.

Under a strict accrual basis, which generally is the basis of accounting in business entities or
enterprise, internal service and fiduciary funds, transactions are recorded in the accounting
records when they arise rather than when cash is paid or received.  Therefore, in the example
above, the purchase of services and the obligation created would have been recorded as soon
as the actual transaction took place.  That is, the expense would have been recognized when
the services were invoiced and received, and a liability (an accounts payable) would have been
established to indicate that there was a $500 obligation due.
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SUBJECT:

Accounting Concepts Regulating the Accounting Process

PURPOSE:

To describe the accounting concepts which allow the accounting structure to operate and
provide for accurate accounting and reporting.

PRINCIPLES:

The major features to be incorporated in any county accounting system are:

N Appropriate authorizations and records

N Sufficient documentation

N Internal control

N Consistency

N Defined accounting periods

N A disciplined accounting process

These features (described in more detail below) should be present in smaller organizations with
manual accounting systems and few reporting requirements and in more sophisticated
computerized counties with extensive detail reporting requirements.

REQUIREMENTS:

Appropriate Authorizations and Records--County accounting systems should provide
authorization by more than one county official.  Transactions can be better verified when
accountability is shared and a series of authorizations are made, depending upon the
significance of the transaction.  Systems should also provide for adequate accumulation and
recording of authorized transactions so that future verification is also possible.  An accounting
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system that accumulates and adequately records the dual effect of each transaction will aid in
this process, as will competent and adequate staffing, filing systems, and permanent record
storage areas.

Sufficient Documentation--Adequate records and documents to support the accounting
treatment for a particular transaction are important.  Documentation, whether paper, electronic,
or other media, must be valid and relevant.  If authorization and record-keeping systems are
adequate, they help to ensure that sufficient documentation is available.

The desired procedures and types of documentation are described in Section 4230, entitled
Accounting System Records.

Internal Control--The accounting process must have adequate systems for efficient physical
control and processing of county assets, maintenance of accurate records, and data files.
Internal control ensures safeguarding of assets and reduces the problems associated with error
detection, fraud, or embezzlement.  In many organizations, nonsupervisory employees involved
with these duties are controlled by the nature of their duties and work flow.  In general, proper
control exists if one employee’s work is “automatically verified” by another employee in the
normal course of work and without duplicating efforts.  For example, an adequate bank
reconciliation procedure can also disclose problems with vouchers payable or payroll routines,
early or late payments, missing signatures, voided checks, or skips in a pre-numbered series.

Sound internal control must include five basic components:

1. Control environment,

2. Risk assessment,

3. Control activities,

4. Information and communication, and

5. Monitoring.

For more discussion of these components, see Section 3130.
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The five components of internal control systems are necessary to reasonably ensure that the
following objectives are achieved:

C Assets are safeguarded against waste, loss, unauthorized use, and misappropriation.

C Transactions are recorded properly so that reliable financial and statistical reports can be
prepared and accountability for assets is maintained.

C The County is in compliance with applicable laws.

The purpose of this manual is not to prescribe a system on internal control for all counties (this
will vary depending upon county policies and organizational differences), but to identify the
internal control concepts and encourage counties to install practical controls.

Consistency--For  comparability,  usefulness,  and  meaningful  evaluation,  county  accounting
information must be recorded and reported on a consistent basis.  For this reason, the
procedures manual and Uniform Chart of Accounts were prepared using governmental
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  By following these
standards, counties will be conforming to the required procedures and achieving the objective
of consistency.

Defined Accounting Periods--Like businesses, counties are intended to operate indefinitely.
Organizational progress cannot be accurately determined until the sum of the activities
performed are terminated and measured at desired intervals.  Therefore, while annual financial
reports are required for accounting purposes, more frequent financial status reporting is
desirable.

A Disciplined Accounting Process--For introduction and clarity, the accounting process is
shown in diagram form on page 6 of this section.  It is desirable to follow these routines--the
solid lines indicate the daily or weekly cycles, and the dotted lines indicate the monthly or
annual cycles (accounting periods).

The activities described below and in the diagram are common to all sound accounting
systems.  They are described here to show typical county transactions and their
interrelationships.
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1. Recognize that a transaction has occurred.

Usually this step is self-evident; however, the responsible finance officer must be alert
to subtle changes in accounts.  For example, accruals of interest on savings accounts and
accrual of uncollected taxes at year-end must be recorded.

2. Prepare adequate source documents.

“Accounting trails” (the processing from original entry through the final recording in a
financial statement) must be provided.  Original source documents are important
objective evidence that each transaction has occurred.  They are of particular importance
in a computerized accounting system.  Typical documents include receipts, checks, and
journal entry supporting documents.

3. Validate the transaction.

Verification that the transaction was appropriately recorded in the source document is a
basic audit function for the county auditor or finance officer.

4. Journalize the transaction and file the source document.

The transaction should be entered in the appropriate journal or “books of original entry”--
the first record posted.  Generally, transactions are recorded chronologically, listed debit
and credit entries simultaneously.  In more sophisticated accounting systems, there may
be several journals to post (or equivalent computerized files posted) before the source
document is properly filed to provide an accounting trail.

5. Post the general and subsidiary ledgers.

The posting process transfers data from journals into the ledgers.  In the ledger,
transactions are classified according to the accounts.  The “cash” account, for example,
summarizes all changes in cash, while a revenue account, such as “property taxes
current,” performs a similar function for tax levy revenue.  Ledgers are the final place
where transactions are recorded.
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Most counties which maintain ledgers will have at least one group of accounts to
summarize all transactions for a particular fund.  Where detail is needed for specific
purposes, subsidiary ledgers can be created to control individual accounts in the general
ledger of a fund.

The maintenance of fund ledgers requires significant staff time even when computer
assistance is provided.  Any system should have sufficient detail to ensure the most
practical level of control.

6. Prepare a general ledger trial balance.

This record and its use are described in detail in Section 4230, Accounting System
Records.

7. Close books monthly and annually.

All accumulated transactions for a period should be recorded to prepare the required
financial statements.

Any adjustments and accruals must also be made after recording the regular entries and
proofing them through the trial balance.  The finance officer does this by reviewing
records and supporting documents to determine what accounts should be adjusted before
reporting on operations.

Since adjustments invariably occur, recording them before preparing a financial
statement is similar to Step 1 above, recognizing that a relevant accounting transaction
has occurred.  Uncollected taxes, unpaid vendor invoices, or reductions in prepaid items
are examples of likely adjustments.  If these adjustments are not recorded, the reporting
will not meet the requirements of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Some counties with adequate staff may be able to prepare monthly reports on a GAAP
basis.  However, most counties will likely only prepare monthly reports on a cash basis
of accounting and prepare these adjusting entries only on an annual basis.
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8. Prepare timely financial reports.

The objective of the accounting process is to produce a single set of related reports to
promptly and accurately summarize the financial position of a county at one point in
time.

These consist of interim reports (monthly, quarterly, and perhaps unique
management-oriented reports for special needs), and annual reports.  All reporting is
intended to provide management and commissioners with documents useful for planning
and evaluation.  Reports are also used to inform the general public, the investment
community, the State of Minnesota, and other interested groups.
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Step 1:
Recognize that a
Transaction has

Occurred

Step 2:
Prepare a Source

Document, Receipt,
Voucher, Memorandum,

etc.*

Step 3:
Validate the
Transaction

Step 6:
Prepare a General

Ledger Trial Balance
(if used)

Step 5:
Post to the General and

Subsidiary Ledgers
(if used)

Step 4:
Journalize the
Transaction

Post Transaction to the
Appropriate Subsidiary

Ledger

Step 7:
Close Books Monthly

and Annually

Step 8:
Prepare Financial Reports

THE ACCOUNTING PROCESS

File

                          = Daily or Weekly Cycle
- - - - - - - - - - -  = Month-End or Year-End Cycle

*Source document may be in electronic format.
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SUBJECT:

Accounting System Records

PURPOSE:

Described in this section are the components of a model county financial accounting system
recommended for normal financial management needs.

OVERVIEW:

Theoretically, only a general ledger is needed to record all financial transactions.  In reality,
special journals and subsidiary ledgers are needed to reflect the growing complexity of county
finances and funds and show increasingly detailed, useful levels of information.

Because every accounting system has limitations, it is important that a county select a system
in terms of its own specific needs and capabilities.  If all elements of a desirable accounting
system are not needed, the system’s flexibility should be able to exclude them.

Accordingly, the “minimum” and “desirable” records  consist of the following:1

• Minimum

General Journal
Revenue Journal
Expenditure Journal

• Desirable

General Ledger
Purchase Order Register (Unpaid Vouchers or Encumbrance Journal)
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C Budgetary Reports

Revenue Report
Expenditure Report
Receivable or Payable Journals
Capital Assets and Depreciation Ledger

COMPONENTS:

Each of these records and their interrelationships are discussed below:

N General Journal--The primary medium used for all original entries; it indicates the
amounts to be debited or credited to the various accounts.  This journal is often used to
summarize transactions from other specialized journals--recording all transactions not
involving cash received or disbursed by the county.  With automated accounting systems,
receipts and disbursements will typically automatically be interfaced into the general
ledger accounts, while a general journal will be used for additional adjusting entries.  The
following accounting entries may be more easily made in the general journal:

• Opening the books and setting up the beginning balance sheet,

• Recording the annual budget of estimated revenues and appropriations,

• Recording adjusting entries or corrections,

• Recording transfers between accounts or between funds, and

• Closing entries recorded at year-end.

N Revenue (Cash Receipts) Journal--Used to record all cash received by the county.  For
each cash receipt, the employee receiving the cash should provide a properly authorized
receipt to the customer.

N Expenditure (Cash Disbursement) Journal--Used to record all cash disbursed by the
county for such purposes as:  acquisition of an asset, liquidation of a liability, refund of
previously collected revenues, debt retirement, and expenditures/expenses in the current
year.
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Without exception, all disbursements must be made by issuing properly approved
warrant checks or electronic fund transfer drawn on specific county funds.  The journal
becomes a check register and the means of accounting for cash disbursements.

*  *  *  *  *

A fund recap sheet can also be prepared which summarizes receipts, disbursements, and
transfers to and from a given fund.  It shows the overall effects of the month’s
transactions on the county’s financial position.  It can also be the medium for recording
deposits in the fund bank accounts and showing changes in the amounts of the funds’
resources--either invested or in demand deposit accounts.

N General Ledger--This is a major component of an accounting system which permits
recording transactions on a double-entry basis, either in detail or at a summary level.
This record is generally supplemented with journals and subledgers; however, the final
record of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditures/expenses and fund equity will be
found in the general ledger. 

The general ledger is maintained by fund.  General ledger accounts are often control
accounts with related subledgers available for details.  For this reason, the general ledger
accounts must also be balanced with the totals of the various subsidiary account balances
at month-end.

A general ledger trial balance should be made for each fund after monthly postings are
complete and before financial statements are prepared.  A trial balance is a list of all the
balances in the ledger accounts at the end of an accounting period.  It is a check on the
mathematical accuracy of the ledger balances.  Since the debit and credit double entry
accounting structure requires balancing debits and credits for each transaction, the sum
of all debit balances must equal the sum of all credit balances.

Just as separate general ledgers should be maintained for each county fund, separate trial
balances should be completed at the end of each accounting period for each general
ledger.  A trial balance does not indicate the accuracy of the postings, only that account
totals are in balance; therefore, periodic testing and verification routines should be
performed.
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N Purchase Order Register (Encumbrance Journal)--An encumbrance journal is used only
by counties employing a purchase order system in their purchasing procedures.  A
purchase order is written evidence of an order placed with vendors or contractors by the
county.  Acceptance of a properly authorized and approved purchase order gives the
vendor authority to ship the required goods and binds the county for payment upon
compliance.  Thus, although no cash disbursement is involved in the issuance of the
purchase order, a legal liability may have been created by the county.  Some counties use
an unpaid vouchers or vouchers payable account or journal.  The account/journal
represents vouchers for claims against the county that have been audited by the county,
but not yet approved for payment.  The account/journal maintains control over these
vouchers until approved for payment.

The purchase order register has two functions.  First, it is a register in which purchase
orders issued by the county are recorded and monitored.  Second, it serves as an
encumbrance journal which allows the county to set aside (encumber) certain resources
to cover the future obligation to the vendor created by the purchase order.  The usefulness
and importance of the first function is fairly evident.  However, the second function can
be of even greater importance in controlling county expenditures and preventing
over-expenditure of county appropriations.

N Revenue Report--A subsidiary ledger in which estimated and actual revenues are
recorded and monitored in detail.  The ledger is used to make the following entries:

• Estimated revenues,

• Actual revenues received during the month by type,

• Actual revenues received year-to-date by type, and

• The remaining unreceived balance for each type of revenue.

A separate ledger sheet should be maintained for each revenue source.

N Appropriation-Expenditure/Expenses Report--A subsidiary ledger in which county
appropriations and actual encumbrances and expenditures are recorded and monitored.
The ledger is used to make the following entries:
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• Appropriations,

• Encumbrances on the appropriations,

• Actual expenditures, and

• The balance of the appropriation available.

A separate ledger sheet should be maintained for each type of expenditure detailed in the
appropriation-expenditure ledger.  Expenditure/expense accounts should be segregated
by department within the fund.

Automated accounting systems have made the preparation of the above reports and journal
relatively easy.  Computerized accounting application systems allow the generation of a variety
of reports in a variety of formats, generally with only the initial data entry required.
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SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4240

Accounting Page 1

SUBJECT:

Use of Funds

PURPOSE:

To suggest alternative approaches that will allow counties to use the minimum number of
funds.

DISCUSSION:

The Standard Procedures section of this manual describes the types of funds that a county must
use.  They identify how governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds differ from each other
in terms of the basis of accounting and measurement focus to be used.

However, in many counties, a new fund is set up each time there is a requirement to segregate
cash or identify specific interests in a special project (such as a new grant program).  This
requires that a complete set of self-balancing accounts be established each time a new fund is
set up.

With the standard Uniform Chart of Accounts dimensions, practical alternatives are available
to counties in lieu of setting up new funds:

1. A dedicated cash account can be set up within an existing fund to account for those
projects.  This allows separate identification of cash assets.

2. A separate responsibility area within a department dimension can be set up within an
existing fund when it is desirable to account separately for the revenues and expenditures
of a specific project.  This can be done by setting up either a different department number
or by using program or service code dimensions within the same department.

3. A third alternative used by some counties is to maintain separate fund accounts during
the year, but combine funds with similar activities for financial reporting purposes.  With
this approach, counties can maintain a minimum number of funds and still segregate
certain special projects for accounting purposes.
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SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4250

Accounting Page 1

SUBJECT:

Classification of Revenues

PURPOSE:

To provide guidance on the classification of revenues for financial reporting.

DISCUSSION:

The new statement of activities, one of the new government-wide financial statements, requires
identification of an entity’s revenues as either program or general revenues.  Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34, as revised by GASB Statement 37,
provides the guidance necessary to classify these two different types of revenues for the
statement of activities.  Paragraph 38 of GASB Statement 34 establishes the format for the
statement of activities:  

The operations of the reporting government should be presented in a format that
reports the net (expense) revenue of its individual functions.  Net (expense)
revenue is sometimes referred to as the “net cost” of a function or program and
represents the total expenses of the function or program less its program revenues--
that is, charges or fees and fines that derive directly from the function or program
and grants and contributions that are restricted to the function or program.  General
revenues, contributions to term and permanent endowments, contributions to
permanent fund principal, special and extraordinary items, and transfers should be
reported separately after the total net expenses of the government’s functions,
ultimately arriving at the “change in net assets” for the period.

Paragraph 47 of GASB Statement 34 provides guidance on revenue classifications:

Programs are financed from essentially four sources:

a. Those who purchase, use, or directly benefit from the goods or services of the
program.  (This group may extend beyond the boundaries of the reporting
government’s taxpayers or citizenry or be a subset of it.)
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b. Parties outside the reporting government’s citizenry.  (This group includes other
governments and nongovernmental entities or individuals.)

c. The reporting government’s taxpayers.  (This is all taxpayers, regardless of whether
they benefit from a particular program.)

d. The governmental institution itself (for example, through investing).

• Type “a” is always a program revenue.

• Type “b” is a program revenue, if restricted to a specific program or
programs.

• Type “c” is always a general revenue, even if restricted to a specific program.

• Type “d” is usually a general revenue.

Guidance on program revenues is provided in paragraphs 48 and 49 of the statement:

48.  Program revenues derive directly from the program itself or from parties
outside the reporting government’s taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; they
reduce the net cost of the function to be financed from the government’s
general revenues.  The statement of activities should separately report three
categories  of program revenues:  (a) charges for services, (b) program-1

specific operating grants and contributions, and (c) program-specific capital
grants and contributions.  For identifying the function to which a program
revenue pertains, the determining factor for charges for services is which
function generates  the revenue.  For grants and contributions, the2

determining factor is the function to which the revenues are restricted.
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49.  Charges for services is the term used for a broad category of program
revenues that arise from charges to customers, applicants, or others who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from the goods, services, or privileges
provided or are otherwise directly affected by the services.  Revenues in this
category include fees charged for a specific service, such as water use or
garbage collection; licenses and permits, such as dog licenses, liquor licenses,
and building permits; operating special assessments, such as for street
cleaning or special street lighting; and any other amounts charged to service
recipients.  Fines and forfeitures are also included in this category because
they result from direct charges to those who are otherwise directly affected
by a program or service, even though they receive no benefit.  Payments from
other governments for goods or service (for example, when County A
reimburses County B for boarding County A’s prisoners) also should be
reported in this category.  

Note:  We recommend that only three columns of program revenues be presented:  (1) Fees,
Charges, Fines, and Other (FCFO); (2) Operating Grants and Contributions (OGC); and
Capital Grants and Contributions (CGC).  As permitted by GASB Statements 34 and 37, we
recommend using the more descriptive heading above rather than the example in GASB
Statement 34 of “Charges for services.”

REVENUE ITEM
REVENUE CLASSIFICATION

Expense
FunctionPROGRAM

GENERAL
DESCRIPTION SOURCE FCFO OGC CGC

A-87 monies Intergovernmental  X Varies1

Ambulance and emergency aid Charges for services X Public
 services fees Safety

Animal licenses Licenses and permits X Gen. Govt.

Amortization of investment cost Investment earnings X

Amortization of investment cost- Investment earnings X X Varies
 restricted investments

Assessor fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.
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FunctionPROGRAM
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Attached machinery aid Intergovernmental X

Auction proceeds - Miscellaneous X
noncapitalized equipment

Auction proceeds - capitalized Other financing source X
 equipment

Auctioneers license Licenses and permits X Gen. Govt.

Bail Fines and forfeits X Gen. Govt.

Birth certificates Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Boarding of prisoners Charges for services X Pub. Safety

Booking fees Charges for services X Pub. Safety

Building permits Licenses and permits X Gen. Govt.

Bulletin sales/publication fees Miscellaneous X Varies

Business licenses Licenses and permits X Gen. Govt.

Canteen funds Miscellaneous X   Varies

Change in fair value of Investment earnings X
 investments

Change in fair value of restricted Investment earnings X X Varies
 investments

Chemical dependency Charges for services X Health
 assessments

Child support reimbursement Miscellaneous X Human
Services

Central notification system filings Charges for services X Varies

Commodity sales (R&B) Miscellaneous X Highways

Compensation for loss of general Other financing source X
 capital assets

Conservation tax credit Intergovernmental X

Conservation fees X Conserv.
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Contributions or gifts - not Gifts and contributions X
 restricted to a particular activity
 or function

Contributions or gifts - restricted Gifts and contributions X X Varies
 to a particular activity or
 function

Copy fees Miscellaneous X Varies

Criminal Justice aid - Intergovernmental X Pub. Safety
 Minn. Stat. § 477.0121

Death certificates Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Deed tax fee (county share) Tax X

Departmental accounts interest Investment earnings  X

Disaster credit Intergovernmental X

Disparity reduction aid Intergovernmental X

Domestic abuse assessments Charges for services X Pub. Safety
or Gen.
Govt.

Drivers license fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Drug test fees Charges for services X Pub. Safety

Drug forfeitures Fines and forfeitures X Pub. Safety
or Gen.
Govt.

E-911 distribution Intergovernmental X Pub. Safety

Education tax credit Intergovernmental X

Electronic home monitoring fees Charges for services X Pub. Safety

Enterprise zone credit Intergovernmental X

Escheats Miscellaneous X

Escrow fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.
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Expense
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Family preservation aid - Intergovernmental X Human
 Minn. Stat. § 477A.0122 Services

Fireworks permits Licenses and permits X Pub. Safety
or Gen.
Govt.

Food and beverage licenses Licenses and permits X Gen. Govt.
or Health

Forfeited taxes Taxes X

Franchise fees (taxes) (usually at Taxes X
 cities for utilities, cable
 companies, etc.)

Grants - not restricted to a Intergovernmental X
 particular activity or function

Grants - restricted to a particular Intergovernmental X X Varies
 activity or function

Gravel tax Taxes X

Guardian ad litem Miscellaneous X Pub. Safety
or Gen.
Govt.

HACA Intergovernmental X

Highway users tax Intergovernmental X X Highways

Hotel/motel tax Taxes  X

Huber fees Charges for services X Pub. Safety

Immunization fees Charges for services X Health

Incremental property taxes (tax Taxes X
 increment)

Inspection fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Insurance dividends Miscellaneous X

Insurance premium Reduction of
 reimbursements  expenditure
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Insurance reimbursements for Charges for services X Health
 health services

Interest income on loans  Investment earnings X X Varies
 receivable restricted for legal
 purpose

Investment earnings - general Investment earnings X

Investment income restricted for Investment earnings X X Varies
 legal purpose

Lease or rent revenues Miscellaneous X

Library fines Fines and forfeits X Cul.-Rec.

Liquor licenses Licenses and permits X Gen. Govt.

Local government aid Intergovernmental X

Marriage licenses Licenses and permits X Gen. Govt.

Mortgage registry tax fee (county Tax X
 share)

Motor vehicle fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Natural resources land - Intergovernmental X X Conserv.
 Minn. Stat. § 477A.11 

NSF check fees Charges for services X Varies

Parking fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Passport fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Payments in lieu of taxes - from Intergovernmental X
 other governments

Payments in lieu of taxes - from Intergovernmental X Varies
 other governments restricted for
 specific purpose

Penalties and interest on Taxes X
 delinquent property taxes

PERA rate increase aid Intergovernmental X
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Plat books Miscellaneous X Gen. Govt.

Post board reimbursement Intergovernmental X Pub. Safety

Powerline credit Intergovernmental X

Probate surcharge Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Property tax Taxes X

Public hunting grounds Intergovernmental X

Recording fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Recoveries Miscellaneous X Human
Services

Recreational charges (golf Charges for services X Cul.-Rec.
 courses, league fees, or fees for
 use of facilities at parks and
 other county or city-owned
 property)

Refuse collection fees Charges for services X Sanitation

Reimbursements Reduction of
 expenditure

Restitution Fines and forfeitures X Gen. Govt.
or Pub.
Safety

Revenues collected for others Non-revenue agency
 activity

Sales of equipment - Miscellaneous X
 non-capitalized

Sales of general capital assets - Other financing sources X
 normal2
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Sales of general capital assets - Special item
 unusual or infrequent3

Sales, miscellaneous Miscellaneous X X Varies

Sales tax Taxes X

Secretarial services Reduction of
 reimbursement - state expenditure

Securities lending Investment earnings X

Septic fees Charges for services X Sanitation
or Health

Services provided to other Charges for services X Varies
 municipalities

Solid waste fees Charges for services X Sanitation

Special assessments - capital Special assessments X Varies
 improvements

Special assessments - drainage Special assessments X Conserv.
 ditch improvements

Special assessments - Special assessments X Varies
 service-type

State police aid Intergovernmental X Pub. Safety

Taconite homestead credit Intergovernmental X

Tax and special assessment Charges for services X Gen. Govt.
 searches

Tobacco citations Fines and forfeits X Gen. Govt.

Tobacco license Licenses and permits X Gen. Govt.

Traffic fines Fines and forfeits X Gen. Govt.
or Pub.
Safety
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UCC fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Waste management special Special assessments X Sanitation
 assessments

Water and sewer fees Charges for services X Water or
Sewer

Water/well fees Charges for services X Gen. Govt.

Zoning permits Licenses and permits X Gen. Govt.
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SUBJECT:

Interfund, Internal, and Intra-Entity Activity

PURPOSE:

To provide guidance on the accounting and reporting requirements for transactions that occur
between different county accounts, departments, funds, or activities.  These transactions are
included under the broad heading of internal activity.

DISCUSSION:

Interfund activity or “internal activity” is the GASB 34 term for flows of resources between
the funds of the primary government, including its blended component units.  It is called
activity rather than “transactions” because the term “transactions” is limited to describing
external events--that is, flow of resources to or from someone or something outside the primary
government.  Discretely presented component units are treated as external to the primary
government, and transactions with the primary government are identified as intra-entity
activity.

Many activities occur between funds and departments of a county.  Because they are activities
within the primary government, there could be special accounting and reporting requirements.
In addition, when preparing the annual financial report, some of these transactions may require
elimination to prevent “doubling up” of the transactions in the financial statements.

PRACTICES:

Interfund activity within and among governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories
should be classified and reported as follows:

Reciprocal interfund activity is the internal counterpart to exchange and exchange-like
transactions and includes:

C Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment.  Interfund
loans should be reported as interfund receivables in lender funds and interfund
payables in borrower funds.  This activity does not affect the operating statements.
If repayment is not expected within a reasonable time, the interfund balances



SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4260

Accounting (Continued) Page 2

August 2003

Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

should be reduced, and the amount that is not expected to be repaid should be
reported as a transfer from the fund that made the loan to the fund that received the
loan.  GASB has not defined the term “reasonable time” and it should, therefore,
be based on professional judgment.  Some factors to consider are the ability to
repay, payment history, and established payment terms or schedule.

C Interfund services provided and used - sales and purchases of goods and services
between funds for a price approximating their external exchange value.  Interfund
services provided and used should be reported as external transactions.  Therefore,
revenues are reported in seller funds and expenditures or expenses in purchaser
funds.  Unpaid amounts should be reported as interfund receivables and payables
in the fund balance sheets or fund statements of net assets.  The effect of interfund
services provided and used between functions (for example, the sale of water or
electricity from a utility to the general government) should not be eliminated in the
government-wide statement of activities.

Nonreciprocal interfund activity is the internal counterpart to nonexchange transactions and
includes:

C Interfund transfers - flows of assets (such as cash or goods) without equivalent
flows of assets in return and without a requirement for repayment.  This category
includes payments in lieu of taxes between funds that are not payments for, and are
not reasonably equivalent in value to, services provided.  For most Minnesota
counties, there are no such payments between funds.  

In governmental funds, transfers should be reported as other financing uses in the
funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the funds receiving
transfers.  In proprietary funds, transfers should be reported after nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

C Interfund reimbursements - repayments from the funds responsible for particular
expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid for them.  Reimbursements
should not be displayed in the financial statements.

These are transactions which constitute reimbursements of a fund for expenditures
or expenses initially made from it which are properly applicable to another fund.
They are recorded as expenditures or expenses of the reimbursing fund and as
reductions of the expenditure or expense originally charged in the fund that is
reimbursed.
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Internal Service Funds.  Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide goods
and services to other funds of the county on a cost-reimbursement basis.  Since the internal
service fund is providing goods or services to other county funds, at the fund level, this
interfund activity is considered interfund services provided and used.  Within the fund financial
statements, internal service funds are reported with proprietary type financial statements.
Internal service funds have special significance in the government-wide financial statements.
Because most internal service fund transactions are with other county funds, its revenues and
expenses are netted (eliminated) at the government-wide level.  Only residual balances (assets,
liabilities, and net assets) are reported at the government-wide level.  In most cases, because
of the nature of internal service funds, these residual balances will be reported in the
governmental activities column.  (If an internal service fund is predominantly providing goods
and services to an enterprise fund, the balances could be included in business-type activities.)

The fact that an internal service fund operates on a cost-reimbursement basis is also important
to government-wide reporting.  If an internal service fund under- or over-recovers its costs
(i.e. shows a profit or loss), the over- or under-charge is required to be added back to the
expenses of the activities utilizing the goods or services of the internal service fund.  Prior to
determining this add back, the county should first consider the effect of internal service fund
transactions with external parties.  Generally, these transactions would be considered revenues
or expenses at the government-wide level and are added to the amounts within governmental
activities.  If the residual balances of an internal service fund are reported as a governmental
activity and the fund has transactions with business-type activities, the add back of the
profit/loss would also require adjusting internal balances on the statement of net assets for the
business-type activities’ share of the add back.

 Interfund Activity Similar to Internal Service Fund Charges.  Sometimes the General
Fund, or other fund of the government, acts as an internal service fund, providing a service to
other funds and charging the cost to those funds.  For example, GASB Statement No. 10
permits governments to use either an internal service fund or the General Fund if a single fund
is used to report risk-financing activities.  This interfund activity is similar to internal service
fund charges.  However, it should be treated differently than internal service fund activity.  If
the fund making the charge reports these amounts as reductions of its own expenses (as
interfund reimbursements), no eliminations are required.  The expense is already reported only
once.  However, if a fund making interfund charges reports these amounts as revenues, both
amounts (revenues and expenses) should be eliminated in the fund/function making the
charges.  Again, materiality is a consideration.  Preparers and auditors should consider whether
the amount that would be eliminated would have a material effect on amounts reported by
function/program in the statement of activities.
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Interfund activity should not be confused with internal services provided and used. The
purchase and resale of office supplies is not a program of the General Fund.  (The General
Fund does not manufacture office supplies and is not in the business of selling them.)  Rather,
as an economy and efficiency measure, the government uses the General Fund to buy office
supplies and spreads the cost to programs based on use or requisitions.  When a county
enterprise fund provides a service for the entire county, including the government itself, the
government's functions are purchasers of the enterprise fund's services (like its other
customers).  This internal activity constitutes interfund services provided and used and should
not be eliminated, as discussed previously.

Allocations of Overhead Expenses.  Although not acting as internal service funds, some
funds charge other funds for what are, in effect, allocations of overhead expenses (such as
allocations of accounting staff salaries).  These allocations should be treated in the same way
as interfund activity.  Again, however, materiality is a consideration.

Eliminations.  Generally, internal activity and balances that are reported as interfund activity
and balances in fund financial statements should be eliminated or reclassified at the
government-wide financial statement level.  However, there is some internal activity that is not
eliminated.  The following table provides guidance on how different types of internal
transactions are accounted for and reported within the different financial statements:

Type of Internal Activity Transaction Type Fund Financial Statement of Net Statement of
Statements Assets Activities

Between governmental Interfund loans Interfund Eliminate within Not applicable
funds included in receivables/ the governmental
governmental activities payables activities column
column

Interfund services Receivables/ Not eliminated Not eliminated
provided and used payables 

Revenues/
expenditures

Interfund transfers Other financing Not applicable Eliminate within
source (use) the governmental
transfers activities column
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Type of Internal Activity Transaction Type Fund Financial Statement of Net Statement of
Statements Assets Activities

Reimbursements Expense in Already accounted Already accounted
reimbursing fund for at fund level for at fund level
Reduction of
expense in fund
that is
reimbursed

Between funds included Interfund loans Interfund Eliminate within Not applicable
in the business-type receivables/ the business-type
activities column payables activities column

Interfund services Receivables/ Not eliminated Not eliminated
provided and used payables

Revenues/
expenditures

Interfund transfers Transfers Not applicable Eliminate within
the business-type
activities column

Reimbursements Expense in Already accounted Already accounted
reimbursing fund for at fund level for at fund level
Reduction of
expense in fund
that is
reimbursed

Between a governmental Interfund loans Interfund Reported as internal Not applicable
fund included in the receivables/ balance; eliminate
governmental activities payables in the total primary
column and an enterprise government column
fund included in the
business-type activities
column

Interfund services Receivables/ Not eliminated Not eliminated
provided and used payables

Revenues/
expenses or
expenditures

Interfund transfers Transfers Not applicable Transfers
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Type of Internal Activity Transaction Type Fund Financial Statement of Net Statement of
Statements Assets Activities

Reimbursements Expense/ Already accounted Already accounted
expenditure in for at fund level for at fund level
reimbursing fund
Reduction of
expense/
expenditure in
fund that is
reimbursed

Between the primary Interfund loans Interfund Report as receivable Not applicable
government receivables/ from/payable to
(governmental and payables external parties
proprietary funds) and
fiduciary funds

Interfund services Receivables/ Report as receivable Report as revenue/
provided and used payables from/payable to expense with

Revenues/ external parties external parties
expenses or Not eliminated
expenditures

Interfund transfers Transfers Not applicable Report as revenue/
expense with
external parties

Reimbursements Deduction/ Already accounted Already accounted
expenditure in for at fund level for at fund level
reimbursing fund
Reduction of
deduction/
expenditure in
fund that is
reimbursed
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Type of Internal Activity Transaction Type Fund Financial Statement of Net Statement of
Statements Assets Activities

Between funds included Interfund loans Interfund Receivables/ Not applicable
in governmental or receivables/ payables between
business-type activities payables internal services
columns and internal and governmental
services funds funds are eliminated

within
governmental
activities column 
Generally,
receivables/
payables between
internal services
and enterprise funds
are added to the
governmental
activities column1

Interfund services Receivables/ Receivables/ Eliminate any profit
provided and used payables payables between or loss of internal

Revenues/ internal services service fund activity
expense or and governmental by a “look back”
expenditures funds are eliminated and adjust internal

within service charges to
governmental break even against
activities column appropriate activity
Generally,
receivables/
payables between
internal services
and enterprise funds
are added to the
governmental
activities column2
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Type of Internal Activity Transaction Type Fund Financial Statement of Net Statement of
Statements Assets Activities

Interfund transfers Transfers Not applicable Transfers between
internal services
and governmental
funds are eliminated
within
governmental
activities column 
Generally, transfers
between internal
services and
enterprise funds are
added to the
governmental
activities column3

Reimbursements Expense/ Already accounted Already accounted
expenditure in for at fund level for at fund level
reimbursing fund 
Reduction of
expense/
expenditure in
fund that is
reimbursed

Between the primary Intra-entity activity Receivables/ Receivables/ Revenues/
government and discretely Receivables/ payables payables shown as expenses from
presented component payables Revenues/ separate line item external parties 
units Revenues/expenses expenditures or (due from/to Significant transfers

or expenditures expenses (may be component unit) of resources may be
separately separately presented
identified)
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SUBJECT:

County Financial Statements

PURPOSE:

To provide an introduction for their use and interpretation.

PRINCIPLES:

Financial accounting is the systematic measuring and recording of the financial effects of an
organization’s activities for the purpose of external reporting.  Accounting is often called the
language of business; it is also the language of government and, like language, it can be
revealing to those who understand it.  The Uniform Chart of Accounts can be compared to the
alphabet and rules of grammar.  With them, communication and understanding can be
provided, not just words and sentences.

Financial reporting is the process of summarizing an organization’s finance-related information
and reporting it to persons external to the organization.  These following sections related to
financial reporting have been written to provide an understanding of what reports should be
prepared at a minimum, what reports are desirable, and to some extent, how to interpret the
results shown in financial statements.

Sound financial reporting is accomplished by organizing the accounting system on a fund
basis, then making timely, concise, accurate, and fairly presented financial statements for
county commissioners, administrators, and the general public.

This procedures manual aids counties in using or developing an accounting system that serves
many objectives.  However, county accounting systems must:

N Conform with the standards of the State Auditor.

N Conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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N Be capable of being operated entirely manually (and with less extensive record keeping
requirements) or in a highly sophisticated computerized environment.  Counties should,
therefore, thoroughly appraise their information requirements before proceeding with
conversion steps or suggested reporting formats.

Once users of financial data understand how to interpret and use the county financial
statements, they will be in a better position to evaluate the government’s financial
condition and detect potential trouble spots.

Financial statements also measure the financial performance of government.
Appropriately prepared financial statements can reveal how the county has used the funds
it acquired to provide goods and services to those within its jurisdiction, according to a
predetermined plan, and within predetermined budgetary constraints.  No single financial
statement can provide all the measures on government performance.  Consequently, a
number of financial reports must be prepared, at least annually, to identify the financial
condition of a county.  The annual and interim reports that a county should prepare in
order to be responsive to its informational needs are described in Sections 4330 and
4340.
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Reporting Page 1

SUBJECT:

Preparing Year-End Fund Financial Statements

PURPOSE:

To discuss the year-end adjusting journal entries counties, that are accounting on a cash basis,
should make to prepare financial statements.  These entries will result in financial statements
that reflect the modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental funds and the accrual
basis of accounting for proprietary and fiduciary funds.

PROCEDURE:

Counties that are accounting on a cash basis during the year need to make the appropriate
year-end entries in their workpapers or on their general ledger system to report on the
appropriate generally accepted accounting principles basis of accounting.  Thus, the published
financial statements will reflect outstanding collectible receivables and expenditures for which
the county has received benefits but has not yet made payment (accounts payable), as well as
other assets and liabilities.

Receivables

The following areas will generally require year-end adjusting entries which will be reflected
in the year-end fund level financial statements.

1. Taxes Receivable

There are generally two areas of taxes receivable:

N The county portion of undistributed property taxes collected and held in the taxes
and penalties agency fund.  Since these amounts are actual assets of the County, an
entry should be made to affect the general or other applicable fund as follows:

dr: Cash or undistributed cash in agency funds
cr: Property tax revenues
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Explanation of Entry:  “To reflect the county’s share of cash in the agency fund
relating to taxes collected but not yet distributed to county funds.”  In effect, these
assets and related revenue must be removed from the agency fund.

Therefore, another entry should be made to affect the taxes and penalties agency
fund as follows:

dr: Due to county funds
cr: Cash

Explanation of Entry:  “To remove the county’s asset/taxes revenues from the taxes
and penalties agency fund.”

N County taxes that are delinquent and estimated to be collectible.  The amount that
meets the availability criteria would be recognized as revenue, while the
unavailable portion would be set up as deferred revenue.

An entry should be made to affect the applicable county fund(s) as follows:

dr: Property taxes receivable - current year
dr: Property taxes receivable - prior years
cr: Allowance for uncollectible property taxes
cr: Property tax revenues
cr: Deferred revenue - unavailable

Explanation of Entry:  “To reflect the collectible portion of uncollected property
taxes as revenue for the available portion and the unavailable balance as deferred
revenue in the year-end fund financial statements.”

Generally, proprietary funds do not have property tax levies but, in some instances,
their operating revenues are supplemented by a levy.  The journal entry required for
proprietary funds is somewhat different:

dr: Property taxes receivable
cr: Allowance for uncollectible property taxes
cr: Property tax revenues
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The accounting for special assessments receivable is basically similar to property
taxes.

2. Accounts Receivable

There may be a number of accounts outstanding in various county funds that are deemed
to be collectible.  An account would be receivable if goods or services had been provided
to a “customer” in the year being reported but had not yet been collected.  These should
be reflected in the year-end financial statement as follows:

dr: Accounts receivable
cr: Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable
cr: Appropriate revenue account

Explanation of Entry:  “To reflect collectible accounts receivable in the  appropriate
fund.”

Similar entries should be made to reflect interest receivable, monies due from other
funds, component units or governmental units, or any other legitimate earned and
collectible receivables.

3. Accounts Payable

At fiscal year-end, there may be certain expenditures where goods or services have been
received but where no cash outlay has yet been made.  These are obligations of the
county which should be reflected in the county’s year-end financial statements as
follows:

dr: Appropriate expenditure/expense accounts
cr: Accounts payable

Explanation of Entry:  “To reflect goods or services received and not yet paid in the
appropriate fund.”

Similar entries should be made to reflect other items, such as due to other funds, due to
other governmental units or component units, etc.
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4. Salaries/Compensated Absences and Other Benefits Payable

At fiscal year-end, the county may owe employees for services provided, as well as for
vested amounts of accumulated vacation and sick leave or other compensated absences.
With compensated absences, a determination should be made of the extent to which
compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources have matured, that is, come due for payment or, in other words, how
much is a fund liability. This current portion would then be recorded within the
applicable fund.  The long-term portion would be recorded at the government-wide level
financial statements for governmental activities.  The entry required follows:

dr: Appropriate expenditure account
cr: Salaries payable
cr: Compensated absences payable

Explanation of Entry:  “To reflect the amount due to employees for services provided and
for vest amounts of vacation and sick payable that will be paid from available spendable
resources.”

For proprietary funds, the entire liability for vested compensated absences would be set
up.

These are the expected basic adjusting entries required to convert from a cash basis to a
modified accrual or accrual basis of accounting.  Additional entries generally are required
based on the nature and type of accounts a county may have and the specific accounting
requirements for those accounts.



August 2003

Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4325

Reporting Page 1

SUBJECT:

Preparing Year-End Government-Wide Financial Statements

PURPOSE:

To discuss the additional year-end adjusting journal entries counties will make to prepare the
government-wide financial statements.  These entries will result in financial statements that
reflect the accrual basis of accounting for both governmental and business-type activities of
the county.  These adjusting entries are also the basis for the reconciliations between fund
financial statements and the government-wide financial statements.

PROCEDURE:

Most of the adjusting entries will impact the County’s governmental activities as the
governmental fund information is converted from the modified accrual basis of accounting to
the full accrual basis. For business-type activities, usually any adjustments to enterprise fund
information relates to consolidating the portion of internal service funds that impacts enterprise
funds into those activities.  

The first step in preparing the government-wide financial statements is to convert the data in
the governmental fund financial statements.  This data is presented using the modified accrual
basis, and adjustments are necessary to transition it to the government-wide statements, which
are on the full accrual basis.

While the conversions could be performed on individual funds, they should be converted at the
total governmental fund summary level.  It will be more efficient to make these entries at this
level.  It is also not necessary to convert day to day accounting records.  None of the
adjustments should be applied to immaterial items.  The list of adjusting entries is not
all-inclusive for the adjusting entries that may be required, but does identify the most likely
adjustments. 

Two reconciliations are required for presentation.  They are included with the fund level
presentations and may either be part of the related financial statement or a separate statement
directly following the applicable fund financial statement.
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 Conversion from the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement
 of Net Assets

The following table describes the assets and liabilities that need to be converted to the full
accrual basis for the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.  Also, the table lists possible
adjustments to reconcile fund balances in governmental funds to the net assets in governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Assets and Liabilities Conversion Reconciliation

Start:  Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds.

Capital assets of general government. Report capital assets, net of Add:  carrying value of
accumulated depreciation/ capital assets.
amortization.

Deferred charges for issuance costs. Report unamortized balances of Add:  unamortized
deferred charges for issuance costs. balances of deferred

charges for issuance costs.

Inventories and prepaid items not Report outstanding inventories and Add:  outstanding
accounted for at fund level. unamortized portions of prepaid inventories and

items. unamortized portions of
prepaid items.

Unmatured long-term debt net of Report unmatured long-term debt Less:  net unmatured
unamortized premiums, discounts, net of unamortized premiums, long-term debt.
and similar items. discounts, and similar items.

Accrued interest. Report liability for accrued interest Less:  accrued interest
payable. payable.

Accrued obligations not normally Report accrued liabilities Less:  accrued liabilities
recorded in governmental funds (e.g., outstanding. not reported in
compensated absences, claims and governmental funds.
judgments, operating leases with
scheduled rent increases, special
termination benefits, government's
net pension obligations as an
employer, landfill closure and
postclosure care costs, etc.).
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Assets of internal service funds that Report assets of internal service Add:  assets of internal
primarily serve governmental funds. funds. service funds that

primarily serve
governmental funds.

Liabilities of internal service funds Report liabilities of internal service Less:  liabilities of internal
that primarily serve governmental funds. service funds that
funds. primarily serve

governmental funds.

Liability of earned but deferred Remove liability. Add:  earned but deferred
revenue. revenue.

Liability of unearned deferred No change required. No effect.
revenue.

End:  Net Assets -
Governmental Activities

Conversion from the Governmental Fund’s Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
 in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

The following table lists adjustments needed to convert the governmental fund’s Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the government-wide Statement of
Activities.  Also, the table lists possible reconciliation items.

Transaction/Event Conversion Reconciliation

Start:  Net Change in
Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds.

Capital outlays. Remove capitalizable expenditures Add:  capitalizable
incurred for the acquisition or expenditures incurred for
construction of capital assets. the acquisition or

construction of capital
assets.
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Debt service principal payments Remove expenditures and other Add:  expenditures and
and refunding payments. financing uses for debt service other financing uses for debt

principle and refunding payments. service principal and
refunding payments.

Other financing sources, uses, and Remove other financing sources, Less:  other financing
expenditures resulting  from debt uses, and expenditures resulting sources for debt and related
issuance. from debt issuance. premiums. 

Less:  excess of carrying
value of refunded debt over
reacquisition cost of
refunded debt.
Add:  other financing uses
for discounts.
Add:  expenditures for
issuance costs.
Add:  excess of
reacquisition cost of
refunded debt over carrying
value of refunded debt.

Donations of capital assets. Record donations of capital assets. Add:  donations of capital
assets.

Sales of capital assets. Replace amount of proceeds by Less:  sale proceeds minus
gain or loss on transaction. gain and sale proceeds plus

loss.

Sales of fund assets (foreclosure Reclassify revenues and No effect.
assets held for resale). expenditures (or reduction of

revenue) related to fund asset sales
as gains or losses.

Revenues and expenditures related Remove revenues and expenditures Less:  revenues related to
to prior periods. related to prior periods. prior periods. 

Add:  expenditures related
to prior periods.

Revenues earned during the period Record revenues earned during the Add:  revenues earned
but not yet available. period but not yet available. during the period but not yet

available.
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Expenses incurred during the Record expenses incurred during Less:  expenses incurred
period but not normally expected to the period related to liabilities that during the period related to
be liquidated with expendable are still outstanding at year-end that liabilities that are still
available financial resources are normally expected to be outstanding and not yet due
(unless they are due for payment in liquidated with expendable at year-end for accrued
the current period). available financial resources unless interest, compensated

they are due for payment in the absences, claims and
current period. judgments, special

termination benefits, landfill
closure and postclosure care
costs, operating leases with
scheduled rent increases, net
pension obligation.

Depreciation. Record depreciation expense. Less:  depreciation expense.

Amortization of issuance costs, Adjust revenues and expenses for Less:  amortization of
premiums, discounts, and similar amortization. issuance costs and discounts
items. (and net refunding

difference if a debit). 
Add:  amortization of
premiums (and net
refunding difference if a
credit).

Consumption of inventories and Record expense for inventories Less:  inventories consumed
amortization of prepaids. consumed during the period and for during the period and

amortization of prepaids. amortization of prepaids.

Activities of internal service funds Record internal service fund Add:  net profit.
properly included within revenues and expenses not subject Less:  net loss
governmental activities. to consolidation.

End:  Change in Net
Assets-Governmental
Activities.
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Reconciliation to the Government-Wide Financial Statements

Differences in the classification, as well as differences in the measurement focus and basis of
accounting, cause the amounts reported in the governmental activities in government-wide
financial statements and governmental funds financial statements to differ significantly.  To
explain this discrepancy, a government is required to provide a summary reconciliation
between those statements.  The reconciliation can be presented on the face of the governmental
fund’s Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in the Fund
Balances or as an accompanying schedule (a page immediately following the statements).

  
A government may present more details about all or some elements of these reconciliations in
the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The summary reconciliation of the difference between the governmental fund’s Balance Sheet
and the government-wide Statement of Net Assets should address separately at least the
following items:

1. Reporting capital assets at historical cost and depreciating them, instead of reporting
capital acquisition as expenditure when incurred;

2. Adding general long-term liabilities not due and payable in the current period;

3. Reducing deferred revenue for those amounts that were not available to pay
current-period expenditures; and

4. Adding internal service fund net asset balances.

The summary reconciliation of the difference between the governmental fund’s Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in the Fund Balances and the government-wide
Statement of Activities should address separately at least the following items:

1. Reporting revenues on full-accrual basis;

2. Reporting annual depreciation expenses instead of expenditures for capital outlays;
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3. Reporting long-term debt proceeds in the Statement of Net Assets as liabilities instead
of other financing sources; also, reporting debt principal payments in the Statement of
Net assets as reduction of liabilities instead of expenditures;

4. Reporting other expenses on the full-accrual basis; and

5 Adding the net revenues (expense) of internal service funds.
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ORDER PRESCRIBING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The organization schedule, transmittal letter, management’s discussion and analysis and other required
supplementary information, basic financial statements, including notes to the basic financial
statements, and other statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are hereby prescribed by
the State Auditor, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 375.17, as the form of financial statements to be used by
all counties in Minnesota.

/s/ Patricia Anderson

Patricia Anderson
State Auditor

Dated at Saint Paul, Minnesota
this 8th day of March 2004

The statement described in the foregoing order is hereby approved this 8th day of March 2004.

/s/ Mike Hatch

Mike Hatch
Attorney General
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OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR

PRESCRIBED FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The attached financial statements are the addendum to the COFARS manual representing the Office
of the State Auditor*s prescribed method of financial statement reporting for all Minnesota counties.
The financial statements presented are in accordance with governmental accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP), as stated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) and applicable pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).

The financial statements presented are intended as an illustration of statements prepared in
conformance with generally accepted accounting principles. This example does not attempt to show
all accounts that may be necessary for proper presentation but is only intended to illustrate the
necessary financial statements and their format that should be presented in the annual report of each
Minnesota county. If for any reason this presentation conflicts with GAAP, then the appropriate
presentation would be determined by GASB pronouncements.  Also, because not all counties have the
funds and fund types included in the sample some of the illustrations would not be required for an
individual county.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR COUNTIES

Counties should report all funds and accounts under their control and supervision.  This includes
fiduciary funds.  The minimum required annual financial presentation1 for a county is as follows: 

Required Supplementary Information
Management Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds-

Balance Sheet
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Proprietary Funds-
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets
Statement of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Funds-
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedules (If not included in Basic Financial Statements)
Disclosures for Modified Approach Infrastructure (If used by County)
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Beyond the minimum required financial presentation are additional supplementary information
presentations that may be required for an annual financial report, a comprehensive annual financial
report, or other reporting requirements (such as the Single Audit Act, COFARS, etc.).  The following
are some potential additional financial statements and schedules with notations of whether they are
required by COFARS:

Required by
Statement or Schedule  COFARS?

Supplemental Information
Nonmajor Governmental Funds -

Combining Balance Sheet Yes
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
 and Changes in Fund Balances Yes
Other Budgetary Comparison Schedules Yes
Other Individual Fund Governmental Statements or Schedules Yes2

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds -
Combining Statement of Net Assets Yes
Combining Statement of Revenues,
 Expenses and Change in Net Assets Yes
Combining Statement of Cash Flows Yes

Internal Services Funds -
Combining Statement of Net Assets Yes
Combining Statement of Revenues,
 Expenses and Change in Net Assets Yes
Combining Statement of Cash Flows Yes

Fiduciary Funds -
Investment Trust Funds -

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets Yes
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets Yes

Private-Purpose Trust Funds
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets Yes
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets Yes

Agency Funds -
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities Yes
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5 The statistical tables should be included in the CAFR unless clearly inapplicable in the circumstances

6 The statistical information is required for those preparing a comprehensive annual financial report and is
not required for COFARS.
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Required by
Statement or Schedule  COFARS?

Other Supporting Schedules -
Schedule of Investments Encouraged
Schedule of Tax Capacities, Tax Rates, Levies,
 and Percentage of Collections Encouraged
Schedule of Individual Ditch Balance Sheet Encouraged
Schedule of Intergovernmental Revenue Yes3

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Yes4

Statistical Information5 No6

General Governmental Expenditures by Function—Last Ten Fiscal Years.
General Revenues by Source—Last Ten Fiscal Years.
Property Tax Levies and Collections—Last Ten Fiscal Years.
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property—Last Ten Fiscal Years.
Property Tax Rates—All Overlapping Governments—Last Ten Fiscal Years.
Special Assessment Collections—Last Ten Fiscal Years.
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt per 
Capita—Last Ten Fiscal Years.
Computation of Legal Debt Margin (if not presented in the GPFS).
Computation of Overlapping Debt (if not presented in the GPFS).
Ratio of Annual Debt Service for General Bonded Debt to Total General 
Expenditures—Last Ten Fiscal Years.
Revenue Bond Coverage—Last Ten Fiscal Years.
Demographic Statistics.
Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits—Last Ten Years.

 Principal Taxpayers.
Miscellaneous Statistics.
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SCOPE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Often there are various commissions, authorities, boards, and agencies that are a part of the
governmental reporting entity, but external to the primary government accounting system, requires that
the annual financial statements include all component units.  However, component units must also issue
basic financial statements.  The narratives and disclosures that accompany these financial statements
should adequately identify the purpose of the financial statements and the differing legal entities and
functions included within the financial statements.  The financial statements should disclose the
relationship of the governmental entity to other governmental units.  These relationships may include
the guarantee of debt, joint ventures with other governmental units, and other responsibilities.
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The following summarizes the basic requirements for management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A).
Unless not applicable to a particular county these 8 items are both and minimum and maximum areas
that would be included in a MD&A.  For most counties number 7 probably is not applicable, because
indications are that most counties will not elect to use the modified approach for accounting and
reporting infrastructure capital assets.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 200_

The purpose of the Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) is to introduce the basic financial
statements and provide an analytical overview of the government’s financial activities.  The
government entity may include as much detail as wanted as long as it pertains to these eight topics.

1. Brief discussion of the basic financial statements, including the relationships of the statements
to each other, and the significant differences in the information they provide.

2. Comparisons of the current year to the prior year condensed financial information based on the
government-wide information with emphasis on the current year.

3. Analysis of the government’s overall financial position and results of operations to assist users
in assessing whether the financial position has improved or deteriorated as a result of the year’s
activities.

4. Analysis of balances and transactions of individual funds.  This should include reasons for
significant changes in fund balances or fund net assets and other restrictions, commitments, or
other limitations that significantly affect the availability of fund resources for future use.

5. Analysis of significant variations between original and final budget amounts and between final
budget amounts and actual budget amounts results for the general fund.  Also include any
currently known reasons for those variations that are expected to have a significant effect on
future services or liquidity.

6. Describe capital asset and long-term debt activity during the year including a discussion of
commitments made for capital expenditures, changes in credit ratings, and debt limitations that
may affect the financing of planned facilities or services.
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7. Discussion by governments that use the modified approach to report some or all of their
infrastructure assets including:
C Significant changes in the assessed condition of eligible infrastructure assets.
C How the current assessed condition compares with the condition level the government has

established.
C Any significant differences from the estimated annual amount to maintain/preserve eligible

infrastructure assets compared with the actual amounts spent during the current period.

8. Conclude with a description of currently know facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected
to have a significant effect on financial position or results of operations.
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Basic Financial Statements

The following pages represent the format for the format for the basic financial statements for counties
in Minnesota.  These financial statements are required both by generally accepted accounting
principles and COFARS.  The government-wide financial statements are required for all counties. All
counties will have governmental fund level financial statements.  Only counties with proprietary funds
(either enterprise or internal service funds) will present proprietary fund financial statements.  All
counties have at least agency funds and most have trust funds, so it is expected that most counties will
have fiduciary fund financial statements.  Lastly, only some counties have discretely presented
component units and only a handful have more than one discretely presented component unit, so it is
likely that only a few counties would need the combining component unit financial statements shown
here. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 1
(Continued)

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Discretely
Primary Government Presented

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $
Investments
Receivables - net
Internal balances
Due from primary government
Inventories
Prepaid items
Restricted assets
  Cash and pooled investments
  Investments
  Accrued interest receivable
Deferred charges
Capital assets
  Non-depreciable capital assets
  Depreciable capital assets - net of accumulated
   depreciation

    Total Assets $ $ $ $

Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ $ $ $
Accrued interest payable
Due to component unit
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits
Payable from restricted assets
  Rent deposits
Long-term liabilities
  Due within one year
  Due within more than one year

    Total Liabilities $ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 1
(Continued)

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Discretely
Primary Government Presented

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ $ $ $
Restricted for
  Highways and streets
  Sanitation
  Human services
  Capital projects
  Debt service
  Equipment replacement
  Postclosure
  Other purposes
Unrestricted

      Total Net Assets $ $ $ $

Assets - Liabilities

Difference, if any
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Program Revenues
Operating

Fees, Charges, Grants and
Expenses Fines, and Other Contributions

Functions/Programs

Primary Government
  Governmental activities
    General government $ $ $
    Public safety
    Highways and streets
    Sanitation
    Human services
    Health
    Culture and recreation
    Conservation of natural resources
    Economic development 
    Interest

    Total governmental activities $ $ $

  Business-type activities
    Nursing home $ $ $
    Nursing services
    Solid waste
    Congregate housing

    Total business-type activities $ $ $

      Total Primary Government $ $ $

Component Units
  Housing and Redevelopment Authority $ $ $
  Area Ice Arena
  Lake Project Improvement District

      Total Component Units $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 2
(Continued)

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Discretely

Capital Primary Government Presented
Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component 

Contributions Activities Activities Total Units

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $

$ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Program Revenues
Operating

Fees, Charges, Grants and
Expenses Fines, and Other Contributions

General Revenues
  Property taxes
  Gravel taxes
  Mortgage registry and deed tax
  Local sales tax
  Payments in lieu of tax
  Grants and contributions not restricted to specific
   programs
  Unrestricted investment earnings
  Miscellaneous
  Loss on sale of capital assets
  Transfers
  Payments to component units

    Total general revenues, transfers, and
     other items

  Change in net assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 2
(Continued)

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Discretely

Capital Primary Government Presented
Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component 

Contributions Activities Activities Total Units

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Road and
General Bridge

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $
Undistributed cash in agency funds
Petty cash and change funds
Departmental cash
Cash with escrow agent
Investments
Taxes receivable
  Current
  Prior
Special assessments receivable
  Current
  Prior
  Noncurrent
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories
Advances to other funds

      Total Assets $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 3
(Continued)

Other Total
Human Governmental Governmental

Services Ditch Improvement Funds Funds

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Road and
General Bridge

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ $
  Salaries payable
  Contracts payable
  Due to other funds
  Due to other governments
  Due to component units
  Deferred revenue - unavailable
  Deferred revenue - unearned
  Advance from other funds

    Total Liabilities $ $

Fund Balances
  Reserved for
    Encumbrances $ $
    Advances to other funds
    Debt service
    Inventories
    Enhanced 911 
    Victim assistance
    Sheriff's contingency
    Gravel pit closure
    Conservation
  Unreserved
    Designated for future expenditures
    Designated for capital improvements
    Designated for landfill closure
    Undesignated
  Unreserved, reported in nonmajor
    Special revenue funds
    Debt service funds
    Capital projects funds
    Permanent funds

    Total Fund Balances $ $

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 3
(Continued)

Other Total
Human Governmental Governmental

Services Ditch Improvement Funds Funds

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 4

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO
THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS--GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit 3) $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
 different because:
  Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities are
   not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
  Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
   and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of management
 of fleet maintenance and self-insurance to individual funds.
  The assets and liabilities that are included in governmental activities in the 
   statement of net assets are:
    Total internal services net assets $
    Net assets representing capital assets included above

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
 current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
  General obligation bonds $
  Special assessment bonds
  Notes payable
  Capital leases
  Loans payable
  Compensated absences
  Accrued interest payable
  Deferred debt issuance charges

      Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Exhibit 1) $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Road and
General Bridge

Revenues
  Taxes $ $
  Special assessments
  Licenses and permits
  Intergovernmental
  Charges for services
  Fines and forfeits
  Interest on investments
  Gifts and contributions
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ $
    Public safety
    Highways and streets
    Sanitation
    Human services
    Health
    Culture and recreation
    Conservation
    Economic development 
  Capital outlay
  Debt service
    Principal retirement
    Interest
    Bond issuance costs

      Total Expenditures $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 5
(Continued)

Other Total
Human Governmental Governmental

Services Ditch Improvement Funds Funds

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Road and
General Bridge

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ $
  Transfers out
  Transfer in from component unit
  Proceeds from capital lease
  Loans issued
  Bonds and notes issued
  Discount on bond issuance
  Proceeds from sale of capital assets
  Compensation for loss of capital assets

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ $

  Net Change in Fund Balances $ $

Fund Balance - January 1
Increase (decrease) in reserved for inventories

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 5
(Continued)

Other Total
Human Governmental Governmental

Services Ditch Improvement Funds Funds

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 6

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES--GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit 5) $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
 are different because:
  Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in
   the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
   estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
    Expenditures for general capital assets, infrastructure, and other
     related capital assets adjustment $
    Current year depreciation

  In the statement of activities, only the gain or loss on the disposal of capital
   assests are reported whereas, in the governmental funds, the proceeds
   from the disposal increase financial resources.  Therefore, the change
   in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the
   capital assets disposed of.

  The fair value of capital asset donations are reported as revenues in the
   statement of activity, but are not reported in governmental funds.

  Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
   financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

  Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
   but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
   The net proceeds for debt issuance are:

  Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
   but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

  Principal repayments
    General obligation bonds $
    Special assessment bonds
    Capital lease

  Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
   use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
   expenditures in governmental funds.
    Change in accrued interest payable $
    Amortization of discounts and deferred issuance charges
    Change in compensated absences

  Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
   activities to individual funds.  The net expense of certain activities of the
   internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.
    Transfer $
    Governmental activities' share of net income before transfers

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Exhibit 2) $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Assets

Current assets
  Cash and pooled investments $ $
  Undistributed cash in agency funds
  Petty cash and change funds
  Investments
  Special assessments
    Prior
  Accounts receivable (net)
  Accrued interest receivable
  Due from other funds
  Due from other governments
  Inventories
  Prepaid items

    Total current assets $ $

Restricted assets
  Cash and pooled investments $ $
  Investments
  Accrued interest receivable

    Total restricted assets $ $

Noncurrent assets
  Advance to other funds $ $
  Capital assets
    Nondepreciable
    Depreciable (net)

    Total noncurrent assets $ $

      Total Assets $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 7
(Continued)

         Enterprise Funds Internal
Congregate Nonmajor Service

Housing Nursing Service Totals Funds

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Liabilities

Current liabilities
  Accounts payable $ $
  Salaries payable
  Compensated absences payable - current
  Due to other funds
  Due to other governments
  Deferred revenue
  General obligation bonds payable - current

    Total current liabilities $ $

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
  Rent deposits $ $

Noncurrent liabilities
  Customer deposits $ $
  Compensated absences payable - long-term
  Claims and judgments payable - long-term
  Estimated liability for landfill closure/postclosure
  General obligation bonds payable - long-term

    Total noncurrent liabilities $ $

    Total Liabilities $ $

Net Assets
  Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ $
  Restricted for
    Debt service
    Capital projects
    Postclosure
    Other purposes
    Equipment replacement
    Unrestricted

      Total Net Assets $ $

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit 1) are different because
 certain internal service fund assets and liabilities are included with business-type activities.



Page 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 7
(Continued)

         Enterprise Funds Internal
Congregate Nonmajor Service

Housing Nursing Service Totals Funds

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Operating Revenues
  Charges for services $ $
  Meals
  Laundry
  Rents
  Miscellaneous

      Total Operating Revenues $ $

Operating Expenses
  Personal services $ $
  Employee benefits and payroll taxes
  Professional services
  Claims paid
  Administration and fiscal services
  Other services and charges
  Supplies
  Distributions to subgrantees
  Depreciation
  Landfill closure and postclosure costs

      Total Operating Expenses $ $

    Operating Income (Loss) $ $

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
  Special assessments $ $
  Intergovernmental 
  Interest income
  Interest on intergovernmental transfers
  Gifts and contributions
  Gain on sale/disposal of capital assets
  Interest expense

    Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 8
(Continued)

         Enterprise Funds Internal
Congregate Nonmajor Service

Housing Nursing Service Totals Funds

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

  Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers $ $

Transfers in
Transfers out

  Change in Net Assets $ $

Net Assets - January 1

Net Assets - December 31 $ $

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit 2) are different because the
 net revenue (expense) of the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund is reported with business-type activities.

      Change in Net Assets of Business-Type Activities
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 8
(Continued)

         Enterprise Funds Internal
Congregate Nonmajor Service

Housing Nursing Service Totals Funds

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $

$
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
  Receipts from customers and users $ $
  Receipts from internal services provided
  Payments to suppliers
  Payments to employees
  Payments to subrecipients

    Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ $

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
  Advance from other funds $ $
  Special assessments
  Intergovernmental
  Rent deposits
  Contributions
  Transfers in
  Transfers out

    Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing
     activities $ $

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
  Capital contributions $ $
  Principal paid on long-term debt
  Interest paid on long-term debt
  Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
  Purchases of capital assets

    Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
     financing activities $ $

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
  Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments $ $
  Purchase of investments
  Investment earnings received
  Interest on intergovernmental transfers

    Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ $

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $

Cash and Cash Equivalents at January 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31 $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 9
 (Continued)

         Enterprise Funds
Congregate Nonmajor Internal

Housing Nursing Service Totals Service Funds

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Exhibit 5
  Cash and pooled investments $ $
  Undistributed cash in agency funds
  Petty cash and change funds
  Restricted cash and pooled investments

      Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
 Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
  Operating income $ $

  Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
   provided by (used in) operating activities
    Depreciation expense $ $
    (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
    (Increase) decrease in due from other governments
    (Increase) decrease in due from other funds
    (Increase) decrease in inventories
    (Increase) decrease in prepaid items
    Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
    Increase (decrease) in salaries payable
    Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
    Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
    Increase (decrease) in due to other governments
    Increase (decrease) in claims payable
    Increase (decrease) in landfill closure costs

    Total adjustments $ $

      Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $ $

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
  Contributions of capital assets from government $ $
  Capital asset trade-ins
  Change in fair value of long-term investments
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 9
 (Continued)

         Enterprise Funds
Congregate Nonmajor Internal

Housing Nursing Service Totals Service Funds

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 10

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Investment Private-Purpose
Trust Trust Agency

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ $ $
Investments
  Short-term investments
Receivables
  Accounts
  Interest
Due from other governments

      Total Assets $ $ $

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ $ $
Due to other governments

      Total Liabilities $ $ $

Net Assets

Net assets, held in trust for pool participants $ $
Net assets, held in trust for other purposes

      Total Net Assets $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 11

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Investment Private-Purpose
Trust Trust Total

Additions

Trust deposits $ $ $
Contributions from participants
Investment earnings
  Interest
  Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments

      Total Additions $ $ $

Deductions

Payments in accordance with trust agreements $ $ $
Distributions to participants
Payments to heirs

      Total Deductions $ $ $

  Change in Net Assets $ $ $

Net Assets - Beginning of the Year

Net Assets - End of the Year $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 12
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Housing and Lake Project
Redevelopment Area Ice Improvement

Authority Arena District Total

Assets

Current assets
  Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $
  Undistributed cash in County agency funds
  Accounts receivable (net)
  Rent receivable
  Due from other governments  
  Due from primary government
  Prepaid items

    Total current assets $ $ $ $

Noncurrent assets
  Capital assets
    Nondepreciable $ $ $ $
    Depreciable (net)

    Total noncurrent assets $ $ $ $

    Total Assets $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 12
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Housing and Lake Project
Redevelopment Area Ice Improvement

Authority Arena District Total

Liabilities

Current liabilities
  Cash overdraft $ $ $ $
  Accounts payable
  Salaries payable
  Due to other governments
  Accrued interest payable
  Deferred revenue
  Customer deposits
  Revenue notes payable - current

    Total current liabilities $ $ $ $

Noncurrent liabilities
  Advance from other governments $ $ $ $
  Compensated absences payable
  Revenue notes payable - long-term

    Total noncurrent liabilities $ $ $ $

    Total Liabilities $ $ $ $

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ $ $ $
Unrestricted

      Total Net Assets $ $ $ $
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Program Revenues
Operating

Fees, Charges, Grants and
Expenses Fines and Other Contributions

Component Units
  Housing and Redevelopment Authority $ $ $
  Area Ice Arena
  Lake Project Improvement District

      Total Component Units $ $ $

General Revenues and Other Items
  Local sales tax
  Investment income
  Miscellaneous
  Payments from primary government

    Total general revenues and other items

  Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending
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EXHIBIT 13
(Continued) 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Capital Housing and Area Lake Project

Grants and Redevelopment Ice Improvement
Contributions Authority Arena District Total

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $

$ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 200_

This outline is provided as guidance for the sequence of the notes to the basic financial statements.
This should not be considered as supplanting the judgment of the issuer in determining the most
meaningful presentation.  An individual county will have different note disclosure requirements
based on the county’s financial activities and accounts.

Suggested Disclosure Sequence

The outline that follows is provided as guidance for the sequence of the notes to the basic financial
statements.  This should not be considered as supplanting the judgment of the issuer in determining the
most meaningful presentation.

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (including departures from GAAP, if any).

A. description of the government-wide financial statements and exclusion of fiduciary
activities and similar component units.

B. A brief description of the component units of the financial reporting entity and their
relationships to the primary government.  This should include a discussion of the criteria
for including component units in the financial reporting entity and how the component units
are reported.  Also include information about how the separate financial statements for the
individual component units may be obtained.  In component unit separate reports,
identification of the primary government in whose financial report the component unit is
included and a description of its relationship to the primary government.

C. Basis of presentationCGovernment-wide financial statements.
1. Governmental and business-type activities, major component units.
2. Policy for applying FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989

to business-type activities.
3. Policy for eliminating internal activity.
4. Effect of component units with differing fiscal year-ends.
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D. Basis of presentation C fund financial statements.
1. Major and nonmajor governmental and enterprise funds, internal service funds, and

fiduciary funds by fund type.
2. Descriptions of activities accounted for in the major funds, internal service fund

type, and fiduciary fund types.
3. Policy for applying FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989 to

enterprise funds.
4. Interfund eliminations in fund financial statements not apparent from headings.

E. Basis of accounting.
1. Accrual C government-wide financial statements.
2. Modified accrual C governmental fund financial statements, including the length of

time used to define available for purposes of revenue recognition. 
3. Accrual C proprietary and fiduciary fund statements.

F. Assets, liabilities, and net assets and fund balances described in the order of appearance
in the statements of net assets/balance sheet.
1. Definition of cash and cash equivalents used in the proprietary fund statement of cash

flows.
2. Disclosure of valuation bases.
3. Capitalization policy, estimated useful lives of capital assets.
4. Description of the modified approach for reporting infrastructure assets (if used).
5. Significant or unusual accounting treatment for material account balances or

transactions.
6. Policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an

expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.

G. Revenues, expenditures/expense.
1. Types of transactions included in program revenues in the government-wide

statement of net assets.
2. Policy for allocating indirect expense to functions in the government-wide statement

of activities.
3. Unusual or significant accounting policy for material revenue, expenditures, and

expenses.
4. Property tax revenue recognition. 
5. Vacation, sick leave, and other compensated absences.
6. Policy for defining operating revenues and operating expenses in proprietary fund

statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets.
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II. Stewardship, compliance, and accountability.

A. Significant violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions and actions taken
to address such violations.

B. Deficit fund balance or fund net assets of individual funds.

III. Detail notes on all activities and funds.

A. Assets.
1. Cash deposits and pooling of cash and investments.
2. Investments.
3. Reverse repurchase agreements.
4. Securities lending transactions.
5. Receivable balances.
6. Property taxes.
7. Due from other governmentsCgrants receivable.
8. Required disclosures about capital assets.

B. Liabilities.
1. Payable balances.
2. Pension plan obligations and postemployment benefits other than pension benefits.
3. Other employee benefits.
4. Construction and other significant commitments.
5. Claims and judgments.
6. Lease obligations (capital and operating).
7. Short-term debt and liquidity.
8. Long-term debt.

a. Description of individual bond issues and leases outstanding.
b. Required disclosures about long-term liabilities.
c. Summary of debt service requirements to maturity.
d. Terms of interest rate changes for variable-rate debt.
e. Disclosure of legal debt margin.
f. Bonds authorized but unissued.
g. Synopsis of revenue bond covenants.
h. Special assessment debt and related activities.
i. Debt refundings and extinguishments.
j. Demand bonds.
k. Bond, tax, and revenue anticipation notes.

9. Landfill closure and postclosure care.
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C. Interfund receivables and payables and interfund eliminations.

D. Revenues and expenditures/expenses.
1. On-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries.
2. Significant transactions that are either unusual or infrequent, but not within the

control of management.

E. Donor-restricted endowment disclosures
.

F. Interfund transfers.

G. Encumbrances outstanding.

IV. Segment informationCenterprise funds.

V. Individual major component unit disclosures (if not reported on the face of the government-wide
statements or in combining statements).

VI. The nature of the primary government's accountability for related organizations.

VII. Joint ventures and jointly governed organizations.

VIII. Related party transactions.

IX. Summary disclosure of significant contingencies.

A. Litigation.

B. Federally assisted programsCcompliance audits.

X. Significant effects of subsequent events.
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Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

This typically will include the budgetary comparison schedules for the general fund and any major
special revenue funds.  Formats for the general fund and the Road and Bridge and  Human Services
Special Revenue Funds are included.  If a county is using the modified approach for infrastructure
capital assets additional RSI information would be necessary.  However, examples are not included
in this document.
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 1
(Continued)

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ $ $ $
  Licenses and permits
  Intergovernmental
  Charges for services
  Fines and forfeits
  Gifts and contributions
  Investment earnings
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures
  Current
    General government
      Commissioners $ $ $ $
      Courts
      County administration
      Personnel
      County auditor
      License bureau
      County treasurer
      County assessor
      Elections
      Purchasing
      Remonumentation
      Data processing
      Attorney
      Law library
      Recorder
      Surveyor
      Planning and zoning
      Buildings and plant
      Maintenance
      Veterans service officer

    Total general government $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 1
(Continued)

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Expenditures
  Current (Continued)
    Public safety
      Sheriff $ $ $ $
      Boat and water safety
      Emergency services
      Coroner
      Law enforcement center
      Probation and parole

    Total public safety $ $ $ $

    Health  
      Nursing service $ $ $ $

    Culture and recreation
      Historical society $ $ $ $
      Parks
      Senior citizens
      Regional library
      Arena
      Other

    Total culture and recreation $ $ $ $

    Conservation of natural resources
      Cooperative extension $ $ $ $
      Soil and water conservation
      Agricultural inspections
      Agricultural society/county fair

    Total conservation of natural resources $ $ $ $



Page 53

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 1
(Continued)

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Expenditures
  Current (Continued)
    Economic development
      Community development $ $ $ $

  Debt service
    Principal $ $ $ $

    Interest $ $ $ $

      Total Expenditures $ $ $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ $ $ $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ $ $ $
  Transfers out
  Proceeds from sale of assets

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ $ $ $

  Net Change in Fund Balance $ $ $ $

Fund Balance - January 1 

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 2

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ $ $ $
  Intergovernmental
  Charges for services
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures
  Current
    Highway and streets
      Administration $ $ $ $
      Maintenance
      Construction
      Equipment maintenance and shop

    Total highways and streets $ $ $ $

  Debt service
    Principal 

    Interest 

      Total Expenditures $ $ $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ $ $ $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Proceeds from sale of assets $ $ $ $
  Compensation for the loss of capital assets
  Proceeds from capital lease

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ $ $ $

  Net Change in Fund Balance $ $ $ $

Fund Balance - January 1 
Increase (decrease) in reserved for 
 inventories

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $ $ $

Governments have the option of using the purchase or consumption 
methods for inventory.  This example shows the purchase method, 
which requires adjustment to the consumption method at the 
government-wide level.
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 3

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HUMAN SERVICES FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ $ $ $
  Intergovernmental
  Charges for services
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures
  Current
    Human services
      Income maintenance $ $ $ $
      Social services

      Total Expenditures $ $ $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ $ $ $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ $ $ $
  Transfers out

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ $ $ $

  Net Change in Fund Balance $ $ $ $

Fund Balance - January 1 

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $ $ $
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March 2004

Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

1. Budget basis of accounting.

2. Excess of the expenditures over appropriations.

This information would be included in the notes to the financial statements if the budgetary
comparison schedules are included as part of the basic financial statements.



Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

This Page Intended To Be Blank



SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4330

Reporting (Continued) Page 57

7 Only required when component units do not issue separate stand alone financial statements.

March 2004

Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

Supplemental Information

The following statements and schedules should present when applicable to an individual county.  They
typically will be divided into the following categories:

Nonmajor governmental fund combining statements
Nonmajor governmental fund budgetary comparison schedules
Nonmajor enterprise fund combining statements (not presented)
Internal services combining statements
Trust fund combining statements
Agency fund statement
Component unit financial statements7

Other schedules
Schedule of intergovernmental revenue
Schedule of expenditures of federal awards

As noted previously the nature and type of financial statements depends on the activities, accounts and
fund types of individual counties.
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 1

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Total Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental
Revenue Service Projects Permanent Funds

(Statement 3) (Statement 5) (Statement 7) (Statement 9) (Exhibit 3)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $ $
Petty cash and change funds
Undistributed cash in agency funds
Cash with escrow agent
Investments
Taxes receivable
  Current
  Prior
Special assessments receivable
  Current
  Prior
  Noncurrent
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Advance to other funds

      Total Assets $ $ $ $ $

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ $ $ $ $
  Salaries payable
  Contracts payable
  Due to other funds
  Due to other governments
  Deferred revenue - unavailable
  Deferred revenue - unearned
  Advance from other funds

    Total Liabilities $ $ $ $ $

Fund Balances
  Reserved for encumbrances $ $ $ $ $
  Reserved for victim assistance
  Reserved for conservation
  Reserved for gravel pit closure
  Reserved for endowments
  Unreserved
    Designated for debt service
    Designated for future expenditures
    Designated for capital improvements
    Designated for landfill closure
    Undesignated

    Total Fund Balances $ $ $ $ $

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 2

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Total Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental
Revenue Service Projects Permanent Funds

(Statement 4) (Statement 6) (Statement 8) (Statement 10) (Exhibit 5)

Revenues
  Taxes $ $ $ $ $
  Special assessments
  Licenses and permits
  Intergovernmental
  Charges for services
  Fines and forfeits
  Gifts and contributions
  Investment earnings
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $ $ $ $

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ $ $ $ $
    Public safety
    Sanitation
    Health
    Culture and recreation
    Conservation
    Economic development
  Capital outlay
  Debt service
    Principal 
    Interest 

      Total Expenditures $ $ $ $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ $ $ $ $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ $ $ $ $
  Transfers out
  Loans issued
  Transfers to component unit

      Total Other Financing
       Sources (Uses) $ $ $ $ $

  Net Change in Fund Balances $ $ $ $ $

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 200_

Environmental Victim Revolving
Health Assistance Loan

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $
Petty cash and change funds
Undistributed cash in agency funds
Taxes receivable
  Current
  Prior
Special assessments receivable
  Current
  Prior
  Noncurrent
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments

      Total Assets $ $ $

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ $ $
  Salaries payable
  Due to other funds
  Due to other governments
  Deferred revenue - unavailable
  Deferred revenue - unearned

    Total Liabilities $ $ $

Fund Balances
  Reserved for encumbrances $ $ $
  Reserved for victim assistance
  Reserved for gravel pit closure
  Unreserved
    Designated for future expenditures
    Designated for landfill closure
    Undesignated

      Total Fund Balances $ $ $

        Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ $ $
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Statement 3
(Continued)

Regional
Railroad Gravel Forfeited Total
Authority Tax Tax Development (Statement 1)

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Environmental Victim
Health Assistance

Revenues
  Taxes $ $
  Special assessments
  Licenses and permits
  Intergovernmental
  Charges for services
  Fines and forfeits
  Investment earnings
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ $
    Public safety
    Sanitation
    Health
    Culture and recreation
    Conservation
    Economic development

      Total Expenditures $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ $
  Transfers out
  Loan issued
  Transfers to component unit

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ $

  Net Change in Fund Balances $ $

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $
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Statement 4
(Continued)

Regional
Revolving Railroad Gravel Total

Loan Authority Tax Development (Statement 2)

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 5

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 200_

County Courthouse General Sanitary Total
Jail Building Obligation Sewer (Statement 1)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $ $
Undistributed cash in agency funds
Cash with escrow agent
Taxes receivable
  Current
  Prior
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Advance to other funds

      Total Assets $ $ $ $ $

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Deferred revenue - unavailable $ $ $ $ $

Fund Balances
  Designated for debt service

      Total Liabilities and Fund
       Balances $ $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 6

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

County Courthouse General Sanitary Total
Jail Building Obligation Sewer (Statement 2)

Revenues
  Taxes $ $ $ $ $
  Intergovernmental
  Investment earnings
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $ $ $ $

Expenditures
  Debt service
    Principal $ $ $ $ $
    Interest 

      Total Expenditures $ $ $ $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ $ $ $ $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in

  Net Change in Fund Balances $ $ $ $ $

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 7

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 200_

Permanent Jail Sanitary Total
Improvement Construction Sewer (Statement 1)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $
Investments
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other governments

      Total Assets $ $ $ $

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ $ $ $
  Contracts payable
  Due to other funds
  Due to other governments
  Advance from other funds

    Total Liabilities $ $ $ $

Fund Balances
  Unreserved
    Designated for capital improvements

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 8

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Permanent Jail Sanitary Total
Improvement Construction Sewer (Statement 2)

Revenues
  Intergovernmental $ $ $ $
  Investment earnings
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures
  Capital outlay
    General government $ $ $ $
    Public safety
    Sanitation

      Total Expenditures $ $ $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ $ $ $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers out

  Net Change in Fund Balances $ $ $ $

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $ $ $



Page 68

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 9

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

PERMANENT FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 200_

Conservation Total
Reserve Cemetery (Statement 1)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $
Investments
Accrued interest receivable

      Total Assets $ $ $

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ $ $

Fund Balances
  Reserved for endowments $ $ $
  Reserved for conservation
  Unreserved
    Undesignated

    Total Fund Balances $ $ $

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement  10

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
 AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
PERMANENT FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Conservation Total
Reserve Cemetery (Statement 2)

Revenues
  Gifts and contributions $ $ $
  Investment earnings

      Total Revenues $ $ $

Expenditures
  Current
    Culture and recreation $ $ $
    Conservation

      Total Expenditures $ $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ $ $

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule #

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL  FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ $ $ $
  Special assessments
  Licenses and permits
  Intergovernmental
  Charges for services
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures
  Current
    Sanitation
      Solid waste $ $ $ $
    Health  
      County health officer
    Conservation
      Water planning

      Total Expenditures $ $ $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ $ $ $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ $ $ $
  Transfers out
  Proceeds from loan

      Total Other Financing 
       Sources (Uses) $ $ $ $

  Net Change in Fund Balance $ $ $ $

Fund Balance - January 1 

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 11

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Self-Insurance Central Garage Total

Assets

Current assets
  Cash and pooled investments $ $ $
  Investments
  Accrued interest receivable
  Due from other funds
  Due from other governments
  Inventories
  Prepaid items

    Total current assets $ $ $

Noncurrent assets
  Capital assets
    Depreciable (net)

      Total Assets $ $ $

Liabilities

Current liabilities
  Accounts payable $ $ $
  Compensated absences payable
  Due to other funds

    Total current liabilities $ $ $

Noncurrent liabilities
  Advance from other funds $ $ $
  Compensated absences payable - long-term
  Claims and judgments payable - long-term

    Total noncurrent liabilities $ $ $

    Total Liabilities $ $ $

Net Assets

  Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ $ $
  Unrestricted

      Total Net Assets $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 12

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Self-Insurance Central Garage Total

Operating Revenues
  Charges for services $ $ $

Operating Expenses
  Claims paid $ $ $
  Administrative and fiscal services
  Other services and charges
  Depreciation

      Total Operating Expenses $ $ $

      Operating Income (Loss) $ $ $

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
  Interest income

      Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers
       and Contributions $ $ $

Transfers in

  Change in Net Assets $ $ $

Net Assets - January 1

Net Assets - December 31 $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 13

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Self-Insurance Central Garage Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
  Receipts from customers and users $ $ $
  Receipts from internal services provided
  Payments to suppliers
  Payments to employees

    Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ $ $

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
  Advance from other funds $ $ $

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
  Capital contributions $ $ $
  Purchases of capital assets

    Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
     financing activities $ $ $

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
  Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments $ $ $
  Purchases of investments
  Investment earnings received

    Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ $ $

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ $

Cash and Cash Equivalents at January 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31 $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 13
 (Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Self-Insurance Central Garage Total

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by 
 (used in) operating activities
  Operating income $ $ $

  Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
   (used in) operating activities
    Depreciation expense $ $ $
    (Increase) decrease in due from other governments
    (Increase) decrease in due from other funds
    (Increase) decrease in inventories
    (Increase) decrease in prepaid items
    Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
    Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
    Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
    Increase (decrease) in claims payable

    Total adjustments $ $ $

      Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ $ $

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
  Contributions of general capital assets from County $ $ $
  Capital asset trade-ins
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 14

INVESTMENT TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Family
Services

Cemetery Collaborative Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ $ $
Receivables
  Interest

      Total Assets $ $ $

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ $ $

Net Assets

Net assets, held in trust for pool participants $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 15

INVESTMENT TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Family
Services

Cemetery Collaborative Total

Additions
  Contributions from participants $ $ $

  Investment earnings
    Interest $ $ $
    Net (decrease) in fair value of investments

    Total investment earnings $ $ $

      Total Additions $ $ $

Deductions
  Distributions to participants

  Change in Net Assets $ $ $

Net Assets - January 1

Net Assets - December 31 $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 16

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 200_

Missing Cemetery
Heirs Perpetual Care Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ $ $
Investments
  Short-term investments
Receivables
  Interest

      Total Assets $ $ $

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ $ $

Net Assets

Net assets, held in trust $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 17

PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Missing Cemetery
Heirs Perpetual Care Total

Additions
  Trust deposits $ $ $
  Investment earnings
    Interest
    Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments

      Total Additions $ $ $

Deductions
  Payments in accordance with trust agreements $ $ $
  Payments to heirs

      Total Deductions $ $ $

  Change in Net Assets $ $ $

Net Assets - January 1

Net Assets - December 31 $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 18
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

SNOWMOBILE TRAILS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ $ $ $

 

STATE REVENUE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $
Accounts receivable

      Total Assets $ $ $ $

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ $ $ $

OTHER AGENCY

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 18
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

COLLABORATIVE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $
Due from other governments

      Total Assets $ $ $ $

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ $ $ $

COLLECTIONS FOR OTHER
 AGENCIES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ $ $ $

TAXES AND PENALTIES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 18
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

TOTAL ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $ $
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments

      Total Assets $ $ $ $
 
 

Liabilities  
 

Accounts payable $ $ $ $
Due to other governments

 
      Total Liabilities $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 19

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEEET

COMPONENT UNIT
AREA ICE ARENA

DECEMBER 31, 200_

General Adjustments Statement
Fund (Note 5.C.) of Net Assets

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ $ $
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Due from primary government
Capital assets
  Depreciable (net)

      Total Assets $ $ $

Liabilities

Current liabilities
  Accounts payable $ $ $
  Salaries payable
  Accrued interest payable
  Advance from other governments
Long-term liabilities
  Due within one year
  Due after one year

    Total Liabilities $ $ $

Fund Balance

Fund Balance
  Unreserved
    Undesignated $ $

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $

Net Assets
  Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ $
  Unrestricted

      Total Net Assets $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 20

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

COMPONENT UNIT
AREA ICE ARENA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

General Adjustments Statement
Fund (Note 5.C.) of Activities

Revenues
  Intergovernmental $ $ $
  Charges for services
  Miscellaneous

      Total Revenues $ $ $

Expenditures
  Current
    Culture and recreation $ $ $
  Capital outlay
  Debt service
    Principal 
    Interest 

      Total Expenditures $ $ $

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ $ $

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31 $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule #
(Continued)

SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Total Total Total Total
Governmental Enterprise Primary Component

Funds Funds Government Units

Shared Revenue
  State
    Highway users tax $ $ $ $
    Market value credit
    Mobile home MVC
    PERA rate reimbursement
    Disparity reduction aid
    Family Preservation Aid
    Police aid
    Criminal justice aid

    Total Shared Revenue $ $ $ $

Reimbursement for Services
  State
    Minnesota Department of Human 
     Services $ $ $ $

Payments
  Local
    City contribution $ $ $ $
    Local health
    Local contributions
    Payments in lieu of taxes

    Total Payments $ $ $ $

Grants
  State
    Minnesota Department/Board of
      Administration $ $ $ $
      Crime Victim Services
      Revenue
      Education
      Corrections
      Public Safety
      Transportation
      Trade and Economic Security
      Health
      Natural Resources
      Human Services
      Soil and Water Resources
      Veterans Services
    Office of Environmental Assistance
    Pollution Control Agency
    Miscellaneous boards

    Total State $ $ $ $



Page 85

MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule #
(Continued)

SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Total Total Total Total
Governmental Enterprise Primary Component

Funds Funds Government Units

Grants (Continued)
  Federal 
    Department of
      Agriculture $ $ $ $
      HUD
      Justice
      Transportation 
      Emergency Management
      Health and Human Services

    Total Federal $ $ $ $

    Total State and Federal Grants $ $ $ $

      Total Intergovernmental Revenue $ $ $ $
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
MINNESOTA CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule ##
(Continued)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200_

Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Agriculture
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Woman, Infants
      and Children 10.557 $ $

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services
    Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program 10.561

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Agriculture
    Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities 10.760

    Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ $

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Trade and Economic
    Develoment
    Community Development Block Grant/State's Program 14.228 $ $

  Direct
    Section 8 Rental Voucher Program 14.855

    Lower Income Housing Assistance Program 14.856

    Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ $

U.S. Department of Justice
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety
    Crime Victim Assistance Grant 16.575 $ $

    Byrne Formula Grant Program 16.579

  Direct
    Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16.710

    Total U.S. Department of Justice $ $

U.S. Department of Transportation
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Transportation
    Boating Safety Financial Assistance 20.005 $ $

    State and Community Highway Safety 20.600

    Total U.S. Department of Transportation $ $

U.S. Department of Emergency Management
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety
    Public Assistance Grants 83.544 $

    Emergency Management Performance Grants 83.552

    Total U.S. Department of Emergency Management $ $
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Centers for Disease Control and Prevention - Investigations
     and Technical Assistance 93.283 $ $

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services
    Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Education
    Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds 93.596

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services
    Children's Justice Grants to States 93.643

    Child Welfare Services - State Grants 93.645

    Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658

    Social Services Block Grant Title XX 93.667

    Chafee Foster Care Independent Living 93.674

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Block Grant - Prevention/Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959

    Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant 93.994

    Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $ $

      Total Cash Awards $ $

Noncash Awards
  U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
    Passed Through Minnesota Department of Agriculture
      Agricultural Best Management Loan Program (Ag BMP) loans 66.458

      Total Federal Awards $

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

1.  The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of federal award programs expended by Minnesota County.
     The County's reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the general purpose financial statements.

2.  The expenditures on this schedule are on the basis of accounting used by the individual funds of the county.  Governmental funds
     use the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The basis used for CFDA No. 66.458 is the value of new loans made during the year.

3.  Pass-through grant numbers were not assigned by the pass-through agencies.
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SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4335

Reporting Page 1

SUBJECT:

Sample Annual Financial Reporting

PURPOSE:

To provide example of county annual financial statements prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PRINCIPLES:

The financial reporting model for local government financial statements is primarily covered
by GASB Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements--and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis--for State and Local Governments and as subsequently modified by new GASB
pronouncements.  This section provides a sample of the annual financial statements for a
Minnesota County.  There are a number of different options available under generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), but this section presents what is expected to be the most common
options used by most counties. 

A County’s annual financial report will generally include two main sections: an introductory
section and a financial section.  The sample primarily focuses on the financial section, which
includes the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, both management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison schedules, and supplementary information.

A comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) includes an additional section called
Statistical Information.  This section is not a requirement of GAAP or COFARS, so is not
included in the sample presentations.

HIGHLIGHTS:

The sample financial statements presented in this section are designed to present a number of
different presentations that counties could have.  However, most counties will not have a similar
makeup for their annual financial report.  The number, extent, and type of financial statements
is primarily the result of the types of funds and whether the county has any discretely presented
component units.  The example financial statements have all fund types and discretely presented
component units.
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The following number and types of entities are included in the example:

Governmental Funds

General Fund   1
Special Revenue Funds 10
Debt Service Funds   4
Capital Projects Funds   4
Permanent Funds   2

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds   4
Internal Services Funds   2

Fiduciary Funds

Investment Trust Funds   2
Private-Purpose Trust Funds   2
Agency Funds   6

Discretely Presented Component Units   3

 The example has the following major funds:

Governmental Funds

General Fund
Road and Bridge Special Revenue Fund
Human Services Special Revenue Fund
Ditch Special Revenue Fund
Permanent Improvement Capital Projects Fund

Enterprise Funds

Nursing Home
Solid Waste
Congregated Housing
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Other report highlights:

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) should not be a repeat of this example.
We encourage counties to make their MD&A applicable to their own county.  See Section
3370.

The example MD&A uses charts and graphs, which is encouraged but not required.

The report includes fund information for one of the component units, because they do not
issue a separate financial report.  These are presented as Statements 19 and 20.

In the Statement of Activities we have elected not to allocate indirect expenses, which is
an option allowed by GASB 34.

The budgetary comparison schedules for the general fund and major special revenue funds
are presented as required supplementary information rather than as part of the basic
financial statements.

On the government-wide statement of net assets we have elected to aggregate information
on receivables and payables.  The breakdown of receivables and payables are shown in
the notes to the financial statements.

We elected because of the large number of funds, to present separate nonmajor fund
combining statements by governmental fund type.  These combining statements are
represented by statements 3 through 10.  With a small number of funds, some or all of these
financial statements would not be necessary.  Statements 1 and 2 are combining statements
of the totals from statements 3 through 10.

 
For the financial report we have labeled the basic financial statements as exhibits;
supplementary combining and individual fund financial statements as statements; and
budgetary comparison presentations and other supporting presentations as schedules.

We encourage every county to issue their annual financial report under their own cover.
The example financial report includes a example cover.  



SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4335

Reporting (Continued) Page 4

March 2004

Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

Certain additional supporting schedules are consider optional under COFARS.  They are
not required by GAAP, but are recommended for the additional disclosures they provide.
These schedules are the following:

Schedule of County Investments or Schedule of Deposits and Investments
Schedule of Tax Capacities, Tax Rates, Levies, and Percentage of Collections
Balance Sheet - By Individual Ditch

Supporting schedules that the Office of the State Auditor strongly encourages are the
following:

Schedule of Intergovernmental Revenues
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

These last two schedules are included in the example annual financial report.  If the
County is subject to the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, they
are required to prepare the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.  The Schedule
of Intergovernmental Revenues provides a crosswalk between the financial statements and
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as well as assist with reporting
requirements to the Office of the State Auditor’s Government Information Division.



ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA



Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

This Page Intended To Be Blank



MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

  Page  

Introductory Section

  Letter of Transmittal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    i 
  Organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   iii

Financial Section

  Independent Auditor's Report . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    1
  Management’s Discussion and Analysis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .    3
  Basic Financial Statements
    Government-Wide Financial Statements
      Statement of Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15
      Statement of Activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  17
    Fund Financial Statements
      Governmental Funds
        Balance Sheet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21
        Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide
         Statement of Net Assets--Governmental Activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  25
        Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances . . . . . . . . . . . .  26
        Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
         Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Government-Wide Statement
         of Activities--Governmental Activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  30
      Proprietary Funds
        Statement of Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  31
        Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  35
        Statement of Cash Flows . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  39
      Fiduciary Funds
        Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  43
        Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  44
      Component Units
        Combining Statement of Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  45
        Combining Statement of Activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  47
  Notes to the Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  49



MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

TABLE OF CONTENTS
(Continued)

  Page  

Financial Section (Continued)

  Required Supplementary Information
    Budgetary Comparison Schedules
      General Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   95
      Road and Bridge Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   98
      Human Services Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   99
      Ditch Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100
    Notes to the Required Supplementary Information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101

  Supplementary Information
    Governmental Funds
      Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 102
      Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
       Fund Balance - Nonmajor Governmental Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 103
      Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 104
      Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
       Fund Balance - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 106
      Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Debt Service Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 108
      Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
       Fund Balance - Nonmajor Debt Service Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 109
      Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 110
      Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
       Fund Balance - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111
      Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Permanent Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 112
      Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
       Fund Balance - Nonmajor Permanent Funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113



MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

TABLE OF CONTENTS
(Continued)

  Page  

Financial Section 

  Supplementary Information
    Governmental Funds (Continued)
      Budgetary Comparison Schedules
        Environmental Health Special Revenue Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114
        Victim Assistance Special Revenue Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 115
        Revolving Loan Special Revenue Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116
        Regional Railroad Authority Special Revenue Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 117
        Gravel Tax Special Revenue Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 118
        Development Special Revenue Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 119
        County Jail Debt Service Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 121
        Courthouse Building Debt Service Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122
        General Obligation Debt Service Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 123
        Sanitary Sewer Debt Service Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124

    Proprietary Funds
      Internal Service Funds
        Combining Statement of Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 125
        Combining Statement or Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
         Fund Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 126
        Combining Statement of Cash Flows . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 127

    Fiduciary Funds
      Investment Trust Funds
        Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 129
        Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 130
      Private-Purpose Trust Funds
        Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 131
        Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 132
      Agency Funds
        Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 133



MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

TABLE OF CONTENTS
(Continued)

  Page  

Financial Section (Continued)

  Component Unit
    Area Ice Arena
      Statement of Net Assets and Governmental Fund Balance Sheet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 136
      Statement of Activities and Governmental Revenues, Expenditures,
       and Changes in Fund Balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 137

  Other Schedules
    Schedule of Intergovernmental Revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 138
    Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 140



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

This Page Intended To Be Blank



i

OFFICIAL LETTERHEAD
OF

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

March 1, 2003

The Honorable Chairman and Commissioners
Minnesota County
Any City, Minnesota

Commissioners:

The annual financial report of Minnesota County is submitted for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2002.  This report was prepared by the County Auditor-Treasurer*s Office and the Financial Services
Department.  This report conforms to the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements, which are accepted as generally accepted accounting principles for state and local
governments in the United States.

This report consists of management’s representations and assertions concerning the finances of
Minnesota County.  Therefore, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information presented in this report.  To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, Minnesota County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that
is designed to both protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of this annual financial report.  Because the cost
of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, Minnesota County’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.  As management,
we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable
in all material respects.

This annual financial report consists of two parts:

1. Introductory Section - including this transmittal letter.

2. Financial Section - including the basic financial statements including notes, required
supplementary information, and other supplementary data of the government, accompanied
by the State Auditor’s opinion.  

Copies of this report will be sent to elected officials, county management, bond rating agencies,
financial institutions, and government agencies which have expressed an interest in Minnesota
County*s financial affairs.



ii

The County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Information
related to this single audit, including a schedule of expenditures of federal awards, the independent
auditor*s report on compliance and on internal controls over financial reporting, and a schedule of
findings and questioned costs are included in a separately issued single audit report.

The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all funds of the primary government
(i.e., the Minnesota County as legally defined), as well as all of its component units.  Component
units are legally separate entities for which the primary government is financially accountable.  The
Regional Railroad Authority is included as a blended component unit.  The government provides a
full range of services, including public safety and law enforcement; courts and probation services;
property tax assessment and collection; vital statistics and public records; human services;
environmental and public health, solid waste management, nursing home, the construction and
maintenance of highways, streets and other infrastructure; recreational activities; and cultural
services.

Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide
financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and
to differentiate their financial position and changes in financial position from those of the primary
government.  The Housing and Redevelopment Authority, the Area Ice Arena, and the Lake Project
Improvement District are reported as discretely presented component units.

Independent Audit

Minnesota State Law requires an audit to be made of the books of accounts, financial records, and
transactions of the county.  This requirement has been complied with, and the Independent Auditor*s
Report of the Office of the State Auditor has been included in this report.  In addition, the audit was
designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 previously
discussed in this letter.

Acknowledgments

The preparation of this annual financial report could not be accomplished without the professional
and dedicated services of the entire staffs of the Auditor-Treasurer’s Office and the Financial
Services Department.  Also, we thank the accounting staff of the Highway and Human Services
Departments for their valuable contributions to this report.  Our thanks also must be given to the
County Board for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism
in the management of Minnesota County’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

Ole Johnson Bythe Numbers
County Auditor-Treasurer Financial Services Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of County Commissioners
Minnesota County, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Minnesota County, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2002, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements.  These
financial statements are the responsibility of Minnesota County's management.  Our responsibility
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Minnesota County, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, Minnesota County adopted the provisions
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, as amended; No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements--and Management’s Discussion and Analysis--for State and Local Governments, as



 This paragraph is applicable only to the year of implementation of the new reporting1
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amended; No. 37, Basic Financial Statements--and Management’s Discussion and Analysis--for
State and Local Governments:  Omnibus; No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures;
and GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and
Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements.1

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary comparison schedules for the General
Fund and the Road and Bridge, Human Services, and Ditch Special Revenue Funds on pages 3
through 14 and 95 through 101 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.  However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Minnesota County’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section and
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and supplementary schedules on
pages i through iii and pages 102 through 141 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and supplementary schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.  The
introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 1,
2003, on our consideration of Minnesota County’s internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants.  That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

PATRICIA ANDERSON                                            GREG  HIERLINGER, CPA
STATE AUDITOR DEPUTY STATE AUDITOR

End of Fieldwork:  March 1, 2003
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Minnesota County’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the
County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.  Since this information
is designed to focus on the current year’s activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts, it
should be read in conjunction with the Transmittal Letter (beginning on page i) and the County’s
financial statements (beginning on page 15).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

< Governmental activities’ total net assets are $82,926,889, of which $71,182,601 is invested
in capital assets, net of related debt, and $5,195,295 is restricted to specific purposes.

< Business-type activities have total net assets of $17,127,104.  Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt represents $9,447,114 of the total; $5,110,779 of the total business-type net
assets are restricted for specific uses.

< Minnesota County’s net assets increased by $4,262,774 for the year ended December 31,
2002.  Of the increase, $4,138,114 was in the governmental activities’ net assets, and
$124,660 represented the increase in business-type activities’ net assets.  The net assets of
the County’s discretely presented components units increased by $3,297.

< The net cost of governmental activities decreased by $3,885,104 to $7,558,213 for the
current fiscal year.  The net cost was funded by general revenues and other items totaling
$11,696,327.

< Governmental funds’ fund balances increased by $4,978,559.  Most of the increase was due
to the issuance of debt.

< During the year, Minnesota County issued $3,365,000 of general obligation bonds for new
building construction and $535,000 of general obligation capital equipment notes.
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Management’s Discussion
and Analysis

(required supplementary information)
(new)

        Government-wide       Fund  
       financial statements  financial
                 (new)    »º statements
          (pages 15-20)            (refocused)
                   (pages 21-48)
                                                                                                            

Notes to the financial statements
(changed and expanded)

(pages 49-94)

Required supplementary information
(other than MD&A)

(expanded)
(pages 95-101)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements.
Minnesota County’s basic financial statements consist of three parts:  government-wide financial
statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial statements.  The Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (this section) and certain budgetary comparison schedules are required to
accompany the basic financial statements and, therefore, are included as required supplementary
information.  The following chart demonstrates how the different pieces are inter-related.

                                   

There are two government-wide financial statements.  The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities (starting on pages 15 and 17, respectively) provide information about the
activities of the County as a whole and present a longer-term view of the County’s finances.  Fund
financial statements start on page 21.  For governmental activities, these statements tell how these
services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.  Fund financial
statements also report the County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements
by providing information about the County’s most significant funds.  The remaining statements
provide financial information about activities for which the County acts solely as a trustee or agent
for the benefit of those outside of the government. 
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Government-Wide Financial Statements--The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
 Activities

Our analysis of the County as a whole begins on page 7.  The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities report information about the County as a whole and about its activities in a
way that helps the reader determine whether the County’s financial condition has improved or
declined as a result of the year’s activities.  These statements include all assets and liabilities using
the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
companies.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the County’s net assets and changes in them.  You can think of the
County’s net assets--the difference between assets and liabilities--as one way to measure the
County’s financial health or financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s
net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  You will
need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the County’s property tax
base and the condition of County roads, to assess the overall health of the County.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the County into three kinds
of activities:

< Governmental activities--Most of the County’s basic services are reported here, including
general government, public safety, highway and streets, human services, health,
environmental services, culture and recreation, and conservation.  Property taxes and state
and federal grants finance most of these activities.

< Business-type activities--The County charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most
of the cost of services it provides.  The County’s solid waste landfill, nursing home,
congregate housing, and public health activities are reported here.

< Component units--The County includes four separate legal entities in its report.  One of these
entities, the Regional Railroad Authority, is blended in with other funds of the County.  The
other three entities, the Housing and Redevelopment Authority, the Area Ice Arena, and the
Lake Project Improvement District are presented in a separate column.  Although legally
separate, these “component units” are important because the County is financially
accountable for them.
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Fund Financial Statements

Our analysis of the County’s major funds begins on page 11.  The fund financial statements begin
on page 21 and provide detailed information about the significant funds--not the County as a whole.
Some funds are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants.  However, the County
Board establishes some funds to help it control and manage money for a particular purpose or to
show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money.  The
County’s two kinds of funds--governmental and the proprietary--use different accounting methods.

< Governmental funds--Most of the County’s basic services are reported in governmental
funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at
year-end that are available for spending.  These funds are reported using an accounting
method called modified accrual accounting.  This method measures cash and all other
financial assets that can be readily converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the County’s general government operations and the
basic services it provides.  Governmental fund information helps you determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
County’s programs.  We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds in a reconciliation in a statement following each governmental fund
financial statements.

< Proprietary funds--When the County charges customers for the services it provides--whether
to outside customers or to other units of the County--these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are
reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.  In fact, the County’s
enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are the same as the business-type
activities we report in the governmental-wide statements but provide more detail and
additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.  We use internal service
funds (the other component of proprietary funds) to report activities that provide supplies and
services for the County’s other programs and activities--such as the County’s Self-Insurance
and Central Garage Funds.

Reporting the County’s Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, over assets which can only be used for the trust beneficiaries
based on the trust arrangement.  All of the County’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate
Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets on pages 43 and 44.  We
exclude these activities from the County’s other financial statements because the County cannot use
these assets to finance its operations.  The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported
in these funds are used for their intended purposes.
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The County As a Whole

The County’s combined net assets were increasing from $95,791,219 to $100,053,993.  In contrast,
last year’s net assets decreased by $1,100,000.  Looking at the net assets and net expenses of
governmental and business-type activities separately, however, two different stories emerge.  Our
analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the County’s
governmental and business-type activities.

Table 1
Net Assets

(in Millions)

               Total
            Governmental                   Business-Type              Primary
                Activities                            Activities                        Government           
       2002             2001            2002            2001            2002           2001     

Assets
  Current and other assets $ 20.0 $ 19.2 $ 8.2 $ 7.5 $ 28.2 $ 26.7 
  Capital assets                   80.4                 77.5                 10.8                 11.3                 91.2                88.8 

    Total Assets $               100.4 $              96.7 $              19.0 $              18.8 $             119.4 $           115.5 

Liabilities
  Long-term debt
   outstanding $ (13.7) $ (10.4) $ (1.4) $ (1.4) $ (15.1) $ (11.8)
  Other liabilities                  (3.7)                 (7.5)                 (0.5)                 (0.4)                 (4.2)               (7.9)

    Total Liabilities $               (17.4) $             (17.9) $              (1.9) $              (1.8) $            (19.3) $           (19.7)

Net Assets
  Invested in capital assets,
   net of debt $ 71.2 $ 67.8 $ 9.4 $ 9.9 $ 80.6 $ 77.7 
  Restricted 5.2 5.0 5.1 4.0 10.3 9.0 
  Unrestricted                  6.6                 6.0                 2.6                 3.1                 9.2               9.1 

      Total Net Assets $                83.0 $             78.8 $             17.1 $             17.0 $            100.1 $            95.8 

Net assets of the County governmental activities increased by 5.3 percent ($83.0 compared to $78.8).
Unrestricted net assets--the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations
without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements--
changed from a $6.0 surplus at December 31, 2001, to $6.6 at the end of this year.  The net assets
of our business-type activities remained relatively the same ($17.1 compared to $17.0).  
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Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

(in Millions)

               Total
            Governmental                   Business-Type              Primary
                Activities                            Activities                        Government           
       2002             2001            2002            2001            2002           2001     

Revenues
  Program revenues
    Fees, fines, charges,
     and other $ 3.5 $ 3.1 $ 5.1 $ 4.9 $ 8.6 $ 8.0 
    Operating grants and
     contributions 5.4 4.6 0.9 1.5 6.3 6.1 
    Capital grants and
     contributions 3.4 0.3 - - 3.4 0.3 
  General revenues
    Property taxes 8.3 8.1 - - 8.3 8.1 
    Other taxes 0.2 0.2 - - 0.2 0.2 
    Grants and contributions 2.0 1.9 - - 2.0 1.9 
    Other general revenues                   0.9                  0.8                  0.4                 0.8                 1.3               1.6 

    Total Revenues $              23.7 $             19.0 $              6.4 $              7.2 $             30.1 $           26.2 

Program Expenses
  General Government $ 3.7 $ 3.5 $ - $ - $ 3.7 $ 3.5 
  Public Safety 2.8 2.6 - - 2.8 2.6 
  Highway and Streets 4.6 4.7 - - 4.6 4.7 
  Human Services 5.5 5.6 - - 5.5 5.6 
  Health 1.3 1.1 - - 1.3 1.1 
  Sanitation 0.3 0.3 - - 0.3 0.3 
  Culture and Recreation 0.7 0.7 - - 0.7 0.7 
  Conservation 0.4 0.4 - - 0.4 0.4 
  Economic Development 0.1 0.1 - - 0.1 0.1 
  Interest 0.5 0.4 - - 0.5 0.4 
  Nursing Home - - 2.0 1.9 2.0 1.9 
  Nursing Service - - 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.8 
  Landfill - - 3.1 2.9 3.1 2.9 
  Congregate Housing                  -                   -                      0.2                   0.2                 0.2               0.2 

    Total Program Expenses $               19.9 $              19.4 $              6.0 $              5.8 $            25.9 $           25.2 

  Excess (Deficiency) Before
   Special Items and
   Transfers $ 3.8 $ (0.4) $ 0.4 $ 1.4 $ 4.2 $ 1.0 

Special items - (0.5) - -  - (0.5)
Transfers                  0.3                 (0.4)                 (0.3)                 0.4               -                 -     

      Increase (Decrease) in
       Net Assets $                 4.1 $              (1.3) $              0.1 $              1.8 $              4.2 $            0.5  
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The County’s total revenues (excluding special items) increased by 14.8 percent ($3.9).  The total
cost of all programs and services was virtually unchanged, but increased by $0.7, or less than
three percent with no new programs added this year.  With this low growth in expenses, the County
covered this year’s costs.  Our analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental
and business-type activities.

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the County governmental activities increased by 24.7 percent ($4.7), while total
expenses increased just 2.6 percent ($0.5).  This compares to a $1.3 decrease in net assets in the year
ended December 31, 2001.  

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $19.9 compared to $19.4 last year.  However,
as shown in the Statement of Activities on pages 17-20 , the amount that our taxpayers ultimately
financed for these activities through County taxes was only $8.5 because some of the cost was paid
by those who directly benefited from the programs ($3.5) or by other governments and organizations
that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions ($8.8).  Overall, the County’s
governmental program revenues, including intergovernmental aid and fees for services, increased
in 2002 from $8.0 to $12.3, principally based on increases in intergovernmental aid, primarily capital
grants.  The County paid for the remaining “public benefit” portion of governmental activities with
$11.4 in general revenues, primarily taxes (some of which could only be used for certain programs)
and other revenues, such as interest and general entitlements.  
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Table 3 presents the cost of each of the County’s five largest program functions, as well as each
function’s net cost (total cost, less revenues generated by the activities).  The net cost shows the
financial burden that was placed on the County’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Table 3
Governmental Activities

(in Millions)

         Total Cost          Net Cost
         of Services                 of Services        
    2002        2001       2002      2001   

Human services $ 5.5 $ 5.6 $ 1.4 $ 2.2
Highways and streets 4.6 4.7 0.8 2.8
General government 3.7 3.5 2.6  2.9
Public safety 2.8 2.6 1.6 1.9
Health 1.3 1.1 0.6 0.5
All others              2.0              1.9              0.6            1.1

      Totals $         19.9 $           19.4 $           7.6 $         11.4

The significant drop in the net cost of services is primarily due to capital grants received for highway
construction and environmental projects in 2002.  In addition, an additional operating grant was
received for social services programs.
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues of the County’s business-type activities (see Table 2) decreased by 11 percent ($6.4 in
2002 compared to $7.2 in 2001) and expenses increased by three percent.  The factors driving these
results include:

< The decrease in revenues primarily is due to a grant for $700,000 received for solid waste
operations in 2001, which was not received in 2002. 

< Operations remain fairly stable in 2002 and, therefore, only the small change in expenses.

The County’s Funds

As the County completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on
pages 21-24) reported a combined fund balance of $15.9, which is above last year’s total of $10.9.
Included in this year’s total fund balance is a surplus of $2.2 in the County’s General Fund. The
General Fund’s change in fund balance (an increase of $0.3 for 2002) represented only six percent
of the total increase ($5.0) in governmental fund balances.  Most of the General Fund’s increase is
due to expenditure reductions in a number of departments.  The largest increase in governmental
fund balances was in the Improvement Capital Projects Fund due to the issuance of debt ($3.9) for
the government center project and capital equipment purchases.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the County Board revised the County’s General Fund budget several
times.  These budget amendments fall into three categories:  new information changing original
budget estimations, greater than anticipated revenues or costs, and final agreement reached on
employee contracts.

Even with these adjustments, the actual charges to appropriations (expenditures) were $3.0 below
the final budget amounts.  The most significant positive variance ($2.0) occurred in the County’s
Administration Department, where the departmental restructuring plan was deferred, resulting in a
59 percent reduction in expected expenditures.  Reasons for other significant variances of actual
expenditures from final budget include a lower than anticipated cost for new purchasing software,
higher than anticipated overtime in the Sheriff’s Department, and a delay in implementation of a new
land use program to be administered by the Soil and Water Conservation District.

On the other hand, resources available for appropriation were also slightly above the final budgeted
amount.  Greater than expected collections for certain fees and investment earnings offset reductions
in anticipated miscellaneous revenues and state appropriations. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2002, the County had $91.2 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land,
buildings, highways and streets, and equipment (see Table 4 below).  This amount represents a net
increase (including additions and deductions) of just under $2.4, or 2.7 percent, over last year.

Table 4
Capital Assets at Year-end

(Net of Depreciation, in Millions)

           Governmental           Business-Type
               Activities                           Activities                                Totals                
      2002             2001           2002           2001           2002           2001     

Land $ 0.9 $ 0.9 $ 0.2 $ 0.1 $ 1.1 $ 1.0
Construction in progress 1.4 7.7 - - 1.4 7.7
Buildings and improvements               20.7     13.5 5.1 5.3 25.8 18.8
Machinery, vehicles,
 furniture, and equipment 7.4 6.9 4.7 5.1 12.1 12.0
Landfill - - 0.8 0.8  0.8 0.8
Infrastructure                 50.0                48.5                 -                 -                50.0              48.5

      Totals $               80.4 $             77.5 $             10.8 $              11.3 $             91.2 $           88.8

This year’s major additions included (in millions):

< Substantial completion of a new jail facility resulted in a transfer of $6.5 to buildings from
construction in progress.

< County Highway 27 improvement project was completed and represented a $2.3 increase in
infrastructure.

< A $1.2 addition to the Human Services Center was completed.

The County’s fiscal year 2003 capital budget calls for it to spend another $6.7 for capital projects,
principally for the initiation or completion of its government center project, sanitary sewer
construction, landfill expansion, and the Highway 14 bridge project.  The County has plans to issue
additional debt to finance the landfill project.  For the other projects, we will use bond proceeds from
debt issued this year and resources on hand in the County’s Road and Bridge and Capital Projects
Funds.  More detailed information about the County’s capital assets is presented in Note 3.A.3. to
the financial statements.
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Debt

At year-end, the County had $14.9 in bonds and notes outstanding versus $11.7 last year--an increase
of 27 percent--as shown in Table 5.

Table 5
Outstanding Debt, at Year-end

(in Millions)

           Governmental          Business-Type
               Activities                          Activities                             Totals               
      2002            2001           2002           2001          2002           2001    

General obligation
 bonds and notes (backed
 by the County)      $ 12.9 $ 9.6 $ 1.4 $ 1.4 $ 14.3 $ 11.0
Special assessment
 bonds with government
 commitment                  0.6                 0.7                 -                  -                  0.6               0.7

      Totals $               13.5     $            10.3 $              1.4 $             1.4 $             14.9 $            11.7

New debt resulted mainly from issuing general obligation bonds ($3.4) for one new project--the
government center project.  Minnesota County also issued $0.5 general obligation equipment notes
to purchase new equipment.

The County’s general obligation bond rating continues to carry the third highest rating possible, a
rating that has been assigned by national rating agencies to the County’s debt since 1996.  The state
limits the amount of net debt that the counties can issue to two percent of the market value of all
taxable property in the County.  The County’s outstanding net debt is significantly below this
$57.2 state-imposed limit.

The County does not purchase commercial insurance for employee health and dental coverage and
has claims and judgments of $0.1 outstanding at year-end compared with $0.2 last year.  Other
obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave payable.  More detailed information about
the County’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 3.C. to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The County’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal-year
2003 budget, tax rates, and fees that will be charged for the business-type activities. 

< The State of Minnesota has projected a significant budget deficit and it is anticipated that
there will be significant reductions in state aids to local governments.  The County believes
this will result in an amendment to the 2003 budget.
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< An increase in the unemployment rate in Minnesota County from 3.1 percent to 3.5 percent
in 2002 could impact the level of services requested by County residents.

< County General Fund expenditures for 2003 are budgeted to increase eight percent over
2002.

< The new jail expected to result in ten percent increase in fees received for boarding of
prisoners from other jurisdictions.

< Property taxes levies have increased 4.5 percent for 2003.

< A reduction in reimbursement rates for the Nursing Home is estimated to result in the need
for a $0.1 operating subsidy from the General Fund.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability
for the money it receives.  If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the County’s Auditor/Treasurer, Ole Johnson, Minnesota County Courthouse,
100 Main Street, Any City, Minnesota 55555.
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 15

MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 1
(Continued)

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Discretely
Primary Government Presented

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 15,836,830 $ 2,399,277 $ 18,236,107 $ 379,796
Investments 617,730 271,285 889,015 -      
Receivables - net 2,992,733 506,555 3,499,288 98,843
Internal balances 311,995 (311,995) -      -      
Due from primary government -      -      -      69,994
Inventories 182,562 19,760 202,322 -      
Prepaid items 37,800 81,307 119,107 2,941
Restricted assets
  Cash and pooled investments -      194,034 194,034 -      
  Investments -      4,917,076 4,917,076 -      
  Accrued interest receivable -      48,395 48,395 -      
Deferred charges 28,130 -      28,130 -      
Capital assets
  Non-depreciable capital assets 2,300,625 239,067 2,539,692 70,500
  Depreciable capital assets - net of accumulated
   depreciation 78,091,909 10,590,922 88,682,831 1,497,031

    Total Assets $ 100,400,314 $ 18,955,683 $ 119,355,997 $ 2,119,105

Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 1,960,842 $ 192,414 $ 2,153,256 $ 133,053
Accrued interest payable 75,102 -      75,102 4,848
Due to component unit 69,994 -      69,994 -      
Unearned revenue 110,150 7,866 118,016 19,808
Customer deposits -      -      -      3,625
Payable from restricted assets
  Rent deposits -      9,081 9,081 -      
Long-term liabilities
  Due within one year 1,073,364 107,514 1,180,878 64,580
  Due within more than one year 14,142,818 1,552,859 15,695,677 576,412

    Total Liabilities $ 17,432,270 $ 1,869,734 $ 19,302,004 $ 802,326
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 1
(Continued)

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Discretely
Primary Government Presented

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ 71,182,601 $ 9,447,114 $ 80,629,715 $ 1,154,973
Restricted for
  Highways and streets 235,105 -      235,105 -      
  Sanitation 1,593,996 -      1,593,996 -      
  Human services 56,204 -      56,204 -      
  Capital projects 946,100 1,123,027 2,069,127 -      
  Debt service 1,331,468 160,686 1,492,154 -      
  Equipment replacement -      2,914,473 2,914,473 -      
  Postclosure -      829,501 829,501 -      
  Other purposes 1,032,422 83,092 1,115,514 -      
Unrestricted 6,590,148 2,528,056 9,118,204 161,806

      Total Net Assets $ 82,968,044 $ 17,085,949 $ 100,053,993 $ 1,316,779
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Program Revenues
Operating

Fees, Charges, Grants and
Expenses Fines, and Other Contributions

Functions/Programs

Primary Government
  Governmental activities
    General government $ 3,684,690 $ 785,090 $ 195,079
    Public safety 2,797,746 822,564 365,645
    Highways and streets 4,625,755 76,312 1,505,619
    Sanitation 266,259 7,411 -      
    Human services 5,512,525 1,139,713 3,000,967
    Health 1,303,625 532,209 162,569
    Culture and recreation 682,406 46,771 120,117
    Conservation of natural resources 455,578 41,197 90,723
    Economic development 51,250 -      -      
    Interest 523,806 -      -      

    Total governmental activities $ 19,903,640 $ 3,451,267 $ 5,440,719

  Business-type activities
    Nursing home $ 2,035,522 $ 2,104,058 $ -      
    Nursing services 717,001 16,915 718,456
    Solid waste 3,052,290 2,804,595 210,527
    Congregate housing 251,021 214,698 -      

    Total business-type activities $ 6,055,834 $ 5,140,266 $ 928,983

      Total Primary Government $ 25,959,474 $ 8,591,533 $ 6,369,702

Component Units
  Housing and Redevelopment Authority $ 365,728 $ 59,906 $ 218,333
  Area Ice Arena 255,367 184,196 63,725
  Lake Project Improvement District 76,993 -      -      

      Total Component Units $ 698,088 $ 244,102 $ 282,058
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EXHIBIT 2
(Continued)

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Discretely

Capital Primary Government Presented
Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component 

Contributions Activities Activities Total Units

$ 24,000 $ (2,680,521) $ -      $ (2,680,521)
-      (1,609,537) -      (1,609,537)

2,243,724 (800,100) -      (800,100)
1,137,348 878,500 -      878,500

-      (1,371,845) -      (1,371,845)
-      (608,847) -      (608,847)
-      (515,518) -      (515,518)

48,369 (275,289) -      (275,289)
-      (51,250) -      (51,250)
-      (523,806) -      (523,806)

$ 3,453,441 $ (7,558,213) $ -      $ (7,558,213)

$ 2,200 $ -      $ 70,736 $ 70,736
-      -      18,370 18,370
-      -      (37,168) (37,168)
-      -      (36,323) (36,323)

$ 2,200 $ -      $ 15,615 $ 15,615

$ 3,455,641 $ (7,558,213) $ 15,615 $ (7,542,598)

$ -      $ (87,489)
-      (7,446)

29,612 (47,381)

$ 29,612 $ (142,316)
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Program Revenues
Operating

Fees, Charges, Grants and
Expenses Fines, and Other Contributions

General Revenues
  Property taxes
  Gravel taxes
  Mortgage registry and deed tax
  Local sales tax
  Payments in lieu of tax
  Grants and contributions not restricted to specific
   programs
  Unrestricted investment earnings
  Miscellaneous
  Loss on sale of capital assets
  Transfers
  Payments to component units

    Total general revenues, transfers, and
     other items

  Change in net assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending
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EXHIBIT 2
(Continued)

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Discretely

Capital Primary Government Presented
Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component 

Contributions Activities Activities Total Units

$ 8,347,095 $ -      $ 8,347,095 $ -      
160,884 -      160,884 -      

26,993 -      26,993 -      
-      -      -      75,202

135,141 -      135,141 -      

2,049,657 4,826 2,054,483 -      
640,263 414,577 1,054,840 2,570

92,788 600 93,388 7,841
(7,452) -      (7,452) -      

310,958 (310,958) -      -      
(60,000) -      (60,000) 60,000

$ 11,696,327 $ 109,045 $ 11,805,372 $ 145,613

$ 4,138,114 $ 124,660 $ 4,262,774 $ 3,297

78,829,930 16,961,289 95,791,219 1,313,482

$ 82,968,044 $ 17,085,949 $ 100,053,993 $ 1,316,779
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Road and
General Bridge

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 1,728,922 $ 4,465,796
Petty cash and change funds 3,480 20
Undistributed cash in agency funds 83,917 125,797
Departmental cash 14,535 -      
Cash with escrow agent -      -      
Investments -      -      
Taxes receivable
  Current 15,507 37,585
  Prior 101,518 29,852
Special assessments receivable
  Current -      -      
  Prior -      -      
  Noncurrent -      -      
Accounts receivable 63,995 1,676
Accrued interest receivable 437,890 -      
Due from other funds 67,510 63,229
Due from other governments 173,009 389,732
Inventories -      159,462
Advances to other funds 124,838 -      

      Total Assets $ 2,815,121 $ 5,273,149
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EXHIBIT 3
(Continued)

Other Total
Human Governmental Governmental
Services Ditch Improvement Funds Funds

$ 557,835 $ 180 $ 3,763,785 $ 3,951,814 $ 14,468,332
100 -      -      100 3,700

23,037 821 -      15,416 248,988
-      -      -      -      14,535
-      -      -      202,844 202,844
-      -      -      600,530 600,530

29,319 -      -      14,111 96,522
20,256 -      -      6,189 157,815

-      600 -      2,942 3,542
-      29 -      3,536 3,565
-      733,926 -      341,104 1,075,030

68,597 -      -      62,407 196,675
-      -      -      5,913 443,803
-      -      317,289 66,123 514,151

196,845 -      -      249,795 1,009,381
-      -      -      -      159,462
-      -      -      60,712 185,550

$ 895,989 $ 735,556 $ 4,081,074 $ 5,583,536 $ 19,384,425
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Road and
General Bridge

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 106,920 $ 50,312
  Salaries payable 156,868 44,929
  Contracts payable 52,491 345,126
  Due to other funds 28,722 35,800
  Due to other governments 22,634 5,214
  Due to component units 69,994 -      
  Deferred revenue - unavailable 117,025 67,437
  Deferred revenue - unearned -      -      
  Advance from other funds -      -      

    Total Liabilities $ 554,654 $ 548,818

Fund Balances
  Reserved for
    Encumbrances $ 9,387 $ 188,171
    Inventories -      159,462
    Advances to other funds 124,838 -      
    Sheriff's contingency 2,000 -      
    Enhanced 911 45,928 -      
    Victim assistance -      -      
    Conservation -      -      
    Gravel pit closure -      -      
    Endowments -      -      
  Unreserved
    Designated for future expenditures 1,647,874 3,806,152
    Designated for petty cash funds 3,480 20
    Designated for compensated absences 87,096 -      
    Undesignated 339,864 570,526
  Unreserved, reported in nonmajor
    Special revenue funds -      -      
    Debt service funds -      -      
    Capital projects funds -      -      
    Permanent funds -      -      

    Total Fund Balances $ 2,260,467 $ 4,724,331

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,815,121 $ 5,273,149
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EXHIBIT 3
(Continued)

Other Total
Human Governmental Governmental
Services Ditch Improvement Funds Funds

$ 238,777 $ 4,223 $ 1,116 $ 40,402 $ 441,750
71,967 -      -      8,209 281,973

-      -      273,928 79,558 751,103
5,887 -      -      176,885 247,294

21,985 1,018 -      62,772 113,623
-      -      -      -      69,994

49,575 734,555 -      366,340 1,334,932
50,994 -      -      59,156 110,150

-      93,238 -      60,712 153,950

$ 439,185 $ 833,034 $ 275,044 $ 854,034 $ 3,504,769

$ -      $ -      $ 518,559 $ 35,000 $ 751,117
-      -      -      -      159,462
-      -      -      -      124,838
-      -      -      -      2,000
-      -      -      -      45,928
-      -      -      8,979 8,979
-      -      -      7,355 7,355
-      -      -      254,914 254,914
-      -      -      110,561 110,561

242,208 -      -      -      5,696,234
100 -      -      -      3,600

-      -      -      -      87,096
214,496 (97,478) 3,287,471 -      4,314,879

-      -      -      1,925,303 1,925,303
-      -      -      1,380,001 1,380,001
-      -      -      946,100 946,100
-      -      -      61,289 61,289

$ 456,804 $ (97,478) $ 3,806,030 $ 4,729,502 $ 15,879,656

$ 895,989 $ 735,556 $ 4,081,074 $ 5,583,536 $ 19,384,425
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 4

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO
THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS--GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit 3) $ 15,879,656

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
 different because:
  Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities are
   not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 80,392,534
  Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
   and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds. 1,334,932

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of management
 of fleet maintenance and self-insurance to individual funds.
  The assets and liabilities that are included in governmental activities in the 
   statement of net assets are:
    Total internal services net assets $ 2,799,510
    Net assets representing capital assets included above (2,313,300) 486,210

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
 current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
  General obligation bonds $ (12,389,875)
  Special assessment bonds (640,000)
  Notes payable (529,677)
  Capital leases (124,541)
  Loans payable (50,000)
  Compensated absences (1,344,223)
  Accrued interest payable (75,102)
  Deferred debt issuance charges 28,130 (15,125,288)

      Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Exhibit 1) $ 82,968,044
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Road and
General Bridge

Revenues
  Taxes $ 3,698,719 $ 2,107,561
  Special assessments -      -      
  Licenses and permits 74,700 -      
  Intergovernmental 1,411,282 4,353,587
  Charges for services 1,646,062 74,852
  Fines and forfeits 174,160 -      
  Gifts and contributions 9,823 -      
  Interest on investments 564,845 -      
  Miscellaneous 341,568 1,460

      Total Revenues $ 7,921,159 $ 6,537,460

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ 3,057,077 $ -      
    Public safety 2,411,235 -      
    Highways and streets -      6,304,420
    Sanitation -      -      
    Human services -      -      
    Health 1,206,334 -      
    Culture and recreation 490,079 -      
    Conservation 329,679 -      
    Economic development 1,000 -      
  Capital outlay -      -      
  Debt service
    Principal retirement 37,575 269,184
    Interest 6,206 5,749
    Bond issuance costs -      -      

      Total Expenditures $ 7,539,185 $ 6,579,353

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ 381,974 $ (41,893)
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EXHIBIT 5
(Continued)

Other Total
Human Governmental Governmental

Services Ditch Improvement Funds Funds

$ 1,518,490 $ -      $ -      $ 1,160,330 $ 8,485,100
-      111,201 -      231,754 342,955
-      -      -      33,966 108,666

3,662,148 -      -      1,479,412 10,906,429
209,416 -      -      17,507 1,947,837

-      -      -      5,000 179,160
-      -      -      18,749 28,572
-      -      13,330 81,556 659,731

311,427 -      -      653,937 1,308,392

$ 5,701,481 $ 111,201 $ 13,330 $ 3,682,211 $ 23,966,842

$ -      $ -      $ -      $ 9,927 $ 3,067,004
-      -      -      61,339 2,472,574
-      -      -      -      6,304,420
-      -      -      266,259 266,259

5,486,985 -      -      -      5,486,985
-      -      -      123,028 1,329,362
-      -      -      211,356 701,435
-      46,399 -      99,792 475,870
-      -      -      50,250 51,250
-      -      367,966 1,526,937 1,894,903

-      35,000 -      280,000 621,759
-      55,113 -      421,184 488,252
-      -      30,005 -      30,005

$ 5,486,985 $ 136,512 $ 397,971 $ 3,050,072 $ 23,190,078

$ 214,496 $ (25,311) $ (384,641) $ 632,139 $ 776,764
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Road and
General Bridge

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 50,000 $ -      
  Transfers out (103,298) -      
  Bonds and notes issued -      -      
  Loans issued -      -      
  Transfer to component unit -      -      
  Proceeds from sale of capital assets 13,467 4,209
  Discount on bond issuance -      -      
  Compensation for loss of capital assets -      5,572
  Proceeds from capital lease -      49,407

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (39,831) $ 59,188

 Net Change in Fund Balances $ 342,143 $ 17,295

Fund Balance - January 1 1,918,324 4,706,346
Increase (decrease) in reserved for inventories -      690

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 2,260,467 $ 4,724,331



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 29

EXHIBIT 5
(Continued)

Other Total
Human Governmental Governmental

Services Ditch Improvement Funds Funds

$ 150,000 $ -      $ 317,289 $ 401,664 $ 918,953
(150,000) -      -      (399,897) (653,195)

-      -      3,900,000 -      3,900,000
-      -      -      50,000 50,000
-      -      -      (60,000) (60,000)
-      -      -      -      17,676
-      -      (26,618) -      (26,618)
-      -      -      -      5,572
-      -      -      -      49,407

$ -      $ -      $ 4,190,671 $ (8,233) $ 4,201,795

$ 214,496 $ (25,311) $ 3,806,030 $ 623,906 $ 4,978,559

242,308 (72,167) -      4,105,596 10,900,407
-      -      -      -      690

$ 456,804 $ (97,478) $ 3,806,030 $ 4,729,502 $ 15,879,656



Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

This Page Intended To Be Blank



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 30

MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 6

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES--GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Exhibit 5) $ 4,979,249

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
 are different because:
  Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in
   the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
   estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
    Expenditures for general capital assets, infrastructure, and other
     related capital assets adjustment $ 6,670,132
    Current year depreciation (3,913,376) 2,756,756

  In the statement of activities, only the gain or loss on the disposal of capital
   assests are reported whereas, in the governmental funds, the proceeds
   from the disposal increase financial resources.  Therefore, the change
   in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the
   capital assets disposed of. (30,700)

  The fair value of capital asset donations are reported as revenues in the
   statement of activity, but are not reported in governmental funds. 20,000

  Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
   financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (194,894)

  Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
   but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
   The net proceeds for debt issuance are: (3,942,784)

  Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
   but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

  Principal repayments
    General obligation bonds $ 535,000
    Special assessment bonds 35,000
    Capital lease 51,759 621,759

  Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
   use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
   expenditures in governmental funds.
    Change in accrued interest payable $ (32,509)
    Amortization of discounts and deferred issuance charges (3,045)
    Change in compensated absences (86,995) (122,549)

  Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
   activities to individual funds.  The net expense of certain activities of the
   internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.
    Transfer $ 45,200
    Governmental activities' share of net income before transfers 6,077 51,277

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Exhibit 2) $ 4,138,114
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Assets

Current assets
  Cash and pooled investments $ 585,622 $ 1,551,727
  Undistributed cash in agency funds -      35,810
  Petty cash and change funds 100 300
  Investments 35,000 236,285
  Special assessments
    Prior -      34,454
  Accounts receivable (net) 183,051 167,200
  Accrued interest receivable 315 7,232
  Due from other funds -      -      
  Due from other governments -      29,895
  Inventories 19,019 -      
  Prepaid items 3,241 78,066

    Total current assets $ 826,348 $ 2,140,969

Restricted assets
  Cash and pooled investments $ 24,267 $ -      
  Investments 12,000 4,905,076
  Accrued interest receivable -      48,395

    Total restricted assets $ 36,267 $ 4,953,471

Noncurrent assets
  Advance to other funds $ 46,764 $ -      
  Capital assets
    Nondepreciable 16,175 222,892
    Depreciable (net) 535,265 8,829,515

    Total noncurrent assets $ 598,204 $ 9,052,407

      Total Assets $ 1,460,819 $ 16,146,847
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EXHIBIT 7
(Continued)

         Enterprise Funds Internal
Congregate Nonmajor Service

Housing Nursing Service Totals Funds

$ 33,740 $ 191,928 $ 2,363,017 $ 898,431
-      -      35,810 -      

50 -      450 -      
-      -      271,285 17,200

-      -      34,454 -      
-      -      350,251 -      
-      -      7,547 2,200

5,457 -      5,457 63,700
-      84,408 114,303 4,200
741 -      19,760 23,100

-      -      81,307 37,800

$ 39,988 $ 276,336 $ 3,283,641 $ 1,046,631

$ 169,767 $ -      $ 194,034 $ -      
-      -      4,917,076 -      
-      -      48,395 -      

$ 169,767 $ -      $ 5,159,505 $ -      

$ -      $ -      $ 46,764 $ -      

-      -      239,067 -      
1,214,953 11,189 10,590,922 2,313,300

$ 1,214,953 $ 11,189 $ 10,876,753 $ 2,313,300

$ 1,424,708 $ 287,525 $ 19,319,899 $ 3,359,931
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Liabilities

Current liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 28,315 $ 99,661
  Salaries payable -      884
  Compensated absences payable - current 7,248 62,860
  Due to other funds -      317,289
  Due to other governments -      944
  Deferred revenue -      -      
  General obligation bonds payable - current -      -      

    Total current liabilities $ 35,563 $ 481,638

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
  Rent deposits $ -      $ -      

Noncurrent liabilities
  Compensated absences payable - long-term $ 54,456 $ 43,627
  Advance from other funds -      -      
  Claims and judgments payable - long-term -      -      
  Estimated liability for landfill closure/postclosure -      96,667
  General obligation bonds payable - long-term -      -      

    Total noncurrent liabilities $ 54,456 $ 140,294

    Total Liabilities $ 90,019 $ 621,932

Net Assets
  Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ 551,440 $ 9,052,407
  Restricted for
    Postclosure -      829,501
    Equipment replacement -      2,914,473
    Debt service -      -      
    Other purposes 26,070 -      
    Capital projects 10,197 1,112,830
    Unrestricted 783,093 1,615,704

      Total Net Assets $ 1,370,800 $ 15,524,915

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit 1) are different because
 certain internal service fund assets and liabilities are included with business-type activities.
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EXHIBIT 7
(Continued)

         Enterprise Funds Internal
Congregate Nonmajor Service

Housing Nursing Service Totals Funds

$ 2,921 $ 50,706 $ 181,603 $ 372,393
-      7,801 8,685 -      

99 12,307 82,514 2,000
25 -      317,314 18,700

1,182 -      2,126 -      
-      7,866 7,866 -      

25,000 -      25,000 -      

$ 29,227 $ 78,680 $ 625,108 $ 393,093

$ 9,081 $ -      $ 9,081 $ -      

$ 234 $ -      $ 98,317 $ 3,100
46,764 -      46,764 31,600

-      -      -      132,766
-      -      96,667 -      

1,357,875 -      1,357,875 -      

$ 1,404,873 $ -      $ 1,599,623 $ 167,466

$ 1,443,181 $ 78,680 $ 2,233,812 $ 560,559

$ (167,922) $ 11,189 $ 9,447,114 $ 2,313,300

-      -      829,501 -      
-      -      2,914,473 -      

160,686 -      160,686 -      
-      57,022 83,092 -      
-      -      1,123,027 -      

(11,237) 140,634 2,528,194 486,072

$ (18,473) $ 208,845 $ 17,086,087 $ 2,799,372

(138)

$ 17,085,949
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Operating Revenues
  Charges for services $ 2,056,316 $ 1,930,461
  Meals 36,565 -      
  Rents -      -      
  Laundry -      -      
  Miscellaneous 11,177 -      

      Total Operating Revenues $ 2,104,058 $ 1,930,461

Operating Expenses
  Personal services $ 1,258,275 $ 764,555
  Employee benefits and payroll taxes 140,478 156,321
  Professional services -      330,657
  Claims paid -      -      
  Administration and fiscal services -      -      
  Other services and charges 518,908 950,024
  Supplies 47,902 81,339
  Distributions to subgrantees -      -      
  Depreciation 69,878 765,139
  Landfill closure and postclosure costs -      4,198

      Total Operating Expenses $ 2,035,441 $ 3,052,233

    Operating Income (Loss) $ 68,617 $ (1,121,772)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
  Special assessments $ -      $ 874,134
  Intergovernmental -      214,398
  Interest income 1,925 399,707
  Interest on intergovernmental transfers 7,488 -      
  Gifts and contributions 2,200 -      
  Gain on sale/disposal of capital assets -      600
  Interest expense -      -      

    Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) $ 11,613 $ 1,488,839
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EXHIBIT 8
(Continued)

         Enterprise Funds Internal
Congregate Nonmajor Service

Housing Nursing Service Totals Funds

$ -      $ -      $ 3,986,777 $ 2,934,602
37,582 -      74,147 -      

175,080 -      175,080 -      
1,358 -      1,358 -      

678 16,915 28,770 -      

$ 214,698 $ 16,915 $ 4,266,132 $ 2,934,602

$ 27,393 $ 200,919 $ 2,251,142 $ -      
-      -      296,799 -      

44,191 41,227 416,075 -      
-      -      -      1,672,163
-      -      -      70,600

38,557 82,445 1,589,934 772,900
3,631 17,947 150,819 -      
-      372,426 372,426 -      

50,729 2,037 887,783 419,300
-      -      4,198 -      

$ 164,501 $ 717,001 $ 5,969,176 $ 2,934,963

$ 50,197 $ (700,086) $ (1,703,044) $ (361)

$ -      $ -      $ 874,134 $ -      
-      719,411 933,809 -      

5,457 -      407,089 6,300
-      -      7,488 -      
-      -      2,200 -      
-      -      600 -      

(86,520) -      (86,520) -      

$ (81,063) $ 719,411 $ 2,138,800 $ 6,300
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

  Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers $ 80,230 $ 367,067

Transfers in -      -      
Transfers out (48,930) (317,289)

  Change in Net Assets $ 31,300 $ 49,778

Net Assets - January 1 1,339,500 15,475,137

Net Assets - December 31 $ 1,370,800 $ 15,524,915

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit 2) are different because the
 net revenue (expense) of the Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund is reported with business-type activities.

      Change in Net Assets of Business-Type Activities
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EXHIBIT 8
(Continued)

         Enterprise Funds Internal
Congregate Nonmajor Service

Housing Nursing Service Totals Funds

$ (30,866) $ 19,325 $ 435,756 $ 5,939

55,261 -      55,261 2,205,500
-      -      (366,219) -      

$ 24,395 $ 19,325 $ 124,798 $ 2,211,439

(42,868) 189,520 587,933

$ (18,473) $ 208,845 $ 2,799,372

(138)

$ 124,660
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
  Receipts from customers and users $ 2,098,393 $ 1,906,796
  Receipts from internal services provided -      -      
  Payments to suppliers (471,594) (1,381,736)
  Payments to employees (1,492,637) (910,743)
  Payments to subrecipients -      -      

    Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 134,162 $ (385,683)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
  Advance from other funds $ -      $ -      
  Special assessments -      905,312
  Intergovernmental -      184,503
  Rent deposits -      -      
  Contributions 2,200 -      
  Transfers in -      -      
  Transfers out (48,930) -      

    Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing
     activities $ (46,730) $ 1,089,815

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
  Capital contributions $ -      $ -      
  Principal paid on long-term debt -      -      
  Interest paid on long-term debt -      -      
  Proceeds from the sale of capital assets -      600
  Purchases of capital assets (48,040) (371,233)

    Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
     financing activities $ (48,040) $ (370,633)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
  Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments $ -      $ -      
  Purchase of investments (12,000) (23,396)
  Investment earnings received 1,955 391,275
  Interest on intergovernmental transfers 7,488 -      

    Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ (2,557) $ 367,879

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 36,835 $ 701,378

Cash and Cash Equivalents at January 1 573,154 886,459

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31 $ 609,989 $ 1,587,837
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EXHIBIT 9
 (Continued)

         Enterprise Funds
Congregate Nonmajor Internal

Housing Nursing Service Totals Service Funds

$ 215,723 $ 16,915 $ 4,237,827 $ 124,000
-      -      -      3,007,326

(85,460) (131,912) (2,070,702) (2,452,155)
(27,440) (199,015) (2,629,835) (60,000)

-      (372,426) (372,426) -      

$ 102,823 $ (686,438) $ (835,136) $ 619,171

$ -      $ -      $ -      $ 40,000
-      -      905,312 -      
-      694,121 878,624 -      
918 -      918 -      

-      -      2,200 -      
60,034 -      60,034 -      

-      -      (48,930) -      

$ 60,952 $ 694,121 $ 1,798,158 $ 40,000

$ -      $ -      $ -      $ 45,200
(25,000) -      (25,000) -      
(86,035) -      (86,035) -      

-      -      600 -      
-      (5,772) (425,045) (572,300)

$ (111,035) $ (5,772) $ (535,480) $ (527,100)

$ -      $ -      $ -      $ 31,100
-      -      (35,396) (48,300)
-      -      393,230 4,100
-      -      7,488 -      

$ -      $ -      $ 365,322 $ (13,100)

$ 52,740 $ 1,911 $ 792,864 $ 118,971

150,817 190,017 1,800,447 779,460

$ 203,557 $ 191,928 $ 2,593,311 $ 898,431
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Nursing Solid
Home Waste

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Exhibit 5
  Cash and pooled investments $ 585,622 $ 1,551,727
  Undistributed cash in agency funds -      35,810
  Petty cash and change funds 100 300
  Restricted cash and pooled investments 24,267 -      

      Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 609,989 $ 1,587,837

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
 Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
  Operating income $ 68,617 $ (1,121,772)

  Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
   provided by (used in) operating activities
    Depreciation expense $ 69,878 $ 765,139
    (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (5,665) (23,665)
    (Increase) decrease in due from other governments -      -      
    (Increase) decrease in due from other funds -      -      
    (Increase) decrease in inventories 5,932 -      
    (Increase) decrease in prepaid items (1,678) (37,083)
    Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,356 18,760
    Increase (decrease) in salaries payable -      884
    Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable (4,278) 9,249
    Increase (decrease) in due to other funds -      -      
    Increase (decrease) in due to other governments -      (1,393)
    Increase (decrease) in claims payable -      -      
    Increase (decrease) in landfill closure costs -      4,198

    Total adjustments $ 65,545 $ 736,089

      Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $ 134,162 $ (385,683)

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
  Contributions of capital assets from government $ -      $ -      
  Capital asset trade-ins -      -      
  Change in fair value of long-term investments -      65,193
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EXHIBIT 9
 (Continued)

         Enterprise Funds
Congregate Nonmajor Internal

Housing Nursing Service Totals Service Funds

$ 33,740 $ 191,928 $ 2,363,017 $ 898,431
-      -      35,810 -      

50 -      450 -      
169,767 -      194,034 -      

$ 203,557 $ 191,928 $ 2,593,311 $ 898,431

$ 50,197 $ (700,086) $ (1,703,044) $ (361)

$ 50,729 $ 2,037 $ 887,783 $ 419,300
1,025 -      (28,305) -      
-      -      -      (4,200)
-      -      -      (63,700)
301 -      6,233 (23,100)

-      -      (38,761) (37,800)
(124) 9,707 29,699 372,393
-      1,692 2,576 -      
(47) 212 5,136 5,100

(3) -      (3) 10,300
745 -      (648) -      

-      -      -      (58,761)
-      -      4,198 -      

$ 52,626 $ 13,648 $ 867,908 $ 619,532

$ 102,823 $ (686,438) $ (835,136) $ 619,171

$ -      $ -      $ -      $ 2,160,300
-      -      -      48,100
-      -      65,193 -      
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 10

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Investment Private-Purpose
Trust Trust Agency

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 366,340 $ 17,258 $ 2,752,626
Investments
  Short-term investments -      61,850 -      
Receivables
  Accounts -      -      7,885
  Interest 918 883 -      
Due from other governments -      -      274,790

      Total Assets $ 367,258 $ 79,991 $ 3,035,301

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 103 $ 3,667 $ 12,664
Due to other governments -      -      3,022,637

      Total Liabilities $ 103 $ 3,667 $ 3,035,301

Net Assets

Net assets, held in trust for pool participants $ 367,155 $ -      
Net assets, held in trust for other purposes -      9,237

      Total Net Assets $ 367,155 $ 76,324
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 11

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Investment Private-Purpose
Trust Trust Total

Additions

Trust deposits $ -      $ 2,900 $ 2,900
Contributions from participants 278,185 -      278,185
Investment earnings
  Interest 12,183 3,706 15,889
  Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (3,500) 1,500 (2,000)

      Total Additions $ 286,868 $ 8,106 $ 294,974

Deductions

Payments in accordance with trust agreements $ -      $ 3,629 $ 3,629
Distributions to participants 219,043 -      219,043
Payments to heirs -      7,163 7,163

      Total Deductions $ 219,043 $ 10,792 $ 229,835

  Change in Net Assets $ 67,825 $ (2,686) $ 65,139

Net Assets - Beginning of the Year 299,330 79,010 378,340

Net Assets - End of the Year $ 367,155 $ 76,324 $ 443,479
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 12
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Housing and Lake Project
Redevelopment Area Ice Improvement

Authority Arena District Total

Assets

Current assets
  Cash and pooled investments $ 262,853 $ 41,741 $ -      $ 304,594
  Undistributed cash in County agency funds 75,202 -      -      75,202
  Accounts receivable (net) -      25,531 -      25,531
  Rent receivable 3,444 -      -      3,444
  Due from other governments  315 69,553 -      69,868
  Due from primary government -      69,994 -      69,994
  Prepaid items 2,941 -      -      2,941

    Total current assets $ 344,755 $ 206,819 $ -      $ 551,574

Noncurrent assets
  Capital assets
    Nondepreciable $ 70,500 $ -      $ -      $ 70,500
    Depreciable (net) 533,016 941,015 23,000 1,497,031

    Total noncurrent assets $ 603,516 $ 941,015 $ 23,000 $ 1,567,531

    Total Assets $ 948,271 $ 1,147,834 $ 23,000 $ 2,119,105
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 12
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Housing and Lake Project
Redevelopment Area Ice Improvement

Authority Arena District Total

Liabilities

Current liabilities
  Cash overdraft $ -      $ -      $ 49,382 $ 49,382
  Accounts payable 4,518 4,287 20,999 29,804
  Salaries payable -      4,302 -      4,302
  Due to other governments 49,565 -      -      49,565
  Accrued interest payable -      4,848 -      4,848
  Deferred revenue 19,808 -      -      19,808
  Customer deposits 3,625 -      -      3,625
  Revenue notes payable - current -      64,580 -      64,580

    Total current liabilities $ 77,516 $ 78,017 $ 70,381 $ 225,914

Noncurrent liabilities
  Advance from other governments $ -      $ 220,212 $ -      $ 220,212
  Compensated absences payable -      8,222 -      8,222
  Revenue notes payable - long-term -      347,978 -      347,978

    Total noncurrent liabilities $ -      $ 576,412 $ -      $ 576,412

    Total Liabilities $ 77,516 $ 654,429 $ 70,381 $ 802,326

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ 603,516 $ 528,457 $ 23,000 $ 1,154,973
Unrestricted 267,239 (35,052) (70,381) 161,806

      Total Net Assets $ 870,755 $ 493,405 $ (47,381) $ 1,316,779
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Program Revenues
Operating

Fees, Charges, Grants and
Expenses Fines and Other Contributions

Component Units
  Housing and Redevelopment Authority $ 365,728 $ 59,906 $ 218,333
  Area Ice Arena 255,367 184,196 63,725
  Lake Project Improvement District 76,993 -      -      

      Total Component Units $ 698,088 $ 244,102 $ 282,058

General Revenues and Other Items
  Local sales tax
  Investment income
  Miscellaneous
  Payments from primary government

    Total general revenues and other items

  Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending



The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 48

EXHIBIT 13
(Continued) 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Capital Housing and Area Lake Project

Grants and Redevelopment Ice Improvement
Contributions Authority Arena District Total

$ -      $ (87,489) $ -      $ -      $ (87,489)
-      -      (7,446) -      (7,446)

29,612 -      -      (47,381) (47,381)

$ 29,612 $ (87,489) $ (7,446) $ (47,381) $ (142,316)

$ 75,202 $ -      $ -      $ 75,202
2,570 -      -      2,570
7,841 -      -      7,841

60,000 -      -      60,000

$ 145,613 $ -      $ -      $ 145,613

$ 58,124 $ (7,446) $ (47,381) $ 3,297

812,631 500,851 -      1,313,482

$ 870,755 $ 493,405 $ (47,381) $ 1,316,779
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The County’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(statements and interpretations).  Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989,
(when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  Although the
County has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type
activities and enterprise funds, the County has chosen not to do so.  The more significant
accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the County are discussed below.

In June 1999, GASB unanimously approved Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements--and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis--for State and Local Governments.  The significant
changes in the statement include the following:

S For the first time, the financial statements include:

S A Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of
the County’s overall financial position and results of operations.

S Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the County’s
activities, including infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.).

S A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements (including the
notes to financial statements).  The County has elected to implement all provisions of the
statement in the current year.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Financial Reporting Entity

Minnesota County was established March 5, 1853, and is an organized county having the
powers, duties, and privileges granted counties by Minn. Stat. ch. 373.  As required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present Minnesota County (primary government) and its component units for
which the County is financially accountable.  The County is governed by a five-member
Board of Commissioners elected from districts within the County.  The Board is organized
with a chair and vice chair elected at the annual meeting in January of each year.

Blended Component Unit

Blended component units are legally separate organizations that are so intertwined with the
County that they are, in substance, the same as the County and, therefore, are reported as
if they were part of the County.  Minnesota County has one blended component unit.

           Included in the                 Separate
                  Component Unit                     Reporting Entity Because          Financial Statements      

Regional Railroad Authority (RRA) County Commissioners are Separate financial statements
 provides for the preservation or  the members of the RRA  statements are not prepared.
 improvement of rail transportation  Board.
 within the County.

Discretely Presented Component Units

While part of the reporting entity, discretely presented component units are presented in
a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the County.  The following component units of Minnesota County
are discretely presented:

           Included in the                 Separate
                  Component Unit                     Reporting Entity Because          Financial Statements      

Minnesota County Housing and County appoints members Minnesota County HRA
 Redevelopment Authority (HRA)  and the HRA is a financial 123 Loon Circle
 provides services pursuant to Minn.  burden. Any City, MN 55555
 Stat. §§ 469.001-.047.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Financial Reporting Entity

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

           Included in the                 Separate
                  Component Unit                     Reporting Entity Because          Financial Statements      

Let’s Skate Ice Arena Authority County appoints majority Separate financial statements
 operates a multi-jurisdiction ice  of Ice Arena Board and  are not prepared.
 arena.  must approve debt.

Lake Project Improvement District County appoints District Lake Project District
 is responsible for constructing and  Board members and must 4321 Evergreen Avenue
 operating a sanitary sewer district.  approve any debt. Small City, MN 55669

Joint Ventures

The County participates in several joint ventures which are described in Note 4.C.  The
County also participates in jointly-governed organizations which are described in Note 4.D.

B. Basic Financial Statements

1. Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) display information about the primary government and its
component units.  These statements include the financial activities of the overall
County government, except for fiduciary activities.  Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double-counting of internal activities.  Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges to external parties for support. 

In the government-wide statement of net assets, both the governmental and
business-type activities columns:  (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column;
and (b) are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all
long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

B. Basic Financial Statements

1. Government-Wide Statements (Continued)

County’s net assets are reported in three parts: (1) invested in capital assets, net of
related debt; (2) restricted net assets; and (3) unrestricted net assets.  The County first
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of
each function of the County’s governmental activities and different business-type
activity are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or activity.  Program revenues include:  (1) fees,
fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods, services, or privileges provided by
a given function or activity; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or activity.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are
presented as general revenues.

2. Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds,
including its fiduciary funds and blended component unit.  Separate statements for
each fund category--governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary--are presented.  The
emphasis of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major
individual governmental and enterprise funds, with each displayed as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.  All remaining governmental and enterprise
funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values.  Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result
from nonexchange transactions or incidental activities.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

B. Basic Financial Statements

2. Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

The Road and Bridge Special Revenue Fund is used to account for revenues and
expenditures of the County Highway Department which is responsible for the
construction and maintenance of roads, bridges, and other projects affecting
County roadways.

The Human Services Special Revenue Fund is used to account for economic
assistance and community social services programs.

The Ditch Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the cost of constructing
and maintaining an agricultural drainage ditch system.  Financing is provided by
special assessments levied against benefitted property.

The Improvement Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources
to be used for capital acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital
facilities.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Nursing Home Fund is used to account for the operations of the County
nursing home.

The Solid Waste Fund is used to account for the operation, maintenance, and
development of the County solid waste landfill.

The Congregate Housing Fund is used to account for the County’s assisted living
housing.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

B. Basic Financial Statements

2. Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds account for self-insurance and central maintenance garage
facility activities provided to other departments and funds on a
cost-reimbursement basis.

Investment Trust Funds account for the external pooled and non-pooled
investments held on behalf of external participants.

Private Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust
for others.

Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations or
have a measurement focus.  These funds account for assets that the County holds
for others in an agency capacity.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  Minnesota County
considers all revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after the end of
the current period.  Property and other taxes, licenses, and interest are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, compensated
absences, and claims and judgments, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent
that they have matured.  Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition.  Additionally, each fund’s equity in the County’s
investment pool is treated as a cash equivalent because the funds can deposit or
effectively withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty.

2. Deposits and Investments

The cash balances of substantially all funds are pooled and invested by the County
Treasurer for the purpose of increasing earnings through investment activities.  Pooled
and fund investments are reported at their fair value at December 31, 2002, based on
market prices.  Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 385.07, investment earnings on cash and
pooled investments are credited to the General Fund.  Other funds received investment
earnings based on other state statutes, grant agreements, contracts, and bond
covenants.  Pooled investment earnings for 2002 were $564,845.

Minnesota County invests in an external investment pool, the Minnesota Association
of Governments Investing for Counties (MAGIC) Fund, which is created under a joint
powers agreement pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 471.59.  The MAGIC Fund is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but does operate in a
manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.  Therefore,
the fair value of the County’s position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool
shares.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

2. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Minn. Stat. §§ 118A.04 and 118A.05 generally authorize the following types of
investments as available to the County:

(1) securities which are direct obligations or are guaranteed or insured issues of the
United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an
act of Congress, except mortgage-backed securities defined as “high risk” by
Minn. Stat. § 118A.04, subd. 6;

(2) mutual funds through shares of registered investment companies provided the
mutual fund receives certain ratings depending on its investments;

(3) general obligations of the State of Minnesota and its municipalities, and in certain
state agency and local obligations of Minnesota and other states provided such
obligations have certain specified bond ratings by a national bond rating service;

(4) bankers’ acceptances of United States banks;

(5) commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian
subsidiaries that is rated in the highest quality category by two nationally
recognized rating agencies and matures in 270 days or less; and

(6) with certain restrictions, in repurchase agreements, securities lending agreements,
joint powers investment trusts, and guaranteed investment contracts.

3. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds”
(i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

3. Receivables and Payables (Continued)

All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other
funds.”  Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a
fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they
are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial
resources.

All receivables, including those of the discretely presented component units, are
shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. 

Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed as of the same
date.  The tax levy notice is mailed in March with the first half payment due on
May 15 and the second half payment due October 15.

Unpaid taxes at December 31 become liens on the respective property and are
classified in the financial statements as delinquent taxes receivable.

4. Inventories and Prepaid Items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first in/first out (FIFO) method.
Inventories in governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when purchased rather
than when consumed.  Inventories in proprietary funds and at the government-wide
level are recorded as expenses when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.



MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Page 58

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

5. Restricted Assets

Certain funds of the County are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net
assets because the restriction is either imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation or imposed externally by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments.  Therefore, their use is
limited by applicable laws and regulations.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements.  Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend asset’s lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.  During the current period, the County did not have any capitalized
interest.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component
units, is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

6. Capital Assets (Continued)

                       Assets                          Years  

Buildings   25-75
Building improvements   20-30
Public domain infrastructure   25-75
Furniture, equipment, and vehicles     3-15

7. Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in financial statements consists of
unpaid, accumulated annual and sick leave balances.  The liability has been calculated
using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently
are eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who are expected
to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are
included.  Compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is
reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result
of employee resignations and retirements.

8. Deferred Revenue

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current
period.  Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with
resources that have been received, but not yet earned.  

9. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net assets.  Bond premiums and discounts, as well
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

9. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount.  Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face
amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received
on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

10. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.  Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

11. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Deficit Fund Equity

The following major funds had deficit fund balance or net assets as of December 31, 2002:

Ditch Special Revenue Fund $ 97,478
Congregate Housing Enterprise Fund 18, 473

The Ditch Fund’s deficit will be eliminated with future special assessment levies against
benefitted properties.  The Congregate Housing Fund is in the early stages of operations,
and the deficit is expected to be eliminated by future earnings.

B. Component Unit Deficit

The Lake Project Improvement District at the end of its first year had a cash overdraft of
$49,382 and a related net asset deficit of $47,381.  The County has authorized a loan to the
District to provide working capital and eliminate the overdraft.  The loan and the deficit
will be eliminated after special assessments are levied and collected from benefitting
properties.

  
3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

1. Deposits and Investments

The County’s total cash and investments are reported as follows:

Primary government
  Cash and pooled investments $ 18,236,107
  Investments 889,015
  Restricted assets
    Cash and pooled investments 194,034
    Investments 4,917,076
Component units
  Cash and pooled investments 379,796



MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Page 62

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Fiduciary funds
  Cash and pooled investments
    Investment trust funds 366,340
    Private-purpose trust funds 17,258
    Agency funds 2,752,626
  Investments
    Private-purpose trust funds              61,850

      Total Cash and Investments $        27,814,102

Minn. Stat. §§ 118A.02 and 118A.04 authorize the County to deposit its cash and to
invest in certificates of deposit in financial institutions designated by the County
Treasurer.  At December 31, 2002, the carrying amount of the County’s deposits
totaled $8,821,267.  The bank balance deposit amount was $10,729,772.  Minnesota
statutes require that all County deposits be covered by insurance, surety bond, or
collateral.

Following is a summary of the deposits covered by insurance or collateral at
December 31, 2002.

         Bank
       Balance       

Covered Deposits
  Insured, or collateralized with securities held by the County
  or its agent in the County’s name $ 8,129,102

  Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
  institution’s agent in the County’s name                   2,600,670

    Total covered deposits $               10,729,772

Uncollateralized                           -      

      Total           $               10,729,772
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Three levels of custodial credit risk for securities are defined by generally accepted
accounting principles:

(1) securities that are insured or registered, or for which the securities are held by the
County or its agent in the County’s name;

(2) securities that are uninsured and unregistered and are held by the counterparty’s
trust department or agent in the County’s name; and

(3) securities that are uninsured and unregistered and are held by the counterparty,
or by its trust department or agent, but not in the County’s name.

Following is a summary of the fair values of the County’s investments, categorized
into the aforementioned levels of risk, at December 31, 2002:

                          Category                        Fair      
          1                2                      3                 Value     

U.S. government securities $ 10,102,376 $ -     $ -     $ 10,102,376
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,497,000 -     246,000 1,743,000
Commercial paper 701,250 -     -     701,250
Repurchase agreements                   -                     -                 1,275,508             1,275,508

      Total Investments $      12,300,626 $               -     $          1,521,508 $ 13,822,134

Add
  Money market mutual funds 3,876,509
  Minnesota Association of
   Governments Investing for
   Counties (MAGIC) 1,275,507 
  Cash on hand 18,685
  Deposits              8,821,267

      Total Cash and Investments $     27,814,102
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Assets (Continued)

2. Receivables

Receivables as of December 31, 2002, year-end for the County’s governmental
activities and business-type activities, including the applicable allowances for
uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

     Amounts Not
     Scheduled for

          Total     Collection During
    Receivables   the Subsequent Year 

Governmental Activities
  Taxes $ 254,337 $ -     
  Special assessments 1,082,137 968,093
  Due from other governments 1,013,581 -     
  Accounts 196,675 -     
  Interest                   446,003                               -     

      Total Governmental Activities $            2,992,733 $                       968,093
 

Business-Type Activities
  Special assessments $ 34,454 $ 17,277
  Due from other governments 114,303 -     
  Accounts 350,251 -     
  Interest                        7,547                               -     

      Total Business-Type Activities $             506,555 $                         17,277

3. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2002, was as follows:
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

3. Capital Assets (Continued)

Governmental Activities

   Beginning        Ending
     Balance        Increases       Decreases         Balance     

Capital assets, not being
 depreciated
  Land $ 950,344 $ -     $ -     $ 950,344
  Construction in progress               7,702,693              1,670,078               8,022,490                1,350,281

      Total capital assets,
       not depreciated $             8,653,037 $              1,670,078 $              8,022,490 $               2,300,625

Capital assets being depreciated
  Buildings $ 20,115,497 $ 8,139,190 $ 45,000 $ 28,209,687
  Machinery, furniture, and
   equipment 13,113,420 2,328,234 1,172,827 14,268,827
  Infrastructure                59,274,454                3,210,520                     -                   62,484,974

    Total capital assets being
     depreciated $          92,503,371 $           13,677,944 $              1,217,827 $          104,963,488

Less:  accumulated depreciation
 for
  Buildings $ 6,656,709 $ 922,611 $ 33,300 $ 7,546,020
  Machinery, furniture, and
   equipment 6,179,864 1,779,328 1,090,727 6,868,465
  Infrastructure              10,826,357              1,630,737                     -                  12,457,094

    Total accumulated
     depreciation $          23,662,930 $           4,332,676 $             1,124,027 $            26,871,579

    Total capital assets,
     depreciated, net $            68,840,441 $            9,345,268 $                 93,800 $              78,091,909

      Governmental Activities
       Capital Assets, Net $            77,493,478 $          11,015,346 $            8,116,290 $          80,392,534
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

3. Capital Assets (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

   Beginning        Ending
     Balance        Increases       Decreases         Balance     

Capital assets, not being
 depreciated
  Land $ 56,175 $ 139,288 $ -     $ 195,463
  Construction in progress                     -                    43,604                     -                        43,604

    Total capital assets, not
     depreciated $               56,175 $              182,892 $                   -     $               239,067

Capital assets being depreciated
  Buildings $ 7,228,125 $ 46,085 $ -     $ 7,274,210
  Landfill 2,333,430 11,387 -     2,344,817
  Machinery, furniture, and
   equipment              8,687,690                184,681                   8,760                8,863,611

    Total capital assets being
     depreciated $            18,249,245 $            242,153 $                 8,760 $            18,482,638

Less:  accumulated depreciation
 for
  Buildings $ 1,945,224 $ 221,353 $ -     $ 2,166,577
  Landfill 1,466,385 74,056 -     1,540,441
  Machinery and equipment                3,601,084                 592,374                    8,760                 4,184,698

    Total accumulated
     depreciation $              7,012,693 $              887,783 $                 8,760 $             7,891,716

    Total capital assets,
     depreciated, net $            11,236,552 $            (645,630) $                   -     $           10,590,922

      Business-Type Activities
       Capital Assets, Net $            11,292,727 $             (462,738) $                   -     $            10,829,989
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Assets

3. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government
as follows:

Governmental Activities
  General government $ 912,676
  Public safety 774,507
  Highways and streets, including depreciation of infrastructure assets 1,869,300
  Human services 342,664
  Health 1,563
  Culture and recreation 3,076
  Conservation 9,590
  Capital assets held by the County’s internal service funds are charged
   to the various functions based on their usage of the assets        419,300

      Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 4,332,676

Business-Type Activities
  Nursing home $ 69,878
  Solid waste 765,139
  Congregate housing 50,729
  Other enterprise fund                     2,037

      Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities $                 887,783

B. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2002, is as follows:

1. Due To/From Other Funds

                 Receivable Fund                                    Payable Fund                         Amount     

General Human Services $ 430
Other Governmental 48,355
Internal Service 18,700
Congregate Housing                        25

    Total Due to General Fund $                  67,510
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

B. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

1. Due To/From Other Funds (Continued) 

                 Receivable Fund                                    Payable Fund                         Amount     

Road and Bridge General $ 822
Other Governmental                     62,407

    Total Due to Road and Bridge
     Fund $                  63,229

Improvement Solid Waste $                 317,289

Other Governmental Other Governmental $                66,123

Congregate Housing Human Services $                  5,457

Internal Service Funds General $ 27,900
Road and Bridge                    35,800

    Total Due to Internal Service Funds $                63,700

      Total To/From Other Funds $ 583,308

2. Advances From/To Other Funds

                 Receivable Fund                                    Payable Fund                         Amount     

General Ditch $ 93,238
Internal Service Funds                   31,600

    Total Due to General Fund $              124,838

Other Governmental Other Governmental                  60,712

Nursing Home Congregate Housing                   46,764

      Total From/To Other Funds $                232,314
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

B. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers (Continued)

3. Due To/From Primary Government and Component Units 

                Receivable Entity                                   Payable Entity                            Amount     

Component Unit - Area Ice Arena Primary Government - General Fund $                 69,994

4. Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2002, consisted of the following:

Transfers to General Fund from
 other governmental funds $                50,000 Provide funds for capital outlay

Transfers to Human Services Fund
 from other governmental funds $              150,000 Provide funding

Transfers to Improvement Fund from
 Solid Waste Fund $                317,289 Provide funds for capital outlay

Transfers to nonmajor governmental
 funds from
  General Fund $               58,098 Returned unused funds
  Human Services Fund 150,000 Returned funding
  Other nonmajor governmental funds                  193,566 Provide funds for capital outlay

    Total transfers to nonmajor
     governmental funds $               401,664

Transfers to Congregate Housing Fund
 from
  Revolving Loan Fund $ 6,331 Miscellaneous

    Nursing Home Fund                   48,930 Provide funding

    Total transfers to Congregate
     Housing Fund $               55,261

Transfers to internal services funds from
  General Fund $ 45,200 Provide funding
  General capital assets            2,160,300 Capital assets for startup

    Total transfers to internal services
     funds $        2,205,500

      Total Interfund Transfers $             3,179,714
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

B. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

4. Interfund Transfers (Continued) 

In the fund financial statements, total transfers in of $3,179,714 are greater than total
transfers out of $1,019,414 because of the treatment of transfers of capital assets to the
internal services funds.  During the year, existing capital assets related to
governmental funds, with a book value of $2,160,300, were transferred to internal
services funds.  No amounts were reported in the governmental funds as the amount
did not involve the transfer of financial resources.  However, the internal services
funds did report a transfer in for the capital resources received.

5. Transfers To/From Component Units

Transfer to Housing and Redevelopment Authority (component
 unit) from nonmajor governmental funds (primary government) $             60,000

C. Liabilities

1. Payables

Payables at December 31, 2002, were as follows:

 Governmental    Business-Type
     Activities             Activities      

Accounts $ 814,143 $ 181,603
Salaries 281,973 8,685
Contracts 751,103 -     
Due to other governments                     113,623                          2,126

      Total Payables $                 1,960,842 $                  192,414

2. Construction Commitments

The government has active construction projects as of December 31, 2002.  The
projects include the following (amounts in thousands):
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities

2. Construction Commitments (Continued) 
 

      Remaining
  Spent-to-Date      Commitment    

Governmental activities
  Jail construction $ 250 $ 2,500
  Government center   1,100 1,750
  Roads and bridges      195 3,250
  Sanitary sewer 1,077    525
Business-type activities
  Landfill expansion -     1,200

3. Other Post-Employment Benefits

Retirees

The County provides post-retirement health care benefits for certain retirees and their
dependents.  This benefit is provided based on County Board Resolution 95-101.  The
County contributes $50 a month per participant for health insurance.  Retirees may not
convert the benefit into an in-lieu payment to secure coverage under independent
plans.

As of year-end, the County has 27 eligible participants.  The County finances the plan
on a pay-as-you-go basis.  During 2002, the County expended $14,340 for these
benefits. 

Elected Officials

After their County service, elected County officials are entitled to one year of paid
health insurance for every four years of service to the County.  This benefit is provided
pursuant to County Board Resolution 99-045.

This benefit is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.  Minnesota County has two former
elected officials eligible for this benefit.  The County expended $4,800 for this benefit
in 2002.
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities (Continued)

4. Leases

Operating Leases

The County leases office space under noncancelable operating leases.  Total costs for
such leases were $135,200 for the year ended December 31, 2002.  The future
minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31       Amount      

       2002 $ 137,300
      2003 137,800
      2004 138,400

Capital Leases

The County has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition
of certain equipment.  These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting
purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future
minimum lease payments as of the inception date.  These capital leases consist of the
following at December 31, 2002:

   Payment
                Lease                  Maturity  Installments    Amount      Original      Balance   

Governmental Activities
  2001 telecommunication
   equipment        2007    Monthly $ 2,092 $ 104,397 $ 89,318
  2002 skid steer loader        2003    Monthly 1,625 29,992 22,191
  2002 trailer        2004    Monthly 750 19,415             13,032

      Total Governmental
       Activities Capital
       Leases $           124,541
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities

4. Leases

Capital Leases (Continued)

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum
lease payments as of December 31, 2002, were as follows:

   Year Ending       Governmental
   December 31         Activities       

         2003 $ 56,618 
         2004 29,289 
         2005 24,743 
         2006 24,743 
         2007                            4,125 

    Total minimum lease payments $ 139,518 

Less:  amount representing interest                     (14,977)

      Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $                     124,541 

5. Short-Term Debt

The County issued and repaid $1,000,000 of tax anticipation certificates during the
year ended December 31, 2002.  The purpose of this short-term debt is to provide
liquidity for governmental operations financed by property taxes, which are collected
in semi-annual payments.
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities (Continued)

6. Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities

  Outstanding
     Original       Balance

       Final   Installment         Interest          Issue  December 31,
        Type of Indebtedness            Maturity       Amounts        Rates (%)        Amount             2002       

General obligation bonds
  1995 G.O. Capital
   Improvement Bonds        2015     $90,000 -

    $105,000      2.75-5.20 $ 2,500,000 $ 1,845,000 
  1997A G.O. Capital
   Improvement Bonds        2007     $50,000 -

    $70,000      3.50-5.40 570,000 320,000 

  1998 G.O. Refunding Bonds        2018     $100,000-
     $210,000      4.20-5.50 2,040,000 2,000,000 

  2000A G.O. Capital
   Improvement Bonds        2015      $80,000-

    $350,000      4.00-4.65 4,000,000 3,920,000 

  2001 G.O. Capital
   Improvement Bonds        2007     $125,000-

    $135,000      4.35-4.65 775,000 775,000 

  2001 G.O. Improvement
   Bonds        2003     $90,000-

    $95,000           5.00 185,000 185,000 

  2002A G.O. Capital
   Improvement Bonds        2018     $35,000-

    $55,000      4.00-5.25 680,000 680,000 

  2002B G.O. Capital
   Improvement Bonds        2019      $95,000-

    $120,000      4.20-5.00 1,820,000 1,820,000 

  2002C G.O. Capital
   Improvement Bonds        2023     $155,000-

    $190,000           5.20              865,000                865,000 

    Total general obligation
     bonds $         13,435,000 $ 12,410,000 

Less:  unamortized discount           (20,125)

      Total General Obligation
       Bonds, Net $           12,389,875 
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities

6. Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities (Continued)

  Outstanding
     Original       Balance

       Final   Installment         Interest          Issue  December 31,
        Type of Indebtedness            Maturity       Amounts        Rates (%)        Amount             2002       

Special assessment bonds
 with government commitment
  1999 G.O. Drainage Bonds        2020      $30,000-

     $50,000     4.12-5.00 $              710,000 $             640,000 

General obligation capital notes
  2002 G.O. Capital Equipment
   Notes        2007     $125,000-

    $135,000     2.50-3.75 $            535,000 $ 535,000 

Less:  unamortized discount                 (5,323)

      Total General Obligation
       Capital Notes, Net $              529,677 

Loans Payable

In 1999, the County entered into a loan agreement with the Minnesota Department of
Agriculture for financing of failing septic systems.  The loan is secured by special
assessments placed on the individual parcels requesting repair of a failing septic
system.

  Outstanding
     Original       Balance

       Final   Installment         Interest          Issue  December 31,
        Type of Indebtedness            Maturity       Amounts        Rates (%)        Amount             2002       

1999 septic loans       2013      $2,200-
    $12,000         0.00 $ 50,000 $             50,000
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities

6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

  Outstanding
     Original       Balance

       Final   Installment         Interest          Issue  December 31,
        Type of Indebtedness            Maturity       Amounts        Rates (%)        Amount             2002       

1998 G.O. Governmental
 Housing Bonds       2027     $15,000-

   $105,000          6.05 $ 1,455,000 $ 1,395,000 

Less:  unamortized discount        (12,125)

      General Obligation Bonds,
       Net $        1,382,875

7. Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements at December 31, 2002, were as follows:

Governmental Activities

     Year Ending    General Obligation Bonds    Special Assessment Bonds             Capital Notes                             Loans                 
     December 31        Principal        Interest       Principal      Interest       Principal      Interest       Principal      Interest    

           2003 $ 770,000 $ 493,884 $ 35,000 $ 29,043 $ 10,000 $ 52,475 $ -     $ -     
           2004 760,000 467,656 35,000 27,572 127,000 4,600 -     -     
           2005 820,000 430,341 35,000 26,102 131,000 2,150 -     -     
           2006 855,000 405,720 35,000 24,624 133,000 1,250 2,235 -     
           2007 885,000 374,935 35,000 23,119 134,000 875 2,780 -     
      2008-2012 3,855,000 1,625,155 180,000 86,977 -     -     12,107 -     
      2013-2017 3,390,000 840,278 185,000 40,476 -     -     32,878 -     
      2018-2022 870,000 443,978 100,000 23,875 -     -     -     -     
      2023-2027           205,000                5,330                 -                     -                     -                      -                      -                     -     

          Total $        12,410,000 $          5,087,277 $           640,000 $           281,788 $           535,000 $              61,350 $             50,000 $               -     
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities

7. Debt Service Requirements (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

      Year Ended             General Obligation             
     December 31           Principal             Interest      

           2003 $ 25,000 $ 84,397
           2004 25,000 82,885
           2005 30,000 81,372
           2006 30,000 79,558
           2007 30,000 77,742
      2008-2012 195,000 357,555
      2013-2017 280,000 276,307
      2018-2022 300,000 247,675
      2023-2027                   480,000                    81,213

           Total $                  1,395,000 $             1,368,704

8. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2002, was as follows:

Governmental Activities

    Beginning        Ending           Due Within
      Balance         Additions     Reductions        Balance            One Year      

Bonds payable
  General obligation bonds $ 9,580,000 $ 3,365,000 $ 535,000 $ 12,410,000 $ 740,000
  G.O. capital notes -     535,000 -      535,000 10,000
  Special assessment debt with
   government commitment 675,000 -      35,000 640,000 35,000
  Less:  deferred amounts for
   for issuance discounts                      -                      (26,618)                  (1,170)                  (25,448)                         -     

      Total bonds payable $ 10,255,000 $ 3,873,382 $ 568,830 $ 13,559,552 $ 785,000

Capital leases 126,893 49,407 51,759 124,541 51,255
Claims and judgments 191,527 1,280,765 1,339,526 132,766 -     
Loans payable -     50,000 -      50,000 -     
Compensated absences                 1,257,228                 92,095                      -                      1,349,323                      237,109

      Governmental Activity
       Long-Term Liabilities $            11,830,648 $            5,345,649 $             1,960,115 $              15,216,182 $                 1,073,364
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities

8. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

    Beginning        Ending           Due Within
      Balance         Additions     Reductions        Balance            One Year      

Bonds payable
  General obligation bonds $ 1,420,000 $ -     $ 25,000 $ 1,395,000 $ 25,000
  Less:  deferred amounts for
   issuance costs                 (12,610)                    -                       (485)                  (12,125)                          -     

    Total bonds payable $ 1,407,390 $ -     $ 24,515 $ 1,382,875 $ 25,000

Estimated liability for landfill
  Closure/postclosure 92,469 4,198 -      96,667 -     
  Compensated absences                    175,695                      5,136                     -                        180,831                       82,514

      Business-Type Activity
       Long-Term Liabilities $             1,675,554 $               9,334 $             24,515 $           1,660,373 $                   107,514

Long-term liabilities for internal service funds are included as part of the above totals
based upon their activity.  For internal service funds, $5,100 of compensated absences
and $132,766 of claims and judgments payable are included in the amounts for the
governmental activities at year-end.

9. Prior Year’s Refunded Debt

In prior years, the County has defeased various bond issues by creating separate
irrevocable trust funds.  New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used
to purchase U.S. government securities that were placed in the trust funds.  The
investments and the earnings on the investments are sufficient to fully service the
defeased debt until the debt is called or matures.  For financial reporting purposes, the
debt has been considered defeased and, therefore, removed as a liability from the
County’s government-wide financial statements.  As of December 31, 2002, the
amount of defeased debt outstanding not included in the financial statements was
$1,875,000.
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities (Continued)

10. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

A. Plan Description

All full-time and certain part-time employees of Minnesota County are covered
by defined benefit pension plans administered by the Public Employees
Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA).  The PERA administers the Public
Employees Retirement Fund, the Public Employees Police and Fire Fund, and the
Public Employees Correctional Fund, which are cost-sharing, multiple-employer
retirement plans.  These plans are established and administered in accordance
with Minn. Stat. chs. 353 and 356.

Public Employees Retirement Fund members belong to either the Coordinated
Plan or the Basic Plan.  Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social
Security, and Basic Plan members are not.  All new members must participate in
the Coordinated Plan.  All police officers, firefighters, and peace officers who
qualify for membership by statute are covered by the Public Employees Police
and Fire Fund.  Members who are employed in a county correctional institution
as a correctional guard or officer, a joint jailer/dispatcher, or as a supervisor of
correctional guards or officers or of joint jailers/dispatchers and are directly
responsible for the direct security, custody, and control of the county correctional
institution and its inmates, are covered by the Public Employees Correctional
Fund.

The PERA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members
and benefits to survivors upon death of eligible members.  Benefits are
established by state statute and vest after three years of credited service.  The
defined retirement benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for
any five successive years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at
termination of service.

Two methods are used to compute benefits for Coordinated and Basic Plan
members.  The retiring member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual
formula (Method I) or a level accrual formula (Method 2).  Under Method 1, the
annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.2 percent of average salary for
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3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities

10. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

A. Plan Description (Continued)

each of the first ten years of service and 2.7 percent for each remaining year.  For
a Coordinated Plan member, the annuity accrual rate is 1.2 percent of average
salary for each of the first ten years and 1.7 percent for each remaining year.

Under Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary for
Basic Plan members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated Plan members for each year
of service.  For Public Employees Police and Fire Fund members, the annuity
accrual rate is 3 percent for each year of service.  For Public Employees
Correctional Fund members, the annuity accrual rate is 1.9 percent for each year
of service.

For Basic and Coordinated Plan members hired prior to July 1, 1989, whose
annuity is calculated using Method 1, all Public Employees Police and Fire Fund
members, and all Public Employees Correctional Fund members, a full annuity
is available when age plus years of service equal 90. Normal retirement age is
55 for Public Employees Police and Fire Fund and Public Employees
Correctional Fund members and 65 for Basic and Coordinated Plan members
hired prior to July 1, 1989.  Normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social
Security benefits capped at 66 for Coordinated Plan members hired on or after
July 1, 1989.  A reduced retirement annuity is also available to eligible members
seeking early retirement.

There are different types of annuities available to members upon retirement.  A
single-life annuity is a lifetime annuity that ceases upon the death of the
retiree--no survivor annuity is payable.  Also available are various types of joint
and survivor annuity options that will be payable over joint lives.  Members may
also leave their contributions in the fund upon termination of public service in
order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age.  Refunds of contributions
are available at any time to members who leave public service, but before
retirement benefits begin.
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C. Liabilities

10. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

A. Plan Description (Continued)

The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current
provisions and apply to active plan participants.  Vested, terminated employees
who are entitled to benefits but are not yet receiving them are bound by the
provisions in effect at the time they last terminated public service.

The PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees
Retirement Fund, the Public Employees Police and Fire Fund, and the Public
Employees Correctional Fund.  That report may be obtained on the web at
mnpera.org, by writing to PERA at 60 Empire Drive, Suite 200, Saint Paul,
Minnesota 55103-2088, or by calling 651-296-7460 or 1-800-652-9026.

B. Funding Policy

Minn. Stat. ch. 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions.
These statutes are established and amended by the state legislature.  The County
makes annual contributions to the pension plans equal to the amount required by
state statutes.  Public Employees Retirement Fund Basic Plan members and
Coordinated Plan members are required to contribute 9.10 and 5.10 percent,
respectively, of their annual covered salary.  Public Employees Police and Fire
Fund members are required to contribute 6.20 percent of their annual covered
salary.  Public Employees Correctional Fund members are required to contribute
5.83 percent of their annual covered salary.

The County is required to contribute the following percentages of annual covered
payroll:

Public Employees Retirement Fund
  Basic Plan members  11.78%
  Coordinated Plan members 5.53
Public Employees Police and Fire Fund 9.30
Public Employees Correctional Fund 8.75
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C. Liabilities

10. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

B. Funding Policy (Continued)

The County’s contributions for the years ending December 31, 2002, 2001, and
2000, for the Public Employees Retirement Fund, the Public Employees Police
and Fire Fund, and the Public Employees Correctional Fund, were:

       Public       Public         Public
   Employees   Employees         Employees  
   Retirement   Police and    Correctional
        Fund           Fire Fund           Fund        

2002 $ 508,051 $ 92,609 $ 43,615
2001 472,560 87,151      60,183
2000 430,391 85,273      43,683

These contribution amounts are equal to the contractually required contributions for
each year as set by state statute.

11. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its
landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure.  Although closure and
postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops
accepting waste, the Board reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care
costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each
balance sheet date.  The $96,667 landfill closure and postclosure care liability at
December 31, 2002, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the
use of 4.5 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfill.  The County will recognize
the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $2,052,303 as the
remaining estimated capacity is filled.  These amounts are based on what it would cost
to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2001.  The Board expects to close the
landfill in 2119.  Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology,
or changes in regulations.
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C. Liabilities

11. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs (Continued)

The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual
contributions to a trust to finance closure and postclosure care.  The Board is in
compliance with these requirements and, at December 31, 2002, investments of
$926,168 are held for these purposes.  These are reported as restricted assets on the
balance sheet.  Minnesota County expects that future inflation costs will be paid from
investment earnings on these annual contributions.  However, if investment earnings
are inadequate or additional postclosure care requirements are determined (due to
changes in technology or applicable laws and regulations, for example), these costs
may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users or from future tax revenue.

12. Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or natural disasters
for which the County carries commercial insurance.  The County has entered into a
joint powers agreement with other Minnesota counties to form the Minnesota
Counties Insurance Trust (MCIT).  The County is a member of both the MCIT
Workers’ Compensation and Property and Casualty Divisions.  The County
self-insures for employee health and dental coverage.  For other risk, the County
carries commercial insurance.  There were no significant reductions in insurance from
the prior year.  The amount of settlements did not exceed insurance coverage for the
past three fiscal years.

The Workers’ Compensation Division of MCIT is self-sustaining based on the
contributions charged, so that total contributions plus compounded earnings on these
contributions will equal the amount needed to satisfy claims liabilities and other
expenses.  MCIT participates in the Workers’ Compensation Reinsurance Association
with coverage at $700,000 and $720,000 per claim in 2002 and 2003, respectively.
Should the MCIT Workers’ Compensation Division liabilities exceed assets, MCIT
may assess the County in a method and amount to be determined by MCIT.
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12. Risk Management (Continued)

The Property and Casualty Division of MCIT is self-sustaining and the County pays
an annual premium to cover current and future losses.  The MCIT carries reinsurance
for its property lines to protect against catastrophic losses.  Should the MCIT Property
and Casualty Division liabilities exceed assets, MCIT may assess the County in a
method and amount to be determined by MCIT.

The County established a limited risk management program for health and dental
coverages in 1992.  Premiums are paid into the Self-Insurance Internal Services Fund
by all other funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves, and administrative
costs of the program.  The County has retained risk up to a $50,000 stop-loss per
family per year ($1,500,000 aggregate) for the health plan.  There is a maximum claim
limit of $750 per person per year for the dental plan.

Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.  Liabilities include an amount for
claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR’s).  The result of the process
to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends on many complex
factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards.
Accordingly, claims are re-evaluated periodically to consider the  effects of inflation,
recent claim settlement trends (including frequency and amount of pay-outs), and
other economic and social factors.  Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during
the past two years are as follows:

    Year Ended December 31   
       2002         2001       

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year $ 191,527 $ 160,305 
Incurred claims (including IBNR’s) 1,280,765 1,309,639 
Claim payments      (1,339,526)          (1,278,417)

      Unpaid Claims, End of Fiscal Year $ 132,766 $              191,527 



MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Page 85

3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities (Continued)

13. Conduit Debt

In 1999, the County issued $80,000 of industrial development revenue bonds to
provide financial assistance to SMB Cooperative for the acquisition and construction
of plant facilities deemed to be in the public interest.  The bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from revenues of the cooperative.  Neither
the County, the state, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner
for repayment of the bonds.  Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in
the accompanying financial statements.  As of December 31, 2002, the outstanding
principal amount payable was $60,000.

4. Summary of Significant Contingencies and Other Items

A. Subsequent Events

On February 24, 2003, the County issued $1,500,000 of revenue bonds to finance an
upgrade of the County’s landfill.  The interest rate on the bonds range from
4.25 - 5.125 percent, and the maturity date is February 2017.

B. Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amount,
if any, of the expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at
this time, although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits.  Although the outcome of these lawsuits is
not presently determinable, in the opinion of the County Attorney, the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the
government.
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C. Joint Ventures

Minnesota Central Community Corrections Agency

The Minnesota Central Community Corrections Agency was established by Minnesota and
North Star Counties in 1974 under the authority of the Joint Powers Act, pursuant to Minn.
Stat. § 471.59, for the purpose of administering, budgeting, staffing, and operating
correctional services.  Effective January 1, 1992, Western County became a member of the
Agency.  The governing board is composed of five county commissioners from each of the
participating counties.  Minnesota County maintains the accounting records of the Agency.

The Minnesota Central Community Corrections Agency is funded through state grants and
contributions from its member counties.  Minnesota County had expenditures of $59,217
for community corrections to the agency for 2002.

In the event of dissolution of the Agency, the unexpended balance of monies and assets
held by the Agency will be divided between the counties in proportion to their
contributions.

Complete financial information can be obtained from:

Minnesota Central Community Corrections Agency
Minnesota County Courthouse
100 Main Street
Any City, Minnesota  55555

Regional Minnesota Office of Job Training

Minnesota, Western, Southern, North Star, and Northern Counties entered into a joint
powers agreement pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 471.59 for the purpose of developing and
implementing a private and public job training program.  The United States Congress,
through the Job Training Partnership Act of 1982, authorized states to establish “service
delivery areas” to provide programs to achieve full employment through the use of grants.
The counties identified above are defined as a service delivery area, and the Regional
Minnesota Office of Job Training is designated as the grant recipient and administrator for
the service delivery area.  The County is not a funding mechanism for this organization.
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C. Joint Ventures

Regional Minnesota Office of Job Training (Continued)

The governing body is composed of seven members, one from the board of commissioners
of each of the participating counties.

A summary of the financial information of the Regional Minnesota Office of Job
Training’s funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, excluding general capital assets
of $499,288 and general long-term debt of $454,469, was:

Total Assets $ 1,641,564
Total Liabilities 296,808
Total Fund Equity 1,344,756
Total Revenues 6,117,446
Total Expenditures/Expenses 5,666,289
Increase (Decrease) in Fund Equity 451,157

Separate financial information can be obtained from:

Northeast Minnesota Office of Job Training
200 North South Street
Ice City, Minnesota  55559

Joint County Natural Resources Board

The Joint County Natural Resources Board was formed in 1985 under the authority of the
Joint Powers Act, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 471.59, and includes Minnesota, Western,
Southern, Middle, North Star, and Northern Counties.  The purpose of the Natural
Resources Board is to gather information on and formulate policies for the development,
utilization, and protection of natural resources in this area of Minnesota and to ensure that
there is an inter-related plan for the use and protection of both public and private resources.

Control of the Natural Resources Board is vested in the Joint County Natural Resources
Board, which is composed of at least one resident of each county appointed by their
respective county board, as provided in the Natural Resources Board’s bylaws.
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C. Joint Ventures

Joint County Natural Resources Board (Continued)

In the event of dissolution of the Joint County Natural Resources Board, the net assets of
the Natural Resources Board at that time shall be distributed to the respective member
counties in proportion to the contribution of each.  Minnesota County provided $2,000 to
this organization during 2002.

The Natural Resources Board has no long-term debt.  Financing is provided by
appropriations from member counties.  Complete financial information can be obtained
from:

Natural Resources Board
Box 10000
Northern City, Minnesota  56666

D. Jointly-Governed Organizations

Minnesota County, in conjunction with other governmental entities and various private
organizations, have formed the jointly-governed organizations listed below:

Family Service Collaborative 

The Collaborative was established to create opportunities to enhance family strengths and
support through service coordination and access to informal communication. Minnesota
County has no operational or financial control over the Collaborative.  The County has
shown $125,200 expenditures in 2002 related to the Collaborative.  

Counties Computer Cooperative

The Cooperative was established to provide computer programming to member counties.
During the year, Minnesota County expended $30,550 to the Cooperative.
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5. Component Unit Disclosures

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

In addition to those identified in Note 1, the County’s discretely presented component units
have the following significant accounting policies.

Reporting Entities

The Housing and Redevelopment Authority is governed by a five-member board of
directors who are appointed by the County Board.

The Area Ice Arena is governed by a seven-member board of directors, one appointed by
each of the Cities of Any City and Hometown, four appointed by the Minnesota County
Board, and one member is appointed on a rotating basis by the West and East School
Districts.

The Lake Project Improvement District is governed by a five-member board.  The District
is a component unit because it is financially dependent upon the County.

Because of the significance of their financial relationship, Minnesota County considers
these entities major component units.

 
Basis of Presentation

The Area Ice Arena does not prepare separate financial statements.  The Arena presents its
one fund as a governmental fund.

Basis of Accounting

The Area Ice Arena General Fund is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of
accounting.
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A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Pooled Investments

All cash of the components units is on deposit with the Minnesota County Treasurer and
included within its pooled cash and investments.

B.  Detailed Notes on All Funds

1. Assets

Receivables

Receivables as of December 31, 2002, year-end for each discretely presented
component unit, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are
as follows:

  Amounts Not
  Scheduled for
     Collection

  Housing and     Area Ice        Total      During the
Redevelopment       Arena         Receivables  Subsequent Year

Accounts $ -     $ 25,531 $ 25,531 $ -     
Rent 3,444 -     3,444 -     
Due from other governments                      315                   69,553                   69,868                        -     

   
      Total Component Units $                  3,759 $             95,084 $                98,843 $                      -     

Capital Assets

Component unit capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2002, was as
follows:
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B. Detailed Notes on All Funds

1. Assets

Capital Assets (Continued)

    Beginning         Ending
      Balance            Increases         Decreases          Balance      

Capital assets, not being
 depreciated
  Land
  Housing and Redevelopment
   Authority $                   70,500 $                      -      $                    -     $                    70,500

Capital assets being
 depreciated
  Buildings
    Housing and Redevelopment
     Authority $ 986,319 $ -      $ -     $ 986,319
    Area Ice Arena 920,950 -      -     920,950

    Total buildings $ 1,907,269 $ -      $       -     $ 1,907,269

Machinery, furniture, and
 equipment
  Housing and Redevelopment
   Authority $ 54,646 $ 17,849 $ 12,500 $ 59,995
  Area Ice Arena 220,180 10,750 5,087 225,843
  Lake Project Improvement
   District                       -                         23,500                     -                         23,500

    Total machinery, furniture,
     and equipment $      274,826 $        52,099 $ 17,587 $ 309,338

    Total capital assets being
     depreciated $ 2,182,095 $ 52,099 $ 17,587 $ 2,216,607
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1. Assets

Capital Assets (Continued)

    Beginning         Ending
      Balance            Increases         Decreases          Balance      

Less:  accumulated depreciation
 for
  Buildings
    Housing and Redevelopment
     Authority $ 453,701 $ 37,029 $ -     $ 490,730
    Area Ice Arena                      92,095                       30,698                      -                        122,793

    Total buildings $                   545,796 $                     67,727 $                   -     $                613,523

  Machinery and equipment
    Housing and Redevelopment
     Authority $ 25,811 $ 9,257 $ 12,500 $ 22,568
    Area Ice Arena        66,054 22,018 5,087 82,985
    Lake Project Improvement
     District                         -                              500                       -                             500

    Total machinery, furniture,
     and equipment $     91,865 $      31,775 $ 17,587 $ 106,053

    Total accumulated
     depreciation $        637,661 $     99,502 $ 17,587 $ 719,576

    Total capital assets,
     depreciated, net $                 1,544,434 $                  (47,403) $                    -     $             1,497,031

      Total Capital Assets, Net $ 1,614,934 $                 (47,403) $ -     $ 1,567,531

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the discretely presented
component units as follows:

Housing and Redevelopment Authority $ 46,286
Area Ice Arena 52,716
Lake project improvement district                   500

      Total Depreciation Expense $           99,502
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B. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

2. Liabilities

Payables

Payables at December 31, 2002, were as follows:

      Housing            Total
          and  Lake Project        Discretely
Redevelopment       Area Ice Improvement        Presented
     Authority             Arena             District       Component Units 

Accounts $ 4,518 $ 4,287 $ 20,999 $ 29,804
Salaries -     4,302 -     4,302
Due to other governments 49,565 -     -     49,565
Overdraft                       -                           -                       49,382                        49,382

      Total Payables $                54,083 $                   8,589 $                70,381 $                    133,053

Construction Commitments

The component units had active construction projects as of December 31, 2002.  The
projects include the following (amounts in thousands):

       Remaining
Spent-to-Date      Commitment     

Discretely presented component units
  Lake project $ 15 $    790

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2002, for the Area Ice Arena consists of
the following:

 
     Outstanding

     Original          Balance
      Final        Installment        Interest             Issue         December 31,

Type of Indebtedness    Maturity       Amounts       Rates (%)        Amount                2002          

1998 G.O. Arena
 Revenue Notes       2008 $ 44,145         5.64 $ 650,000 $ 412,558
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B. Detailed Notes on All Funds

2. Liabilities (Continued)

Debt Service Requirements

Revenue note debt service requirements to maturity for the Area Ice Arena are as
follows:

  Year Ending
  December 31     Principal         Interest     

2003 $ 65,898 $  22,391
2004 69,667 18,622
2005 73,652 14,638
2006 77,864 10,426
2007 82,318 5,972
2008                 43,159                      986

Total $ 412,558 $ 73,035

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of the long-term debt transactions of the Arena for the
year ended December 31, 2002.

  Beginning       Ending      Due Within
    Balance     Additions   Reductions      Balance       One Year   

Notes payable
  G.O. revenue notes $ 474,928 $ -     $ 62,370 $ 412,558 $ 65,898
Compensated absences 7,202 1,020 -     8,222 -     
Advance from other
 agencies              260,212                  -                    40,000                220,212                    -     

      Area Ice Arena
       Long-Term Liabilities $           742,342 $            1,020 $           102,370 $             640,992 $              65,898
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 2,776,545 $ 3,676,545 $ 3,698,719 $ 22,174
  Licenses and permits 55,570 65,570 74,700 9,130
  Intergovernmental 1,296,082 1,485,882 1,411,282 (74,600)
  Charges for services 1,411,260 1,511,260 1,646,062 134,802
  Fines and forfeits 130,000 130,000 174,160 44,160
  Gifts and contributions 2,850 2,850 9,823 6,973
  Investment earnings 250,000 400,000 564,845 164,845
  Miscellaneous 216,428 591,428 341,568 (249,860)

      Total Revenues $ 6,138,735 $ 7,863,535 $ 7,921,159 $ 57,624

Expenditures
  Current
    General government
      Commissioners $ 150,000 $ 176,000 $ 176,943 $ (943)
      Courts 300,000 375,000 369,903 5,097
      County administration 190,000 265,000 106,771 158,229
      Personnel 30,000 37,500 37,130 370
      County auditor 275,000 325,000 285,394 39,606
      License bureau 60,000 77,500 74,929 2,571
      County treasurer 130,000 160,000 154,669 5,331
      County assessor 225,000 300,000 295,818 4,182
      Elections -     5,000 3,370 1,630
      Purchasing 150,000 250,000 180,704 69,296
      Remonumentation 35,000 40,000 35,403 4,597
      Data processing 100,000 200,000 185,148 14,852
      Attorney 250,000 300,000 296,819 3,181
      Law library 10,000 15,000 14,977 23
      Recorder 225,000 255,000 255,943 (943)
      Surveyor 4,000 4,000 3,663 337
      Planning and zoning 120,000 145,000 134,607 10,393
      Buildings and plant 45,000 50,000 52,708 (2,708)
      Maintenance 260,000 300,000 303,073 (3,073)
      Veterans service officer 75,000 90,000 89,105 895

    Total general government $ 2,634,000 $ 3,370,000 $ 3,057,077 $ 312,923
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Expenditures
  Current (Continued)
    Public safety
      Sheriff $ 1,000,000 $ 1,150,000 $ 1,225,635 $ (75,635)
      Boat and water safety 30,000 32,000 30,635 1,365
      Emergency services 125,000 160,000 156,819 3,181
      Coroner 20,000 20,000 17,875 2,125
      Law enforcement center 500,000 750,000 721,750 28,250
      Probation and parole 200,000 270,000 258,521 11,479

    Total public safety $ 1,875,000 $ 2,382,000 $ 2,411,235 $ (29,235)

    Health  
      Nursing service $ 900,000 $ 1,225,000 $ 1,206,334 $ 18,666

    Culture and recreation
      Historical society $ 51,000 $ 51,000 $ 50,680 $ 320
      Parks 50,000 70,000 65,385 4,615
      Senior citizens 22,000 22,000 22,532 (532)
      Regional library 200,000 275,000 268,646 6,354
      Arena 60,000 60,000 69,994 (9,994)
      Other 12,380 13,180 12,842 338

    Total culture and recreation $ 395,380 $ 491,180 $ 490,079 $ 1,101

    Conservation of natural resources
      Cooperative extension $ 150,000 $ 170,000 $ 170,121 $ (121)
      Soil and water conservation 150,000 190,000 125,463 64,537
      Agricultural inspections 8,355 8,355 8,417 (62)
      Agricultural society/county fair 26,000 26,000 25,678 322

    Total conservation of natural resources $ 334,355 $ 394,355 $ 329,679 $ 64,676
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Expenditures
  Current (Continued)
    Economic development
      Community development $ -     $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ -     

  Debt service
    Principal $ -     $ -     $ 37,575 $ (37,575)

    Interest $ -     $ -     $ 6,206 $ (6,206)

      Total Expenditures $ 6,138,735 $ 7,863,535 $ 7,539,185 $ 324,350

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ -     $ -     $ 381,974 $ 381,974

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -     $ -     $ 50,000 $ 50,000
  Transfers out -     -     (103,298) (103,298)
  Proceeds from sale of assets -     -     13,467 13,467

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ -     $ -     $ (39,831) $ (39,831)

 Net Change in Fund Balance $ -     $ -     $ 342,143 $ 342,143

Fund Balance - January 1 1,918,324 1,918,324 1,918,324 -     

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 1,918,324 $ 1,918,324 $ 2,260,467 $ 342,143
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 2,069,685 $ 2,069,685 $ 2,107,561 $ 37,876
  Intergovernmental 4,623,962 4,547,848 4,353,587 (194,261)
  Charges for services 484,000 484,000 74,852 (409,148)
  Miscellaneous 15,000 15,000 1,460 (13,540)

      Total Revenues $ 7,192,647 $ 7,116,533 $ 6,537,460 $ (579,073)

Expenditures
  Current
    Highway and streets
      Administration $ 587,143 $ 587,143 $ 301,348 $ 285,795
      Maintenance 1,930,580 1,930,580 1,779,445 151,135
      Construction 4,333,000 4,209,000 3,716,482 492,518
      Equipment maintenance and shop 389,810 389,810 507,145 (117,335)

    Total highways and streets $ 7,240,533 $ 7,116,533 $ 6,304,420 $ 812,113

  Debt service
    Principal -      -      269,184 (269,184)

    Interest -      -      5,749 (5,749)

      Total Expenditures $ 7,240,533 $ 7,116,533 $ 6,579,353 $ 537,180

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (47,886) $ -      $ (41,893) $ (41,893)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Proceeds from sale of assets $ -      $ -      $ 4,209 $ 4,209
  Compensation for the loss of capital assets -      -      5,572 5,572
  Proceeds from capital lease -      -      49,407 49,407

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ -      $ -      $ 59,188 $ 59,188

 Net Change in Fund Balance $ (47,886) $ -      $ 17,295 $ 17,295

Fund Balance - January 1 4,706,346 4,706,346 4,706,346 -      
Increase (decrease) in reserved for 
 inventories -      -      690 690

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 4,658,460 $ 4,706,346 $ 4,724,331 $ 17,985

Governments have the option of using the purchase or consumption 
methods for inventory.  This example shows the purchase method, 
which requires adjustment to the consumption method at the 
government-wide level.
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 3

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HUMAN SERVICES FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000 $ 1,518,490 $ 18,490
  Intergovernmental 3,661,508 3,661,508 3,662,148 640
  Charges for services 100,000 100,000 209,416 109,416
  Miscellaneous 150,000 150,000 311,427 161,427

      Total Revenues $ 5,411,508 $ 5,411,508 $ 5,701,481 $ 289,973

Expenditures
  Current
    Human services
      Income maintenance $ 1,179,709 $ 1,179,709 $ 1,192,560 $ (12,851)
      Social services 4,231,799 4,231,799 4,294,425 (62,626)

      Total Expenditures $ 5,411,508 $ 5,411,508 $ 5,486,985 $ (75,477)

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ -      $ -      $ 214,496 $ 214,496

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -      $ -      $ 150,000 $ 150,000
  Transfers out -      -      (150,000) (150,000)

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ -      $ -      $ -      $ -      

  Net Change in Fund Balance $ -      $ -      $ 214,496 $ 214,496

Fund Balance - January 1 242,308 242,308 242,308 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 242,308 $ 242,308 $ 456,804 $ 214,496
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 4

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
DITCH FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Special assessments $ 105,000 $ 105,000 $ 111,201 $ 6,201

Expenditures
  Current
    Conservation
      Ditch maintenance $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 46,399 $ (31,399)
  Debt service
    Principal 35,000 35,000 35,000 -      
    Interest 55,000 55,000 55,113 (113)

      Total Expenditures $ 105,000 $ 105,000 $ 136,512 $ (31,512)

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ -      $ -      $ (25,311) $ (25,311)

Fund Balance - January 1 (72,167) (72,167) (72,167) -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ (72,167) $ (72,167) $ (97,478) $ (25,311)
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

 NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

1. Budgetary information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for all governmental funds, except the Forfeited Tax Special Revenue Fund and
the permanent funds, which are not budgeted.  The capital projects funds adopt project-length
budgets.  All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

On or before mid-June of each year, all departments and agencies submit requests for
appropriations to the County Auditor so that a budget can be prepared.  Before October 31,
the proposed budget is presented to the County Board for review.  The Board holds public
hearings, and a final budget must be prepared and adopted no later that December 31.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department.  The County’s
department head may make transfers of appropriations within a department.  Transfers of
appropriations between departments require approval of the County Board.  The legal level
of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations) is the fund level.  During the year, the Board made the supplemental
budgetary appropriations of $1,724,800 in the General Fund.  Supplemental budgetary
appropriations in other funds were not considered significant.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds.  Encumbrances (e.g., purchase
orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and
do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reapportioned
and honored during the subsequent year.

2. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended December 31, 2002, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the Human
Services Special Revenue Fund and the Ditch Special Revenue Fund (the legal level of
budgetary control) by $75,477 and $31,512 respectively.  These over-expenditures were
funded by greater than anticipated revenues in the case of the Human Services Fund.



Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

This Page Intended To Be Blank



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

This Page Intended To Be Blank



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



Page 102

MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 1

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Total Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental

Revenue Service Projects Permanent Funds
(Statement 3) (Statement 5) (Statement 7) (Statement 9) (Exhibit 3)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 2,393,952 $ 1,038,487 $ 440,525 $ 78,850 $ 3,951,814
Petty cash and change funds 100 -      -      -      100
Undistributed cash in agency funds 5,166 10,250 -      -      15,416
Cash with escrow agent -      202,844 -      -      202,844
Investments -      -      500,000 100,530 600,530
Taxes receivable
  Current 321 13,790 -      -      14,111
  Prior 777 5,412 -      -      6,189
Special assessments receivable
  Current 2,942 -      -      -      2,942
  Prior 3,536 -      -      -      3,536
  Noncurrent 341,104 -      -      -      341,104
Accounts receivable 62,407 -      -      -      62,407
Accrued interest receivable -      263 5,575 75 5,913
Due from other funds -      66,123 -      -      66,123
Due from other governments 20,735 -      229,060 -      249,795
Advance to other funds -      60,712 -      -      60,712

      Total Assets $ 2,831,040 $ 1,397,881 $ 1,175,160 $ 179,455 $ 5,583,536

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 20,640 $ -      $ 19,512 $ 250 $ 40,402
  Salaries payable 8,209 -      -      -      8,209
  Contracts payable -      -      79,558 -      79,558
  Due to other funds 110,762 -      66,123 -      176,885
  Due to other governments 59,617 -      3,155 -      62,772
  Deferred revenue - unavailable 348,460 17,880 -      -      366,340
  Deferred revenue - unearned 59,156 -      -      -      59,156
  Advance from other funds -      -      60,712 -      60,712

    Total Liabilities $ 606,844 $ 17,880 $ 229,060 $ 250 $ 854,034

Fund Balances
  Reserved for encumbrances $ 35,000 $ -      $ -      $ -      $ 35,000
  Reserved for victim assistance 8,979 -      -      -      8,979
  Reserved for conservation -      -      -      7,355 7,355
  Reserved for gravel pit closure 254,914 -      -      -      254,914
  Reserved for endowments -      -      -      110,561 110,561
  Unreserved
    Designated for debt service -      1,380,001 -      -      1,380,001
    Designated for future expenditures 10,725 -      -      -      10,725
    Designated for capital improvements -      -      946,100 -      946,100
    Designated for landfill closure 1,587,197 -      -      -      1,587,197
    Undesignated 327,381 -      -      61,289 388,670

    Total Fund Balances $ 2,224,196 $ 1,380,001 $ 946,100 $ 179,205 $ 4,729,502

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,831,040 $ 1,397,881 $ 1,175,160 $ 179,455 $ 5,583,536
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 2

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Total Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental
Revenue Service Projects Permanent Funds

(Statement 4) (Statement 6) (Statement 8) (Statement 10) (Exhibit 5)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 152,727 $ 1,007,603 $ -      $ -      $ 1,160,330
  Special assessments 231,754 -      -      -      231,754
  Licenses and permits 33,966 -      -      -      33,966
  Intergovernmental 385,378 6,506 1,087,528 -      1,479,412
  Charges for services 17,507 -      -      -      17,507
  Fines and forfeits 5,000 -      -      -      5,000
  Gifts and contributions -      -      -      18,749 18,749
  Investment earnings 669 7,111 49,481 24,295 81,556
  Miscellaneous 32,558 67,339 554,040 -      653,937

      Total Revenues $ 859,559 $ 1,088,559 $ 1,691,049 $ 43,044 $ 3,682,211

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ 9,927 $ -      $ -      $ -      $ 9,927
    Public safety 61,339 -      -      -      61,339
    Sanitation 266,259 -      -      -      266,259
    Health 123,028 -      -      -      123,028
    Culture and recreation 205,149 -      -      6,207 211,356
    Conservation 99,542 -      -      250 99,792
    Economic development 50,250 -      -      -      50,250
  Capital outlay -      -      1,526,937 -      1,526,937
  Debt service
    Principal -      280,000 -      -      280,000
    Interest -      421,184 -      -      421,184

      Total Expenditures $ 815,494 $ 701,184 $ 1,526,937 $ 6,457 $ 3,050,072

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 44,065 $ 387,375 $ 164,112 $ 36,587 $ 632,139

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 208,098 $ 193,566 $ -      $ -      $ 401,664
  Transfers out (206,331) -      (193,566) -      (399,897)
  Loans issued 50,000 -      -      -      50,000
  Transfers to component unit (60,000) -      -      -      (60,000)

      Total Other Financing
       Sources (Uses) $ (8,233) $ 193,566 $ (193,566) $ -      $ (8,233)

  Net Change in Fund Balances $ 35,832 $ 580,941 $ (29,454) $ 36,587 $ 623,906

Fund Balance - January 1 2,188,364 799,060 975,554 142,618 4,105,596

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 2,224,196 $ 1,380,001 $ 946,100 $ 179,205 $ 4,729,502
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ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Environmental Victim Revolving
Health Assistance Loan

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 1,727,614 $ 5,900 $ 154,567
Petty cash and change funds -      -      -      
Undistributed cash in agency funds 2,841 -      -      
Taxes receivable
  Current 321 -      -      
  Prior -      -      -      
Special assessments receivable
  Current 2,942 -      -      
  Prior 3,536 -      -      
  Noncurrent -      -      341,104
Accounts receivable -      -      -      
Due from other governments 10,710 10,025 -      

      Total Assets $ 1,747,964 $ 15,925 $ 495,671

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 19,698 $ 8 $ -      
  Salaries payable 4,984 1,463 -      
  Due to other funds 33,855 -      -      
  Due to other governments 11,844 121 -      
  Deferred revenue - unavailable 6,799 -      341,104
  Deferred revenue - unearned 33,587 5,354 -      

    Total Liabilities $ 110,767 $ 6,946 $ 341,104

Fund Balances
  Reserved for encumbrances $ -      $ -      $ -      
  Reserved for victim assistance -      8,979 -      
  Reserved for gravel pit closure -      -      -      
  Unreserved
    Designated for future expenditures -      -      -      
    Designated for landfill closure 1,587,197 -      -      
    Undesignated 50,000 -      154,567

      Total Fund Balances $ 1,637,197 $ 8,979 $ 154,567

        Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,747,964 $ 15,925 $ 495,671
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Statement 3
(Continued)

Regional
Railroad Gravel Forfeited Total
Authority Tax Tax Development (Statement 1)

$ 143,080 $ 278,354 $ 38,712 $ 45,725 $ 2,393,952
100 -      -      -      100

2,325 -      -      -      5,166

-      -      -      -      321
777 -      -      -      777

-      -      -      -      2,942
-      -      -      -      3,536
-      -      -      -      341,104
-      62,407 -      -      62,407
-      -      -      -      20,735

$ 146,282 $ 340,761 $ 38,712 $ 45,725 $ 2,831,040

$ 934 $ -      $ -      $ -      $ 20,640
1,762 -      -      -      8,209
-      62,407 14,500 -      110,762
-      23,440 24,212 -      59,617
557 -      -      -      348,460

20,215 -      -      -      59,156

$ 23,468 $ 85,847 $ 38,712 $ -      $ 606,844

$ -      $ -      $ -      $ 35,000 $ 35,000
-      -      -      -      8,979
-      254,914 -      -      254,914

-      -      -      10,725 10,725
-      -      -      -      1,587,197

122,814 -      -      -      327,381

$ 122,814 $ 254,914 $ -      $ 45,725 $ 2,224,196

$ 146,282 $ 340,761 $ 38,712 $ 45,725 $ 2,831,040
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Environmental Victim
Health Assistance

Revenues
  Taxes $ 16,440 $ -      
  Special assessments 95,787 -      
  Licenses and permits 33,966 -      
  Intergovernmental 198,031 57,029
  Charges for services 13,598 3,909
  Fines and forfeits -      5,000
  Investment earnings -      -      
  Miscellaneous 4,528 -      

      Total Revenues $ 362,350 $ 65,938

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $ -      $ -      
    Public safety -      56,959
    Sanitation 160,376 -      
    Health 93,028 -      
    Culture and recreation -      -      
    Conservation 91,138 -      
    Economic development -      -      

      Total Expenditures $ 344,542 $ 56,959

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ 17,808 $ 8,979

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ 208,098 $ -      
  Transfers out (200,000) -      
  Loan issued 50,000 -      
  Transfers to component unit -      -      

      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 58,098 $ -      

  Net Change in Fund Balances $ 75,906 $ 8,979

Fund Balance - January 1 1,561,291 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 1,637,197 $ 8,979
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Statement 4
(Continued)

Regional
Revolving Railroad Gravel Total

Loan Authority Tax Development (Statement 2)

$ -      $ 133,857 $ 2,430 $ -      $ 152,727
135,967 -      -      -      231,754

-      -      -      -      33,966
-      23,344 -      106,974 385,378
-      -      -      -      17,507
-      -      -      -      5,000
-      669 -      -      669
-      28,030 -      -      32,558

$ 135,967 $ 185,900 $ 2,430 $ 106,974 $ 859,559

$ -      $ -      $ -      $ 9,927 $ 9,927
-      -      -      4,380 61,339

105,883 -      -      -      266,259
-      -      -      30,000 123,028
-      174,349 -      30,800 205,149
-      -      1,376 7,028 99,542
-      -      -      50,250 50,250

$ 105,883 $ 174,349 $ 1,376 $ 132,385 $ 815,494

$ 30,084 $ 11,551 $ 1,054 $ (25,411) $ 44,065

$ -      $ -      $ -      $ -      $ 208,098
(6,331) -      -      -      (206,331)

-      -      -      -      50,000
-      -      -      (60,000) (60,000)

$ (6,331) $ -      $ -      $ (60,000) $ (8,233)

$ 23,753 $ 11,551 $ 1,054 $ (85,411) $ 35,832

130,814 111,263 253,860 131,136 2,188,364

$ 154,567 $ 122,814 $ 254,914 $ 45,725 $ 2,224,196
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 5

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

County Courthouse General Sanitary Total
Jail Building Obligation Sewer (Statement 1)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 612,370 $ 140,641 $ 227,311 $ 58,165 $ 1,038,487
Undistributed cash in agency funds 5,874 4,376 -      -      10,250
Cash with escrow agent -      202,844 -      -      202,844
Taxes receivable
  Current 7,594 1,903 4,293 -      13,790
  Prior 1,701 885 2,826 -      5,412
Accrued interest receivable -      263 -      -      263
Due from other funds -      -      -      66,123 66,123
Advance to other funds -      -      -      60,712 60,712

      Total Assets $ 627,539 $ 350,912 $ 234,430 $ 185,000 $ 1,397,881

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Deferred revenue - unavailable $ 9,295 $ 1,466 $ 7,119 $ -      $ 17,880

Fund Balances
  Designated for debt service 618,244 349,446 227,311 185,000 1,380,001

      Total Liabilities and Fund
       Balances $ 627,539 $ 350,912 $ 234,430 $ 185,000 $ 1,397,881
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 6

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

County Courthouse General Sanitary Total
Jail Building Obligation Sewer (Statement 2)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 392,084 $ 153,696 $ 461,823 $ -      $ 1,007,603
  Intergovernmental 5,512 225 769 -      6,506
  Investment earnings -      7,111 -      -      7,111
  Miscellaneous 67,339 -      -      -      67,339

      Total Revenues $ 464,935 $ 161,032 $ 462,592 $ -      $ 1,088,559

Expenditures
  Debt service
    Principal $ 105,000 $ 40,000 $ 135,000 $ -      $ 280,000
    Interest 118,785 105,385 188,448 8,566 421,184

      Total Expenditures $ 223,785 $ 145,385 $ 323,448 $ 8,566 $ 701,184

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 241,150 $ 15,647 $ 139,144 $ (8,566) $ 387,375

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in -      -      -      193,566 193,566

  Net Change in Fund Balances $ 241,150 $ 15,647 $ 139,144 $ 185,000 $ 580,941

Fund Balance - January 1 377,094 333,799 88,167 -      799,060

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 618,244 $ 349,446 $ 227,311 $ 185,000 $ 1,380,001
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 7

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Permanent Jail Sanitary Total
Improvement Construction Sewer (Statement 1)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 374,591 $ 65,934 $ -      $ 440,525
Investments -      500,000 -      500,000
Accrued interest receivable 3,592 1,983 -      5,575
Due from other governments -      -      229,060 229,060

      Total Assets $ 378,183 $ 567,917 $ 229,060 $ 1,175,160

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ -      $ -      $ 19,512 $ 19,512
  Contracts payable -      -      79,558 79,558
  Due to other funds -      -      66,123 66,123
  Due to other governments -      -      3,155 3,155
  Advance from other funds -      -      60,712 60,712

    Total Liabilities $ -      $ -      $ 229,060 $ 229,060

Fund Balances
  Unreserved
    Designated for capital improvements 378,183 567,917 -      946,100

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 378,183 $ 567,917 $ 229,060 $ 1,175,160
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 8

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Permanent Jail Sanitary Total
Improvement Construction Sewer (Statement 2)

Revenues
  Intergovernmental $ -      $ -      $ 1,087,528 $ 1,087,528
  Investment earnings 25,776 23,705 -      49,481
  Miscellaneous 6,340 547,700 -      554,040

      Total Revenues $ 32,116 $ 571,405 $ 1,087,528 $ 1,691,049

Expenditures
  Capital outlay
    General government $ 222,390 $ -      $ -      $ 222,390
    Public safety 153,015 74,570 -      227,585
    Sanitation -      -      1,076,962 1,076,962

      Total Expenditures $ 375,405 $ 74,570 $ 1,076,962 $ 1,526,937

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (343,289) $ 496,835 $ 10,566 $ 164,112

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers out -      -      (193,566) (193,566)

  Net Change in Fund Balances $ (343,289) $ 496,835 $ (183,000) $ (29,454)

Fund Balance - January 1 721,472 71,082 183,000 975,554

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 378,183 $ 567,917 $ -      $ 946,100
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 9

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

PERMANENT FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

Conservation Total
Reserve Cemetery (Statement 1)

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 57,605 $ 21,245 $ 78,850
Investments -      100,530 100,530
Accrued interest receivable -      75 75

      Total Assets $ 57,605 $ 121,850 $ 179,455

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 250 $ -      $ 250

Fund Balances
  Reserved for endowments $ 50,000 $ 60,561 $ 110,561
  Reserved for conservation 7,355 -      7,355
  Unreserved
    Undesignated -      61,289 61,289

    Total Fund Balances $ 57,355 $ 121,850 $ 179,205

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 57,605 $ 121,850 $ 179,455
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement  10

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

PERMANENT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Conservation Total
Reserve Cemetery (Statement 2)

Revenues
  Gifts and contributions $ -      $ 18,749 $ 18,749
  Investment earnings 1,938 22,357 24,295

      Total Revenues $ 1,938 $ 41,106 $ 43,044

Expenditures
  Current
    Culture and recreation $ -      $ 6,207 $ 6,207
    Conservation 250 -      250

      Total Expenditures $ 250 $ 6,207 $ 6,457

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 1,688 $ 34,899 $ 36,587

Fund Balance - January 1 55,667 86,951 142,618

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 57,355 $ 121,850 $ 179,205
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 5

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH  SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ -      $ 17,000 $ 16,440 $ (560)
  Special assessments -      93,000 95,787 2,787
  Licenses and permits 29,100 29,100 33,966 4,866
  Intergovernmental 196,705 196,705 198,031 1,326
  Charges for services 14,200 14,200 13,598 (602)
  Miscellaneous 67,826 67,826 4,528 (63,298)

      Total Revenues $ 307,831 $ 417,831 $ 362,350 $ (55,481)

Expenditures
  Current
    Sanitation
      Solid waste $ 157,654 $ 157,654 $ 160,376 $ (2,722)
    Health  
      County health officer 99,804 99,804 93,028 6,776
    Conservation
      Water planning 189,847 189,847 91,138 98,709

      Total Expenditures $ 447,305 $ 447,305 $ 344,542 $ 102,763

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (139,474) $ (29,474) $ 17,808 $ 47,282

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in $ -      $ -      $ 208,098 $ 208,098
  Transfers out -      -      (200,000) (200,000)
  Proceeds from loan -      -      50,000 50,000

      Total Other Financing 
       Sources (Uses) $ -      $ -      $ 58,098 $ 58,098

  Net Change in Fund Balance $ (139,474) $ (29,474) $ 75,906 $ 105,380

Fund Balance - January 1 1,561,291 1,561,291 1,561,291 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 1,421,817 $ 1,531,817 $ 1,637,197 $ 105,380
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 6

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
VICTIM ASSISTANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Intergovernmental $ 45,000 $ 60,000 $ 57,029 $ (2,971)
  Charges for services 1,000 1,000 3,909 2,909
  Fines and forfeits -      -      5,000 5,000

      Total Revenues $ 46,000 $ 61,000 $ 65,938 $ 4,938

Expenditures
  Current
    Public safety
      Victim assistance 46,000 61,000 56,959 4,041

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ -      $ -      $ 8,979 $ 8,979

Fund Balance - January 1 -      -      -      -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ -      $ -      $ 8,979 $ 8,979
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 7

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
REVOLVING LOAN FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Special assessments $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 105,967 $ 5,967

Expenditures
  Current
    Sanitation
      Other 80,000 80,000 75,883 4,117

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 30,084 $ 10,084

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers out -      -      (6,331) (6,331)

  Net Change in Fund Balance $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 23,753 $ 3,753

Fund Balance - January 1 130,814 130,814 130,814 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 150,814 $ 150,814 $ 154,567 $ 3,753
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 8

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
REGIONAL RAILROAD AUTHORITY SPECIAL REVENUE  FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 156,315 $ 156,315 $ 133,857 $ (22,458)
  Intergovernmental -      -      23,344 23,344
  Interest on investments 2,000 2,000 669 (1,331)
  Miscellaneous 26,394 26,394 28,030 1,636

      Total Revenues $ 184,709 $ 184,709 $ 185,900 $ 1,191

Expenditures
  Current
    Culture and recreation
      Regional railroad 184,709 184,709 174,349 10,360

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ -      $ -      $ 11,551 $ 11,551

Fund Balance - January 1 111,263 111,263 111,263 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 111,263 $ 111,263 $ 122,814 $ 11,551
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 9

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GRAVEL TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,430 $ (70)

Expenditures
  Current
    Conservation
      Other 2,500 2,500 1,376 1,124

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ -      $ -      $ 1,054 $ 1,054

Fund Balance - January 1 253,860 253,860 253,860 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 253,860 $ 253,860 $ 254,914 $ 1,054
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 10
(Continued)

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Intergovernmental $ 132,000 $ 132,000 $ 106,974 $ (25,026)

Expenditures
  Current
    General government
      Remonumentation $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 9,927 $ 73

    Public safety
      Fire protection $ -      $ -      $ 1,380 $ (1,380)
      Other public safety -      -      3,000 (3,000)

    Total public safety $ -      $ -      $ 4,380 $ (4,380)

    Health  
      Health center $ -      $ -      $ 30,000 $ (30,000)

    Culture and recreation
      Historical society $ -      $ -      $ 800 $ (800)
      Parks 25,000 25,000 25,000 -      
      Senior citizens 5,000 5,000 5,000 -      

    Total culture and recreation $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 30,800 $ (800)

    Conservation
      Agricultural society $ 2,700 $ 2,700 $ 4,228 $ (1,528)
      Land use 5,000 5,000 2,500 2,500
      Other 7,300 7,300 300 7,000

    Total conservation $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 7,028 $ 7,972

    Economic development
      Community development $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 50,000 $ (35,000)
      Other economic development 2,000 2,000 250 1,750

    Total economic development $ 17,000 $ 17,000 $ 50,250 $ (33,250)

      Total Expenditures $ 72,000 $ 72,000 $ 132,385 $ (60,385)
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 10
(Continued)

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ (25,411) $ (85,411)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers to component unit (60,000) (60,000) (60,000) -      

 Net Change in Fund Balance $ -      $ -      $ (85,411) $ (85,411)

Fund Balance - January 1 131,136 131,136 131,136 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 131,136 $ 131,136 $ 45,725 $ (85,411)
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 11

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COUNTY JAIL DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 390,000 $ 390,000 $ 392,084 $ 2,084
  Intergovernmental -      -      5,512 5,512
  Miscellaneous 70,000 70,000 67,339 (2,661)

      Total Revenues $ 460,000 $ 460,000 $ 464,935 $ 4,935

Expenditures
  Debt service
    Principal $ 105,000 $ 105,000 $ 105,000 $ -      
    Interest 120,000 120,000 118,785 1,215

      Total Expenditures $ 225,000 $ 225,000 $ 223,785 $ 1,215

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 235,000 $ 235,000 $ 241,150 $ 6,150

Fund Balance - January 1 377,094 377,094 377,094 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 612,094 $ 612,094 $ 618,244 $ 6,150
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 12

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COURTHOUSE BUILDING DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 155,000 $ 155,000 $ 153,696 $ (1,304)
  Intergovernmental -      -      225 225
  Interest on investments 7,500 7,500 7,111 (389)

      Total Revenues $ 162,500 $ 162,500 $ 161,032 $ (1,468)

Expenditures
  Debt service
    Principal $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ -      
    Interest 105,500 105,500 105,385 115

      Total Expenditures $ 145,500 $ 145,500 $ 145,385 $ 115

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 17,000 $ 17,000 $ 15,647 $ (1,353)

Fund Balance - January 1 333,799 333,799 333,799 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 350,799 $ 350,799 $ 349,446 $ (1,353)
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 13

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
  Taxes $ 462,000 $ 462,000 $ 461,823 $ (177)
  Intergovernmental -      -      769 769
  Interest on investments -      -      -      -      

      Total Revenues $ 462,000 $ 462,000 $ 462,592 $ 592

Expenditures
  Debt service
    Principal $ 135,000 $ 135,000 $ 135,000 $ -      
    Interest 190,000 190,000 188,448 1,552

      Total Expenditures $ 325,000 $ 325,000 $ 323,448 $ 1,552

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ 137,000 $ 137,000 $ 139,144 $ 2,144

Fund Balance - January 1 88,167 88,167 88,167 -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 225,167 $ 225,167 $ 227,311 $ 2,144
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ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 14

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SANITARY SEWER  DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Expenditures
  Debt service
    Interest $ -      $ 8,570 $ 8,566 $ 4

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
  Transfers in -      193,500 193,566 66

 Net Change in Fund Balance $ -      $ 184,930 $ 185,000 $ 70

Fund Balance - January 1 -      -      -      -      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ -      $ 184,930 $ 185,000 $ 70
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 11

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Self-Insurance Central Garage Total

Assets

Current assets
  Cash and pooled investments $ 862,431 $ 36,000 $ 898,431
  Investments -      17,200 17,200
  Accrued interest receivable -      2,200 2,200
  Due from other funds -      63,700 63,700
  Due from other governments -      4,200 4,200
  Inventories -      23,100 23,100
  Prepaid items -      37,800 37,800

    Total current assets $ 862,431 $ 184,200 $ 1,046,631

Noncurrent assets
  Capital assets
    Depreciable (net) -      2,313,300 2,313,300

      Total Assets $ 862,431 $ 2,497,500 $ 3,359,931

Liabilities

Current liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 143,693 $ 228,700 $ 372,393
  Compensated absences payable -      2,000 2,000
  Due to other funds -      18,700 18,700

    Total current liabilities $ 143,693 $ 249,400 $ 393,093

Noncurrent liabilities
  Advance from other funds $ -      $ 31,600 $ 31,600
  Compensated absences payable - long-term -      3,100 3,100
  Claims and judgments payable - long-term 132,766 -      132,766

    Total noncurrent liabilities $ 132,766 $ 34,700 $ 167,466

    Total Liabilities $ 276,459 $ 284,100 $ 560,559

Net Assets

  Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ -      $ 2,313,300 $ 2,313,300
  Unrestricted 585,972 (99,900) 486,072

      Total Net Assets $ 585,972 $ 2,213,400 $ 2,799,372
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ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 12

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Self-Insurance Central Garage Total

Operating Revenues
  Charges for services $ 1,670,202 $ 1,264,400 $ 2,934,602

Operating Expenses
  Claims paid $ 1,672,163 $ -      $ 1,672,163
  Administrative and fiscal services -      70,600 70,600
  Other services and charges -      772,900 772,900
  Depreciation -      419,300 419,300

      Total Operating Expenses $ 1,672,163 $ 1,262,800 $ 2,934,963

      Operating Income (Loss) $ (1,961) $ 1,600 $ (361)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
  Interest income -      6,300 6,300

      Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers
       and Contributions $ (1,961) $ 7,900 $ 5,939

Transfers in -      2,205,500 2,205,500

  Change in Net Assets $ (1,961) $ 2,213,400 $ 2,211,439

Net Assets - January 1 587,933 -      587,933

Net Assets - December 31 $ 585,972 $ 2,213,400 $ 2,799,372
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ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 13
 (Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Self-Insurance Central Garage Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
  Receipts from customers and users $ -      $ 124,000 $ 124,000
  Receipts from internal services provided 1,935,326 1,072,000 3,007,326
  Payments to suppliers (1,852,355) (599,800) (2,452,155)
  Payments to employees -      (60,000) (60,000)

    Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 82,971 $ 536,200 $ 619,171

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
  Advance from other funds $ -      $ 40,000 $ 40,000

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
  Capital contributions $ -      $ 45,200 $ 45,200
  Purchases of capital assets -      (572,300) (572,300)

    Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
     financing activities $ -      $ (527,100) $ (527,100)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
  Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments $ -      $ 31,100 $ 31,100
  Purchases of investments -      (48,300) (48,300)
  Investment earnings received -      4,100 4,100

    Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ -      $ (13,100) $ (13,100)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 82,971 $ 36,000 $ 118,971

Cash and Cash Equivalents at January 1 779,460 -      779,460

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31 $ 862,431 $ 36,000 $ 898,431
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ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 13
 (Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Self-Insurance Central Garage Total

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by 
 (used in) operating activities
  Operating income $ (1,961) $ 1,600 $ (361)

  Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
   (used in) operating activities
    Depreciation expense $ -      $ 419,300 $ 419,300
    (Increase) decrease in due from other governments -      (4,200) (4,200)
    (Increase) decrease in due from other funds -      (63,700) (63,700)
    (Increase) decrease in inventories -      (23,100) (23,100)
    (Increase) decrease in prepaid items -      (37,800) (37,800)
    Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 143,693 228,700 372,393
    Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable -      5,100 5,100
    Increase (decrease) in due to other funds -      10,300 10,300
    Increase (decrease) in claims payable (58,761) -      (58,761)

    Total adjustments $ 84,932 $ 534,600 $ 619,532

      Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 82,971 $ 536,200 $ 619,171

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
  Contributions of general capital assets from County $ -      $ 2,160,300 $ 2,160,300
  Capital asset trade-ins -      48,100 48,100
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 14

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
INVESTMENT TRUST FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Family
Services

Cemetery Collaborative Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,239 $ 363,101 $ 366,340
Receivables
  Interest 72 846 918

      Total Assets $ 3,311 $ 363,947 $ 367,258

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 103 $ -      $ 103

Net Assets

Net assets, held in trust for pool participants $ 3,208 $ 363,947 $ 367,155
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 15

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
INVESTMENT TRUST FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Family
Services

Cemetery Collaborative Total

Additions
  Contributions from participants $ -      $ 278,185 $ 278,185

  Investment earnings
    Interest $ 218 $ 11,965 $ 12,183
    Net (decrease) in fair value of investments -      (3,500) (3,500)

    Total investment earnings $ 218 $ 8,465 $ 8,683

      Total Additions $ 218 $ 286,650 $ 286,868

Deductions
  Distributions to participants 214 218,829 219,043

  Change in Net Assets $ 4 $ 67,821 $ 67,825

Net Assets - January 1 3,204 296,126 299,330

Net Assets - December 31 $ 3,208 $ 363,947 $ 367,155
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ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 16

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Missing Cemetery
Heirs Perpetual Care Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,107 $ 8,151 $ 17,258
Investments
  Short-term investments -      61,850 61,850
Receivables
  Interest 130 753 883

      Total Assets $ 9,237 $ 70,754 $ 79,991

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ -      $ 3,667 $ 3,667

Net Assets

Net assets, held in trust $ 9,237 $ 67,087 $ 76,324
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ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 17

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2002

Missing Cemetery
Heirs Perpetual Care Total

Additions
  Trust deposits $ 1,800 $ 1,100 $ 2,900
  Investment earnings
    Interest 130 3,576 3,706
    Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 250 1,250 1,500

      Total Additions $ 2,180 $ 5,926 $ 8,106

Deductions
  Payments in accordance with trust agreements $ -      $ 3,629 $ 3,629
  Payments to heirs 7,163 -      7,163

      Total Deductions $ 7,163 $ 3,629 $ 10,792

  Change in Net Assets $ (4,983) $ 2,297 $ (2,686)

Net Assets - January 1 14,220 64,790 79,010

Net Assets - December 31 $ 9,237 $ 67,087 $ 76,324
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 18
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

SNOWMOBILE TRAILS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 226 $ 217,018 $ 217,019 $ 225

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 226 $ 217,018 $ 217,019 $ 225

 

STATE REVENUE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 80,660 $ 1,345,364 $ 1,284,985 $ 141,039
Accounts receivable 6,638 7,885 6,638 7,885

      Total Assets $ 87,298 $ 1,353,249 $ 1,291,623 $ 148,924

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 87,298 $ 1,353,249 $ 1,291,623 $ 148,924

OTHER COLLECTIONS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 4,692 $ 140,697 $ 132,950 $ 12,439

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 4,692 $ 140,697 $ 132,950 $ 12,439
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 18
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

COLLABORATIVE

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 1,360,679 $ 1,149,813 $ 979,764 $ 1,530,728
Due from other governments -      274,790 -      274,790

      Total Assets $ 1,360,679 $ 1,424,603 $ 979,764 $ 1,805,518

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 1,360,679 $ 1,424,603 $ 979,764 $ 1,805,518

COLLECTIONS FOR OTHER
 AGENCIES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 19,373 $ 192,294 $ 195,084 $ 16,583

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 19,373 $ 192,294 $ 195,084 $ 16,583

TAXES AND PENALTIES

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 884,560 $ 17,165,042 $ 16,997,990 $ 1,051,612

Liabilities

Due to other governments $ 884,560 $ 17,165,042 $ 16,997,990 $ 1,051,612
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Statement 18
(Continued) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31

TOTAL ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 2,350,190 $ 20,210,228 $ 19,807,792 $ 2,752,626
Accounts receivable 6,638 7,885 6,638 7,885
Due from other governments -      274,790 -      274,790

      Total Assets $ 2,356,828 $ 20,492,903 $ 19,814,430 $ 3,035,301
 
 

Liabilities  
 

Accounts payable $ 4,918 $ 357,715 $ 349,969 $ 12,664
Due to other governments 2,351,910 20,135,188 19,464,461 3,022,637

 
      Total Liabilities $ 2,356,828 $ 20,492,903 $ 19,814,430 $ 3,035,301
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 19

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET
COMPONENT UNIT
AREA ICE ARENA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

General Adjustments Statement
Fund (Note 5.C.) of Net Assets

Assets

Cash and pooled investments $ 41,741 $ -      $ 41,741
Accounts receivable 25,531 -      25,531
Due from other governments 69,553 -      69,553
Due from primary government 69,994 -      69,994
Capital assets
  Depreciable (net) -      941,015 941,015

      Total Assets $ 206,819 $ 941,015 $ 1,147,834

Liabilities

Current liabilities
  Accounts payable $ 4,287 $ -      $ 4,287
  Salaries payable 4,302 -      4,302
  Accrued interest payable -      4,848 4,848
  Advance from other governments 220,212 -      
Long-term liabilities
  Due within one year -      64,580 64,580
  Due after one year -      356,200 576,412

    Total Liabilities $ 228,801 $ 425,628 $ 654,429

Fund Balance

Fund Balance
  Unreserved
    Undesignated (21,982) $ 21,982 $ -      

      Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 206,819

Net Assets
  Invested in capital assets net of related debt $ 528,457 $ 528,457
  Unrestricted (35,052) (35,052)

      Total Net Assets $ 493,405 $ 493,405



Page 137

MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Statement 20

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

COMPONENT UNIT
AREA ICE ARENA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

General Adjustments Statement
Fund (Note 5.C.) of Activities

Revenues
  Intergovernmental $ 63,725 $ -      $ 63,725
  Charges for services 167,921 -      167,921
  Miscellaneous 16,275 -      16,275

      Total Revenues $ 247,921 $ -      $ 247,921

Expenditures
  Current
    Culture and recreation $ 176,444 $ 53,736 $ 230,180
  Capital outlay 10,750 (10,750) -      
  Debt service
    Principal 62,370 (62,370) -      
    Interest 25,919 (732) 25,187

      Total Expenditures $ 275,483 $ (20,116) $ 255,367

  Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures $ (27,562) $ 20,116 $ (7,446)

Fund Balance - January 1 5,580 495,271 500,851

Fund Balance - December 31 $ (21,982) $ 515,387 $ 493,405
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MINNESOTA COUNTY
ANY CITY, MINNESOTA

Schedule 15
(Continued)

SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Total Total Total Total
Governmental Enterprise Primary Component

Funds Funds Government Units

Shared Revenue
  State
    Highway users tax $ 3,496,923 $ -      $ 3,496,923 $ -      
    Market value credit 1,867,060 -      1,867,060 -      
    Mobile home MVC 15,625 -      15,625 -      
    PERA rate reimbursement 13,155 4,826 17,981 -      
    Disparity reduction aid 101,164 -      101,164 -      
    Family preservation aid 51,196 -      51,196 -      
    Police aid 72,641 -      72,641 -      
    Criminal justice aid 100,491 -      100,491 -      

    Total Shared Revenue $ 5,718,255 $ 4,826 $ 5,723,081 $ -      

Reimbursement for Services
  State
    Minnesota Department of Human 
     Services $ 1,156,674 $ -      $ 1,156,674 $ -      

Payments
  Local
    City contribution $ 229,886 $ -      $ 229,886 $ -      
    Local health -      800 800 -      
    Local contributions -      -      -      63,725
    Payments in lieu of taxes 135,141 -      135,141 -      

    Total Payments $ 365,027 $ 800 $ 365,827 $ 63,725

Grants
  State
    Minnesota Department/Board of
      Administration $ 41,582 $ -      $ 41,582 $ -      
      Crime Victim Services 19,181 -      19,181 -      
      Revenue 15,859 -      15,859 -      
      Education 239,810 -      239,810 -      
      Corrections 66,689 -      66,689 -      
      Public Safety 2,638 -      2,638 -      
      Transportation 15,473 -      15,473 -      
      Trade and Economic Security 28,063 -      28,063 -      
      Health 87,011 402,583 489,594 -      
      Natural Resources 22,162 -      22,162 -      
      Human Services 896,422 -      896,422 -      
      Soil and Water Resources 74,305 -      74,305 -      
      Veterans Services 2,341 -      2,341 -      
    Office of Environmental Assistance 68,561 210,527 279,088 -      
    Pollution Control Agency 19,250 -      19,250 -      
    Miscellaneous boards 79,284 -      79,284 -      

    Total State $ 1,678,631 $ 613,110 $ 2,291,741 $ -      
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SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Total Total Total Total
Governmental Enterprise Primary Component

Funds Funds Government Units

Grants (Continued)
  Federal 
    Department of
      Agriculture $ 995,038 $ 221,829 $ 1,216,867 $ -      
      HUD 71,936 -      71,936 218,333
      Justice 92,027 -      92,027 -      
      Transportation 8,000 -      8,000 -      
      Emergency Management 13,080 -      13,080 -      
      Health and Human Services 807,761 93,244 901,005 -      

    Total Federal $ 1,987,842 $ 315,073 $ 2,302,915 $ 218,333

    Total State and Federal Grants $ 3,666,473 $ 928,183 $ 4,594,656 $ 218,333

      Total Intergovernmental Revenue $ 10,906,429 $ 933,809 $ 11,840,238 $ 282,058
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Agriculture
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants
      and Children 10.557 $ 221,829 $ -       

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services
    Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program 10.561 7,509 -       

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Agriculture
    Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities 10.760 987,529 -       

    Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 1,216,867 $ -       

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Trade and Economic
   Development
    Community Development Block Grant/State's Program 14.228 $ 71,936 $ -       

  Direct
    Section 8 Rental Voucher Program 14.855 136,395 -       

    Lower Income Housing Assistance Program 14.856 81,938 -       

    Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 290,269 $ -       

U.S. Department of Justice
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety
    Crime Victim Assistance Grant 16.575 $ 37,848 $ -       

    Byrne Formula Grant Program 16.579 24,999 -       

  Direct
    Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16.710 29,180 -       

    Total U.S. Department of Justice $ 92,027 $ -       

U.S. Department of Transportation
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Transportation
    Boating Safety Financial Assistance 20.005 $ 5,000 $ -       

    State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 3,000 -       

    Total U.S. Department of Transportation $ 8,000 $ -       

Federal Emergency Management Administration
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Public Safety
    Public Assistance Grants 83.544 $ 9,080 -       

    Emergency Management Performance Grants 83.552 4,000 -       

    Total Federal Emergency Management Administration $ 13,080 $ -       
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Federal Grantor Federal
  Pass-Through Agency CFDA Passed Through
    Grant Program Title Number Expenditures to Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Centers for Disease Control and Prevention - Investigations
     and Technical Assistance 93.283 $ 21,000 $ 21,000

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services
    Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 150,664 -       

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Education
    Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds 93.596 170,437 -       

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Human Services
    Children's Justice Grants to States 93.643 737 -       

    Child Welfare Services - State Grants 93.645 8,561 -       

    Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 171,787 -       

    Social Services Block Grant Title XX 93.667 260,314 26,503

    Chafee Foster Care Independent Living 93.674 4,700 -       

  Passed Through Minnesota Department of Health
    Block Grant - Prevention/Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 12,532 -       

    Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant 93.994 100,273 59,712

    Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $ 901,005 $ 107,215

      Total Cash Awards $ 2,521,248 $ 107,215

Noncash Awards
  U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
    Passed Through Minnesota Department of Agriculture
      Agricultural Best Management Loan Program (Ag BMP) loans 66.458 196,462

      Total Federal Awards $ 2,717,710

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

1.  The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of federal award programs expended by Minnesota County.
     The County's reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the general purpose financial statements.

2.  The expenditures on this schedule are on the basis of accounting used by the individual funds of the county.  Governmental funds
     use the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The basis used for CFDA No. 66.458 is the value of new loans made during the year.

3.  Pass-through grant numbers were not assigned by the pass-through agencies.



Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

This Page Intended To Be Blank



August 2003

Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4340

Reporting Page 1

SUBJECT:

Suggested Interim Reporting

PURPOSE:

To outline a number of desirable interim reports and illustrate the format for each report.

DISCUSSION:

Interim reports will be of benefit principally to county officials.  The reports should be
prepared in enough detail to be useful in financial decision making and should contain
comparative data on the reporting period and year-to-date as well as comparisons with the
approved budget.

All counties should consider preparing interim financial reports on a monthly and quarterly
basis.  During months when a quarterly report is prepared, a monthly report need not be
compiled.  The types of interim reports will vary depending on the needs of the individual
county.  These reports should include the following statements as a minimum:

1. Combined Statement of Cash Position;

2. Combined Statement of Cash Receipts, Transfers, and Disbursements (including
beginning and ending balances);

3. Statement of Estimated and Actual Revenues for individual funds; and

4. Budget/Expenditure Reports for individual departments/programs/funds.

In some cases, counties will want to make use of certain other reports, particularly where
accounting for enterprise and internal service funds is used.  Also, the county finance officer
may want to report a forecast of cash requirements to the commissioners for the next reporting
period.  To accomplish this, two other interim reports are suggested:

1. Comparative Statement of Revenue and Expense (for enterprise and internal service
funds); and
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2. Combined Forecast of Cash Position--all funds.

Descriptions of Interim Reports

The  following  reports  are  illustrated  beginning  at  page  3.   They  are  models  for
county use.  In some cases, modifications will be necessary to fit special county needs;
however, the county should develop its reports in conformance with the suggested
formats to the greatest extent possible.

N The Combined Statement of Cash Position--Summarizes the actual short-term
assets (demand deposits and investments) in a county’s accounts at a certain date.
In effect, it tells how much cash and easily liquidated assets the county has on hand
(as opposed to how much revenue it has collected or is due).

N The Combined Statement of Cash Receipts, Transfers, and Disbursements--Shows
the cash balance at the start of the reporting period, the inflows and outflows of
cash during the period, and the balance at the end of the period for each fund.  This
statement is essential to the maintenance of sound cash management.

N The Statement of Estimated and Actual Revenue--Compares estimated revenues
with actual receipts for the reporting period and year-to-date.  This report is an
important management tool since it can help county officials identify possible
revenue shortages or surpluses early, thus allowing them to be dealt with
effectively.

N Budget/Expenditure Report--Shows expenditures and encumbrances for the
reporting period and year-to-date and is compared with the approved budget.  This
is an important management report which can be used to analyze the rate of
spending against the original budget within a specific department.  The totals for
each department can also be summarized for a report of total county spending
against the appropriated budget.

N Combined Forecast of Cash Position--A statement of the estimated receipts and
disbursements for the coming month.  For counties with active investment
programs, this is a particularly important report since it can be used to estimate the
idle cash available for short-term investment.
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N Comparative Statement of Revenues and Expenses--Should be used for county
enterprises.  This statement is similar to the typical income statement prepared by
most businesses.

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH POSITION (DEPOSITS) - ALL FUNDS

As of March 31, 20XX

    Demand       Time   Certificates          Total
                Fund                    Deposits         Deposits       of Deposit       on Deposit      

General

Road and Bridge

Welfare

Special Revenue

Debt Service

Capital Projects

Permanent 

Enterprise

Internal Service

Private-Purpose Trust

Investment Trust

Agency                                                                                               

      Total All Funds                                                                                               
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH RECEIPTS,
TRANSFERS, AND DISBURSEMENTS - ALL FUNDS

For the Month Ended January 31, 20XX

          Balance         Balance
                 Fund                January 1, 20XX       Receipts         Transfers     Disbursements January 31, 20XX

General Revenue

Road and Bridge

Human Services

Special Revenue

Debt Service

Capital Projects

Permanent

Enterprise

Internal Service

Trust and Agency                                                                                                                                         

      Total All Funds                                                                                                             XXXXXXXXXX

Balance by Depository

Petty cash Balance in all
funds equal

Name of Bank - demand deposits balance in
depositories

Name of Bank - time deposit

Name of Bank - certificates of deposit                             

      Total Balance XXXXXXXXXX
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GENERAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED AND ACTUAL REVENUE

For the Month of June 20XX and the Six Months Ended June 30, 20XX

       Actual
           This Month        Year to      Unreceived

                      Source of Revenues                      Estimated            Actual                Date                Balance       

Taxes
  General property taxes - current
  Penalties and interest on delinquent 
   taxes

    Total Taxes

Intergovernmental revenue
  Federal grants
  State grants

    Total intergovernmental revenue

Fines and forfeitures
  Fines
  Forfeitures

    Total fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous revenue
  Investment earnings
  Other

    Total miscellaneous revenue                                                                                                         

      Total Revenues                                                                                                          
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AUDITOR’S DEPARTMENT
BUDGET/EXPENDITURE REPORT

For the Month of April 20XX

    Expended 
          Objects of         This       Expended     Unexpended
         Expenditure          Budget         Month        Year-to-Date       %            Balance           Encumbered         %          Balance      

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Telephone

Postage

Duplicating

Travel

Office supplies                                                                                                                                                                             

      Total                                                                                                                                                                             

NOTES: 1. A summary report can be prepared listing all of the departments in the left-hand
column with their respective totals.

2. For those counties using encumbrance accounting, the last two columns should be
used.  For counties which are not encumbering, it should be recognized that the
unexpended balance does not necessarily reflect available budget dollars.
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COMBINED FORECAST OF CASH POSITION - ALL FUNDS

For the Month of January 20XX

     Estimated      Estimated        Estimated
         Balance       Receipts  Disbursements          Balance

                            Fund                              January 1, 20XX        January              January       January 31, 20XX 

General Revenue

Road and Bridge

Welfare

Debt Service

Trust and Agency                                                                                                                    

      Total All Funds                                                                                                                    
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COUNTY SURPLUS OFFICE SPACE ENTERPRISE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

For the Months of September 20XX and 20XX and the
Nine Months Ending September 30, 20XX and 20XX

             Nine Months Ended             
       September     September     September 30,     September 30,
           20XX                  20XX                 20XX                    20XX         

Operating Revenues
  Rental
  Switchboard service
  Miscellaneous revenue

      Total Operating Revenues                                                                                                                    

Less
  Operating expenses
    Salaries
    Utilities
    Maintenance

    Total Operating Expenses
     Before Depreciation                                                                                                                    

Depreciation

      Total Operating Expenses                                                                                                                    

      Operating Income (Loss)

  Nonoperating revenues/expenses
    Investment earnings
    Intergovernmental revenue
    Interest expense
    Obligation bond expense                                                                                                                    

      Net Income (Loss)                                                                                                                    
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SUBJECT:

Financial Statement Publication

PURPOSE:

To provide guidance on the publication of the counties’ annual financial statement.

DISCUSSION:

Counties are required by Minnesota statutes to annually publish certain financial information
in at least one issue of a duly qualified legal newspaper within their county.  Minn. Stat.
§ 375.17 establishes the requirements for publication of the county’s financial statements in
the official newspaper of the county.  Also, the statute imposes the requirement that a county
board make full and accurate statement of financial information in a uniform form and style
prescribed by the state auditor.  The prescribed form also must be approved by the attorney
general and the state printer.

The County has the option of publishing the full statement, which consists of the basic
financial statements, and required supplementary information, including the management’s
discussion and analysis.  The sample financial statements are included in Section 4330 of this
manual. If the county chooses to publish the full statement, including a schedule of major
disbursements, then they would be allowed to not publish a vendor’s list, names and amounts
of salaries and wages paid to employees, and the names and amounts for persons receiving
human services aid.

The county can also choose to publish only summary information.  Starting on page 3 of this
section is the format for the summary financial information.  The summary information
includes summary financial detail, most of which can be derived from the county’s basic
financial statements.  Counties opting to publish a summary of their financial statements may
publish more information or more detailed information than what is required by the summary
example presented in this section.  However, any variation from this example must contain all
the information that is indicated in this example.
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MINNESOTA STATUTE:

375.17 Publication of financial statements. 

Subdivision 1.  Statement contents; summaries.  Annually, not later than the first Tuesday after the first
Monday in March, the county board shall make a full and accurate statement of the receipts and expenditures of
the preceding year, which shall contain a statement of the assets and liabilities, a summary of receipts,
disbursements, and balances of all county funds together with a detailed statement of each fund account, under
the form and style prescribed by and on file with the state auditor.  The prescribed form and any changes or
modifications of it shall so far as practical be uniform for all counties and be approved by the attorney general
and the state printer.  Annually the board shall publish the statement or a summary of the statement in a form as
prescribed by the state auditor, for one issue in a duly qualified legal newspaper in the county. 

Subd. 2.  Full statement; publication conditions.  If the board elects to publish the full statement, it may refrain
from publishing: 

(1) an itemized account of amounts paid out, to whom and for what purpose to the extent that the
published proceedings of the county board contain the information, if all disbursements aggregating
$5,000 or more to any person are set forth in a schedule of major disbursements showing amounts paid
out, to whom and for what purpose and are made a part of, and published with, the financial statement;

(2) the names and amounts of salaries and expenses paid to employees but shall publish the totals of
disbursements for salaries and expenses; and 

(3) the names of persons receiving human services aid and the amounts paid to each, but the totals of the
disbursements for those purposes must be published. 

This subdivision does not apply to a summary published pursuant to subdivision 1. 

Subd. 3.  Filing.  In addition to the publication in the newspaper designated by the board as the official
newspaper for publication of the financial statement, the statement shall be published in one other newspaper,
if one of general circulation is located in a different municipality in the county than the official newspaper.  The
county board shall call for separate bids for each publication.  If a provision of this section is inconsistent with
section 393.07, the provisions of that section shall prevail.  The financial statement must be filed with the county
auditor for public inspection. 
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PUBLICATION FORMAT

Summary Financial Statement Publication Requirements

For Counties In Minnesota In Accordance With

Minnesota Statutes § 375.17

Issued By:

Office of the State Auditor
Saint Paul, Minnesota

June 30, 2003
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MINNESOTA COUNTY

SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20__

The purpose of this Report is to provide a summary of financial information concerning 
Minnesota County for interested citizens.  Questions about this report should be directed to
                                (name, title, and telephone number).

[The following sentence must be printed as a separate paragraph, in
boldfaced type and all capital letters.]

A FULL AND COMPLETE COPY OF THE COUNTY FINANCIAL STATEMENT IS
AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST BY CALLING                                        , OR BY WRITING
TO THE                                             [title and mailing address of person to whom correspondence
should be addressed].

COUNTY OFFICIALS

[The summary statement must include a list of all senior officials.  At a
minimum, the list shall include the names of all county commissioners,
and, if applicable, the names of the county administrator/coordinator, the
county sheriff, the county auditor, the county treasurer, the county
recorder, and the county finance director.  With each name shall be printed
the title of the individual and a county telephone number where they can
be contacted.]
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A PROFILE OF MINNESOTA COUNTY

 Percent
    Total   Total  Increase

Key Indicator   Current     Prior   (Decrease)

Estimated Population                                                      

Total Tax Capacity                                                      

Percent of Property Taxes
 Collected                                                      

Total General Revenues                                                      

Total Program Revenues                                                      

Total Expenses
  Governmental activities                                                      

  Business-type activities                                                      

Capital Assets
  Governmental activities                                                      

  Business-type activities                                                      

Total Outstanding Net
  Bonded Debt of County
    General obligation                                                      

    Revenue supported                                                      

    Special assessment                                                      

    Other debt                                                      
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Bond Rating on Most Recent
 General Obligation Bond Issue                                                      

Total Government-Wide 
 Net Assets
  Governmental activities                                                      

  Business-type activities                                                      

Total Number of Full-Time
 Employees                                                      

Comments of County Board Chair, County Manager, Administrator, Coordinator, or Finance Officer
(Optional):

This space may be used by the county officials to inform the county residents of any
event during the past year that may have significantly impacted the county’s profile
or may have significant long-term implications on the county’s profile.  This space
may also be used to further explain or clarify any significant changes in the county’s
profile over the past two years.
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Minnesota County’s 200__ Governmental Funds’ Finances

[The graphic must be legible, but does not have to be to the scale shown above.  The
county may adjust the categories as appropriate.  A county may want to eliminate
insignificant categories, i.e. less than three percent of the total.]
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A User’s Guide to County Financial Statements

The following definitions will help citizens understand the terminology that is used in the county’s
financial statement.  [A county should eliminate the description of a specific fund type, activity, or
part if it is not included in that particular county’s financial statement.]

Basic Financial Statements

Minnesota County’s basic financial statements consists of three parts:  government-wide financial
statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial statements.  The management’s
discussion and analysis and certain budgetary comparison schedules  are required to accompany the1

basic financial statements and, therefore, are included as required supplementary information.

Government-wide financial statements display information about the county’s financial reporting
entity as a whole, except for its fiduciary activities.  These statements should present separate
information for the governmental and business-type activities of the county (primary government),
as well as for its component units.

Fund financial statements display separate financial information for the county’s governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds.  Information for governmental and enterprise proprietary funds is
presented separately for major funds and the aggregate total for non major funds.  Internal services
and fiduciary fund information is presented in aggregate by fund type.

Notes to the financial statements provides additional information and disclosure for information
in the financial statements.

Governmental activities are generally activities of the county financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues.  These activities are usually reported
in governmental funds and internal service funds.

Business-type activities are county activities financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods or service.  These activities are usually reported in enterprise funds.
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Financial reporting entity consists of the primary government (county), organizations for which
the county is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance
of their relationship with the county are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.  The nucleus of a county’s financial reporting
entity is the primary government, the county. 

Primary government is a term used in connection with defining the financial reporting entity.  The
primary government is the focus of the financial reporting entity.  For the county, the primary
government represents the financial activities, funds, or accounts directly under the control of the
county board. 

Component unit describes a legally separate organization for which the county board is financially
accountable.  In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the county are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

County Governmental Fund Types

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the county.  It is used to account for all financial
resources, except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of
principal, interest, and related costs of general long-term debt.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.

Permanent Funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s
programs--that is, for the benefit of the government or its citizenry.

County Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to report an activity for which a fee is charged to external users for goods
or services.
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Internal Service Funds are used to report any activity that provides goods or services to other funds,
departments, or agencies of the primary government and its component units, or to other
governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

County Fiduciary Funds

Investment Trust Funds are used to report governmental external investment pools that are
maintained by the county for other entities.

Private-Purpose Trust Funds used to report all trust arrangements, other than those properly
reported in investment trust funds, under which principal and income benefit individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the county as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments, and/or other funds; fur example, taxes collected and held by a
county for a school district.

Character Classification of County Expenditures

The county’s governmental expenditures are classified by character or the periods expenditures are
presumed to benefit.  The county has the following character classifications:

Current operating expenditures are presumed to benefit the current fiscal period.

Debt services are presumed to benefit prior fiscal periods as well as current and future periods
and includes amount expended for the payment of principal, interest, and other costs associated
with debt.

Capital outlays are presumed to benefit current and future fiscal periods and include amounts
expended for the construction or acquisition of county capital assets.

Intergovernmental represent resources transferred by to the county to other governments.

Classification of County Functions

Functions are a group of related activities aimed at accomplishing a major service or regulatory
program for which the county is responsible.  The county has the following function classifications:
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The General Government function include expenditures for general county activities such as
[include all of the following that are applicable], the county commissioners, county
administration, county attorney’s office, county auditor’s office, county treasurer’s office,
county assessor’s office, the judicial (excluding the county jail), the planning and zoning
office, and other county general service office.

Public Safety relates to the objective of protection of persons and property and includes
expenditures for corrections activities, operations of the sheriff’s department, the county jail,
civil defense, and emergency services.

Highways and Streets includes expenditures relating to the construction and maintenance of
county highways and streets.

Sanitation involves expenditures for the removal and disposal of waste and includes county
solid waste collection and disposal, recycling, and sanitary sewer programs.

Human Services represents activities designed to provide public assistance and institutional
care for individuals unable to provide essential needs for themselves.  These programs include
child support collection, child welfare, chemical dependency, medical assistance, and others.

Health involves all activities involved in the conservation and improvement of public health.
This function includes expenditures for the county public health department, home health aid
services, other nursing services, maternal and child health, supplemental nutrition programs,
and programs to protect public and private water systems.

Culture and Recreation involves cultural and recreational activities maintained for the benefit
of county residents and visitors.  These activities include county libraries, parks, and other
recreation programs.

Conservation involves activities designed to conserve and develop such natural resources as
water, soil, and forests and includes such programs as soil and water conservation, county
extension, water planning, and other.

Economic Development activities are directed toward economically developing the area
encompassed by the county and providing assistance to, and opportunity for, economically
disadvantaged persons or businesses.
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Summary of Minnesota County’s Statement of  Net Assets
December 31, 200__

 Governmental   Business-Type  Component
     Activities         Activities             Total              Units     

Assets
  Cash and investments $ x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx  $      x,xxx,xxx $  x,xxx,xxx
  Receivables x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
  Other current assets x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
  Restricted assets x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
  Capital assets
    Land x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
    Infrastructure x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
    Buildings x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
    Equipment x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
  Other assets          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx

      Total Assets $       x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx $  x,xxx,xxx

Liabilities
  Payables $ x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx  $      x,xxx,xxx $  x,xxx,xxx
  Other current liabilities x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
  Liabilities payable from
   restricted assets x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
  Other liabilities x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
  Long-term liabilities
    Due within one year x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
    Due in more than one year          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx

      Total Liabilities $       x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx $  x,xxx,xxx
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 Governmental   Business-Type  Component
     Activities         Activities             Total              Units     

Net Assets
  Invested in capital assets, net
   of related debt $ x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx  $     x,xxx,xxx $  x,xxx,xxx
  Restricted x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx
  Unrestricted          x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx     x,xxx,xxx

Total Net Assets $       x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx $      x,xxx,xxx $  x,xxx,xxx

Summary of Minnesota County’s Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 200__

       Program
      Expenses            Revenues               Net          

Functions
  Primary government
    Governmental activities
      General government $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        (xxx,xxx)
      Public safety           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx     (xxx,xxx)
      Highways and streets           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx     (xxx,xxx)
      Human services           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx     (xxx,xxx)
      Health           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx     (xxx,xxx)
      Sanitation           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx     (xxx,xxx)
      Culture and recreation           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx     (xxx,xxx)
      Conservation           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx     (xxx,xxx)
      Economic development           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx     (xxx,xxx)
      Interest on long-term debt           x,xxx,xxx                    -                (xxx,xxx)

      Total governmental activities $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        (xxx,xxx)
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       Program
      Expenses            Revenues               Net          

Functions
  Primary government (Continued)
    Business-type activities
      Landfill $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        (xxx,xxx)
      Nursing home            x,xxx,xxx                    -                (xxx,xxx)

    Total business-type activities $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        (xxx,xxx)

    Total primary government $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        (xxx,xxx)

    General revenues and other
      Taxes $      x,xxx,xxx
      Other general revenues   x,xxx,xxx
      Special items         x,xxx,xxx 

      Net change in net assets $      x,xxx,xxx 
 

  Component Unit
    Housing and redevelopment
     authority $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        (xxx,xxx)
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A Summary Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
December 31, 200__

                          Major Funds                            
         Road and      Human         Total

       General             Bridge      Service    Nonmajor  Governmental
        Fund              Fund               Fund             Funds              Funds        

Assets
  Cash and investments $     x,xxx,xxx $      x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
  Receivables
    Taxes        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Special assessments        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Accounts        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Loans        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Due from other funds        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Due from other governments        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Inventories        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx

      Total Assets $     x,xxx,xxx $      x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx

Liabilities
  Payables
    Accounts $     x,xxx,xxx $      x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
    Salaries        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Contracts        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Due to other funds        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Due to other governments        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Deferred revenue        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx

    Total Liabilities $     x,xxx,xxx $      x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx

Fund balances
  Reserved $     x,xxx,xxx $      x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
  Unreserved        x,xxx,xxx         x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx

    Total Fund Balances $     x,xxx,xxx $      x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx

      Total Liabilities and
       and Fund Balance $     x,xxx,xxx $      x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
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A Summary of Governmental Funds Revenues and Expenditures
For the Year Ended December 31, 200__

                          Major Funds                            
         Road and      Human         Total

       General             Bridge      Service    Nonmajor  Governmental
        Fund              Fund               Fund             Funds              Funds        

Revenues
  Taxes $     x,xxx,xxx $     x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx
  Special assessments       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Licenses and permits       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Intergovernmental       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Charges for services       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Fines and forfeits       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Gifts and contributions       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Investment earnings       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Miscellaneous       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx

    Total Revenues $    x,xxx,xxx $     x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx

Expenditures
  Current
    General government $    x,xxx,xxx $     x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx
    Public safety       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
    Highways and streets       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
    Human services       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
    Health       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
    Sanitation       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
    Culture and recreation       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
    Conservation       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
    Economic development       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Capital outlay       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Debt service
    Principal retirement       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
    Interest and fiscal charges       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
    Bond issuance costs       x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx

    Total Expenditures $    x,xxx,xxx $     x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx

  Excess of Revenues Over
   (Under) Expenditures $    x,xxx,xxx $     x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx
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                          Major Funds                            
         Road and      Human         Total

       General             Bridge      Service    Nonmajor  Governmental
        Fund              Fund               Fund             Funds              Funds        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
 Transfers in $     x,xxx,xxx $     x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
 Transfers out        x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
 Bonds issued        x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
 Discount on bonds issued        x,xxx,xxx        x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx       x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx

    Total Other Financing 
     Sources (Uses) $     x,xxx,xxx $     x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx

      Net Change in Fund
       Balances $     x,xxx,xxx $     x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $    x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx

A Summary of Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 200__

                               Enterprise Funds                                    Internal
     Nonmajor        Services

        Landfill               Funds                Total                  Funds       

Assets
  Current
    Cash and investments $          x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
    Receivables             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Due from other funds             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Due from other governments             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx              x,xxx,xxx
    Other current assets             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Restricted assets
    Cash and investments             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Other restricted assets             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Noncurrent assets
    Capital assets             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Other noncurrent             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx

    Total Assets $          x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
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                               Enterprise Funds                                    Internal
     Nonmajor        Services

        Landfill               Funds                Total                  Funds       

Liabilities
  Current
    Payables $          x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
    Due to other funds             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Due to other governments             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
    Current portion of long-term
     liabilities             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Payable from restricted assets
     Payables             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
     Long-term liabilities             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx 
  Long-term liabilities
    Bonds payable             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx              x,xxx,xxx
    Other long-term             x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx

    Total Liabilities $          x,xxx,xxx $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx

Net Assets
  Invested in capital assets, net of
   related debt $          x,xxx,xxx $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
  Restricted             x,xxx,xxx               x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
  Unrestricted             x,xxx,xxx            x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx

      Total Net Assets $          x,xxx,xxx $         x,xxx,xxx  $       x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
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A Summary of Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 200__

                               Enterprise Funds                                    Internal
     Nonmajor        Services

        Landfill               Funds                Total                  Funds       

Operating Revenues $         x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx 

Operating Expenses
  Costs of sales and services $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx
  Administration            x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Depreciation            x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx  

      Total Operating Expenses $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx 

Operating income (loss) $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx 

Nonoperating Revenues
 (Expenses)
  Intergovernmental $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $       x,xxx,xxx
  Investment earnings            x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx          x,xxx,xxx
  Interest expense           (x,xxx,xxx)          (x,xxx,xxx)          (x,xxx,xxx)         (x,xxx,xxx)

    Total Nonoperating
     Revenues (Expenses) $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx 

Income before contributions
 and transfers $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx 

Capital contributions $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx
Transfers in            x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx            x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx
Transfers out            x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx            x,xxx,xxx           x,xxx,xxx 

      Change in Net Assets $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx $         x,xxx,xxx $        x,xxx,xxx 
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A Summary of Fiduciary Funds Net Assets and Changes in Net Assets
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 200__

    Private-
  Investment     Purpose     Agency
 Trust Funds  Trust Funds       Funds     

Assets $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx

Liabilities $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx

      Net Assets Held for Others $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx

Additions to Net Assets
  Contributions $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx
  Trust deposits      x,xxx,xxx      x,xxx,xxx
  Investment earnings (net)      x,xxx,xxx      x,xxx,xxx

    Total Additions $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx

Deductions to Net Assets
  Distributions to members $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx
  Trust payments      x,xxx,xxx      x,xxx,xxx

    Total Deductions $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx

      Net Change in Net Assets $   x,xxx,xxx $   x,xxx,xxx
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Major Recipients of Minnesota County Expenditures

The following is a list of the recipients of Minnesota County expenditures totaling $5,000 or more
during 200__.  The list does not include salaries paid to county employees nor does it include
individuals who received federal, state, or county human services aid.

                          Name of Recipient                                 Total Amount Received During 200__  

                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                            

Summary Statements
Explanations and Clarifications

For Minnesota County’s Financial Statements

County officials are strongly encouraged to add a section to the summary of the
county’s financial information that further explains any significant shifts in the
county’s financial situation over the past two-year period.  For example, if the county
issued bonds to finance the construction or renovation of a county building, county
officials may want to discuss the need for the capital improvement and describe how
the sale of the bonds has impacted the county’s financial situation.  County officials
may also want to use this section of the summary to discuss other factors that may
impact the county’s financial situation, or other issues of interest to county residents.
Other factors and issues that county officials may want to address include:

S a summary of the condition of the local economy;
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S economic trends relative to significant industries upon which the local economy may
be dependent;

S current and future projects upon which the county is focused, including a discussion
of the goals and objectives of those projects;

S significant accomplishments of county government over the past year; and

S reasons for significant changes in revenues or expenditures or budget variances.
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SUBJECT:

Preliminary Budget Preparation

DISCUSSION:

In order to allow county boards to determine the county levy requirements and approve an
annual operating budget, it is necessary for the county financial officer to gather and present
sufficient fiscal information so that informed decisions can be made. 

Most counties have developed an internal procedure for aggregating estimated revenue and
expenditure data from each operating department.  The degree of formality of this process is
often related to the size of a county.  However, regardless of the approach utilized by each
county, sufficient data should be gathered and analyzed which will ensure the continuing
operation of county government without creating fund balances in excess of current needs.

In this process, it is recognized that the actual realization of non-county revenues is, at times,
subject to change from the estimates and that these changes are outside of county control.
Nevertheless, it is the responsibility of the county financial officer and the county
commissioners to develop the best possible levy requirement calculations which will allow the
county to function appropriately without placing unnecessary fiscal burdens on its taxpayers.

PROCEDURE:

The preliminary budget process should be conducted with the active participation of all
individuals who are responsible for managing operating budgets.  This would include
department heads and program managers.  With their involvement, a county should be able to
build a higher level of accountability among its administrators.

Certain information should be prepared prior to commencing the budget process.  This
includes:
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1. A Budget Timetable

The purpose of the timetable is to make all parties who are involved in the budget
process aware of the deadlines that must be met, in each step of the process, so that the
county property tax levy can be established and the budget can be reviewed and adopted
by the county board within an appropriate time frame.

2. Budget Guidelines

The county financial officer, with guidance from the county board, should develop the
budget preparation rules that each department must follow so that the total budget will
fall within acceptable predetermined parameters.  These usually include guidelines
related to:

• Salaries and promotions,

• Operating expenditures/expenses, and

• Capital outlay.

Guidelines should also indicate appropriate justification for:

• New services,

• Capital expenditures, and

• New positions.

3. Budget Preparation Forms

The technical job of preparing the budget should be made as simple as possible for
department heads.  They can then spend maximum budget preparation effort responding
to the needs of their department (within the guideline parameters) and not on routine
clerical preparation work.
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Well-thought-out budget forms that initially include the historical data needed in the
budget process will be very helpful.  The County’s automated financial systems will
often have the capability of producing these budget appropriation forms, with the
appropriate historical financial information, as a by-product of the accounting process.
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SUBJECT:

Annual Operating Budget

PURPOSE:

To identify the steps required to prepare an annual operating budget.

DISCUSSION:

An annual operating budget must be prepared and adopted for each fiscal year to authorize and
control the financial operations of each county fund.  Generally, budgets are prepared on a
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis.  However, counties can prepare
budgets on a cash, modified accrual, accrual, or some other budgetary basis of accounting.
Additional disclosures are required when the budgetary basis is different from GAAP. 

A budget is a plan of financial operation which estimates the proposed operating expenditures
for the coming fiscal year and the proposed means of financing them.  The adopted budget
should be integrated with the accounting system of the county to provide a workable system
of budgetary accounting and control.

Counties should adopt appropriate budget policies, which would include when the budgets can
be modified by management, which funds require budgets, the legal level of control, and which
budget modifications require board approval.

COMPONENTS:

The annual operating budget should provide sufficient information so that all interested parties
can make informed judgments regarding the financial position and the flow of financial
resources of county government.  To accomplish this, the annual budget should contain the
following:

1. A Recapitulation of the Budget by Fund

This statement would contain the anticipated revenues by source, the anticipated
expenditures by major categories, and the resultant fund balances.
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2. Budget Detail by Department or the Legal Level of Control

This would show the portions of the anticipated revenues which have been appropriated
to the various departments within the county.  This information would be the basic data
from which ongoing budget/expenditure reports would be prepared.

3. Budget Amendment Report

A schedule that provides the original adopted budgets for each fund and any approved
budget amendments that have changed the budget during the fiscal year.  This
information is needed for the financial reporting requirements for budgetary
presentations.
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SUBJECT:

Utilizing the Budget as a Management Tool

PURPOSE:

To discuss an approach to managing the affairs of a county through periodic analysis of
expenditures (and encumbrances where appropriate) against budgets.

DISCUSSION:

As counties start utilizing additional dimensions within the Uniform Chart of Accounts, they
will have the capability of breaking their budgets down to the respective areas of responsibility
within the county.  As this occurs, it will allow county management to develop levels of
accountability in the following areas:

N Fiscal Accountability

This refers to “living within the budget.”  Good fiscal management requires an analysis
of spending within the respective areas of responsibility to determine whether the rate of
spending is “reasonable.”  Monthly budget/expenditure reporting will allow fiscal
administrators to recommend appropriate action to the county board regarding modifying
budgets or reallocating financial resources.

N Program Accountability

The departmental or area-of-responsibility budget preparation process can, in time, be
combined with statements of measurable accomplishment.  While this manual has
emphasized the need for good accounting practices, that is not an end in itself.  Rather,
there must be awareness that the budgeting and accounting system can also serve as a
management component to assist county boards in evaluating the level of performance
within each area of responsibility within a county.

This accountability serves as the basis for using the budget as a tool for governing.  The budget
can be used as a tool in a number of ways:



SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4430

Budgeting (Continued) Page 2

August 2003

Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

N Policy Tool

The budget format, presentation, and even wording of a document all influence the
making of public policy.  A budget that explicitly reveals trade-offs can help ensure the
making of policy--rather than the obscuring of policy--is the primary focus.

N Management Tool

A budget is a plan of financial activity for a specified period of time, usually a fiscal year,
indicating all planned revenues and expenditures for the budget period.  It provides a
mechanism to allocate resources.  Budgeting helps board members set goals and
priorities.  Department heads and program managers can use the budget in improving
organizational performance.

N Communication Tool

The budget is a means to communicate changes in priorities and the board’s rationale for
decisions.  The budget document and process can be an effective tool for informing
citizens the need for change and the reasons behind policy decisions.
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SUBJECT:

Annual Summary Budget Publication and Reporting

PURPOSE:

To identify the requirements to publish the annual budget and report to the Office of the State
Auditor.

DISCUSSION:

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 275.03, counties are required to prepare an itemized budget for the
ensuing fiscal year.  Once adopted, Minnesota statutes also require some additional reporting
requirements for certain summarized budget information.  Minn. Stat. § 375.169 requires the
publication of summary budget information and Minn. Stat. § 6.745 requires that counties
submit summary budget data to the Office of the State Auditor.  The following sections further
discuss these budget reporting requirements.

PRACTICES:

Budget Statement Publication

Minnesota statutes impose certain publication requirements for each county’s legally adopted
budget.  Minn. Stat. § 375.169, Publication of Summary Budget Statement, states the
following:

Annually, upon adoption of the county budget, the county board shall cause
a summary budget statement to be published in the official newspaper of the
county, or if there is none, in a qualified newspaper of general circulation in
the county.  The statement shall contain information relating to anticipated
revenues and expenditures in a form prescribed by the state auditor.  The
form prescribed shall be designed so that comparisons can be made between
the current year and the budget year.  A note shall be included that the
complete budget is available for public inspection at a designated location
within the county. 
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The summary budget statement for publication to the public should, at a minimum, include the
general and special revenue funds.  The county may wish to include budget information for
debt service, capital projects, permanent, enterprise, and internal services funds in the summary
budget statement for publication.  However, information for governmental and proprietary fund
types should not be aggregated together.

Each county should include a note on the summary statement that informs the readers that a
complete budget is available for public inspection at a designated location within the county.
The complete budget, along with supporting documentation, should be held open for public
inspection during normal business hours at the county’s main office.  If feasible, county
libraries and other public buildings could also be used as sites for inspection of the adopted
budget and supporting documentation.  Suggested wording of the public notice to be included
with the summary budget statement publication is as follows:

The following summary of the operating budget for the 20xx fiscal year for
Minnesota County.  This summary is published in accordance with Minn.
Stat. § 375.169.  The detail of the County budget is on file in the County
Auditor’s office [or other appropriate office] at the Minnesota County
Courthouse, Any City, MN, and may be reviewed during normal business
hours (or state other time and place).

Included with this section, as an appendix, is the format for the summary budget statement for
publication.  The format may change over time, so counties should review the State Auditor’s
website for the most current version of the publication format.

 
Reporting Summary Budget Data to the State Auditor

In addition to publication requirements, counties are required by statute to report budgetary
data to the Office of the State Auditor.  This information helps state policy makers to identify
overall trends in county revenue and spending decisions.  It also can help county officials
compare their own budget trends with the trends of similar counties.  Minn. Stat. § 6.745 states
the following requirements for reporting budget information to the State Auditor:

Subd. 2.  Counties.  Annually, upon adoption of the county budget, the county
board shall forward summary budget information to the office of the state auditor.
The summary budget information shall be provided on forms prescribed by the
state auditor.  The office of the state auditor shall work with representatives of
county government to develop a budget reporting form that conforms with county
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budgeting practices and provides the necessary summary budget information to the
office of the state auditor.  The summary budget data must include separately any
net unrealized gains or losses from investments.  The summary budget data shall
be provided to the office of the state auditor no later than December 31 of the year
preceding each budget year. 

Counties should submit this information on the Office of the State Auditor’s Minnesota County
Summary Budget Form.  County officials are asked to summarize their budget data for all
governmental funds for which annual budgets are approved by the county board, including the
general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital projects, and permanent funds.
Please indicate at the top of the form which funds are included in the summary statement.  A
list of governmental funds excluded from the summary statement should be attached to the
budget reporting form.

In an effort to make this budgetary reporting easier for county officials, counties may now
submit the budget information online.  County personnel can access the online reporting form
by visiting the forms section of the OSA’s website.  The online reporting is available only
through January 31.  After January 31, the paper version of the form is used to collect the
information.  The form and instructions can be downloaded from the website.
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SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4440 Appendix

Budgeting Page 1

Sample County Summary Budget Statement

COUNTY SUMMARY BUDGET STATEMENT

Year 1 Year 2
Current Adopted

Budgeted Governmental Funds        Budget              Budget       

Revenues
  County portion of tax levy                                                    
  State paid portion of tax levy                                                    

    Total Tax Levy                                                    

  Licenses and permits                                                    
  Intergovernmental revenues
    Federal                                                    
    State                                                    
    Other                                                    
  Charges for services                                                    
  Fines and forfeits                                                    
  Investment earnings                                                    
  Contributions and donations                                                    
  Miscellaneous                                                    

    Total Revenues                                                   

Other Sources
  Bonds and other debt issued                                                    
  Budgeted use of available fund balances                                                    
  Transfers in                                                    

    Total Other Sources                                                    

      Total Revenues and Other Sources                                                    
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Year 1 Year 2
Current Adopted

Budgeted Governmental Funds        Budget              Budget       

Expenditures
  General government                                                    
  Public safety                                                    
  Highway and streets                                                    
  Sanitation                                                    
  Human services (welfare)                                                    
  Health                                                    
  Culture and recreation                                                    
  Conservation                                                    
  Debt service                                                    
  Other                                                    
  Capital outlay                                                    

    Total Expenditures                                                    

Other Uses
  Transfers out                                                    
  Other                                                    

    Total Other Uses                                                    

      Total Expenditures and Other Uses                                                    
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SUBJECT:

Petty Cash and Change Fund Accounts

PURPOSE:

To describe a procedure for the creation and management of a petty cash or change fund
account.

DISCUSSION:

This specific practice addresses petty cash and change fund accounts, rather than what are often
mistakenly called “petty cash and change funds.”  Actually, these are general ledger asset
accounts which have the function of reimbursing small purchases without the necessity of
preparing a voucher check or making change.

The amount of currency in a petty cash account is variable, depending on the authorization of
the county board.  However, the intent of such an account is for small, irregular transactions.
For this reason, they generally should be maintained at the lowest practical level--probably
$100.

The primary advantage of a petty cash account is its flexibility; however, because of this
flexibility, special care should be exercised in its creation and maintenance.  The county
administrators for whom the account is created are directly responsible for monies under their
control.  The county finance officer should, however, make certain that proper cash handling
procedures are known and, to the extent possible, should see that such procedures are followed
by all county officials and employees.

A change fund’s sole purpose is for making change for customers doing business with the
different county offices.  The change fund accounts also are established by the county board.
The amount of the account depends on the nature, size, and frequency of transactions within
a particular county office.  Change fund accounts should not be used for making purchases.
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PROCEDURES:

1. Creating the Petty Cash or Change Fund Account

a. The county board must authorize each petty cash or change fund account pursuant
to the applicable Minnesota statute.  Any change in the authorized amount also
must be approved by the county board.

b. Designate a responsible officer, cashier, or specially designated deputy who will
be the custodian responsible for the account.  This custodian should be independent
of invoice processing, check signing, general accounting, and cash receipt
functions.  

When it is not practical to hire additional personnel or to reallocate duties among
existing employees, the county board must establish some mechanism of review
that accomplishes the objectives of the segregation of duties.  For example,
periodic monitoring of cash receipts and/or independent performance of an account
reconciliation add controls when complete segregation of duties is not possible.

c. Issue and turn over a check for the amount authorized to the individual responsible
for the account. The custodian should in return give a receipt for the amount to the
disbursing agent.

d. The custodian should place the petty cash or change fund in a secured location.

e. Notify all employees who might make use of the petty cash account.

• Describe what type of transaction will be honored,

• Indicate the maximum amount that will be allowed for any single transaction,

• Identify the supporting documentation needed for reimbursement, and

• Describe who must approve transactions.

f. Whenever an individual’s appointment as custodian is terminated, the fund must
be replenished and the imprest account turned over to their replacement or other
appropriate official.
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2. Disbursements from Petty Cash

a. Prior to requesting reimbursement for a petty cash purchase, the employee making
the request should:

• Prepare a petty cash voucher (in ink) as evidence of the transaction,

• Attach an appropriate receipt to the voucher, and

• Have the transaction approved.

b. Upon receiving a request for reimbursement from the petty cash account, the petty
cash custodian should:

• Compare the voucher with attached sales receipt and other documentation to
ensure accuracy and appropriateness of the disbursement;

• Check to see that voucher is completed in ink;

• Verify approval signature;

• If voucher is satisfactory, pay the approved petty cash amount; and

• Place petty cash vouchers and documentation in the petty cash drawer.

c. When cash in the account has been reduced to the point that routine transactions
cannot be met, a claim is prepared (see step 4), which itemizes the various
disbursements and which is presented to the county board.  The county board will
act upon this claim as it does other claims and will approve or disapprove
replenishment of this account.

3. Control of Petty Cash or Change Accounts

a. The account should be maintained at a single, secured location and at the lowest
reasonable level.

b. Petty cash should be replenished only after following the verification and approval
procedures outlined below.
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c. Under no circumstances should the petty cash account be commingled with
personal funds of a county official or employee, nor should they be used to make
advances to officials or employees, even if secured by check or other I.O.U.’s.
Entities should not cash checks out of (from) cash receipts because this destroys the
intactness of deposits.

d. Receipts from vending machines and other miscellaneous services should be
recorded and deposited like other revenue.  These amounts should not be
commingled with petty cash.  While collections typically will be commingled with
change funds, the deposit of these collections must be made intact and the
composition of checks and cash must match the mode of payment for those
collections.

e. Unannounced reconciliations of petty cash or change accounts by independent
personnel should be made on a non-regular basis to ensure the integrity of each
such account.

4. Replenishing Petty Cash

When petty cash requires replenishment, the custodian of the account should:

a. Total all petty cash vouchers on adding machine tape.

b. Add remaining cash and determine if total of cash and vouchers is equal to the total
of the petty cash account.  If there is a discrepancy, it should be reviewed with the
county finance officer for settlement of discrepancies.

c. Submit the reconciled petty cash report as a reimbursement request to the county
board.

Accounting Procedures

1. After reimbursement has been approved by the county board, checks should be drawn to
replenish each petty cash account.

2. The amount of each disbursement should be recorded as a normal cash disbursement to
the appropriate account.
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3. No additional entry is required to the petty cash account after its creation, except if it is
to be increased, decreased, or closed.

4. The county board or finance officer should make sure the authorized amounts for petty
cash and change accounts are included in the general ledger and related balance sheet in
the appropriate fund.

5. Petty cash should always be replenished at the end of the fiscal year so that expenses will
be reflected in the proper accounting period.

APPLICABLE MINNESOTA STATUTES:

§ 375.162 Imprest cash funds. 
 

Subdivision 1.  Procedure.  The county board may establish one or more imprest funds for the payment in cash
of any proper claim against the county which it is impractical to pay in any other manner.  No claim for salary
or personal expenses of a county officer or employee shall be paid from an imprest fund.  The county board shall
appoint a custodian of each imprest fund who shall be responsible for its safekeeping and disbursement according
to law.  Money for the operation of an imprest fund shall be secured by a warrant issued on the general revenue
fund.  A claim itemizing all the various demands for which disbursements have been made from the fund shall
be presented to the county board at the next county board meeting after the month in which the disbursements
have been made.  The county board shall act upon it as in the case of other claims and a warrant shall be issued
to the custodian for the amount allowed. The custodian shall use the proceeds of the warrant to replenish the
fund, and if the county board fails to approve the claim in full for any sufficient reason, the custodian shall be
personally responsible for the difference. 

Subd. 2.  For travel.  The county board may authorize an imprest fund for the purpose of advancing money to
officers or employees to pay their actual and necessary expenses in attending meetings outside the county or for
other travel that is related to the performance of their job duties.  The county board shall appoint a custodian of
the fund who shall be responsible for its safekeeping and disbursement according to law.  Attendance at meetings
and other travel outside the county shall be authorized in advance by the county board.  At a meeting of the
county board in the month after approved travel outside the county, the officer or employee shall submit an
itemized claim for the actual and necessary expenses incurred and paid related to the approved travel.  The county
board shall act upon it as in the case of other claims and a warrant shall be issued to the officer or employee for
the amount allowed.  The officer or employee shall use the proceeds of the warrant to repay the amount advanced
from the fund.  If the amount approved by the county board is insufficient to repay the advance, the officer or
employee shall be personally responsible for the difference.
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§ 375.45 Change funds, establishment. 

The county board shall establish funds in the county offices and departments as it deems necessary for the
purpose of making change only.  The change funds shall be established by making an appropriation for them from
the proper fund in whatever amounts the county board shall determine.  The officer receiving a change fund shall
be its custodian and responsible for its safekeeping and use.  The change fund shall not be used to make payments
of expenses provided for in section 375.16.
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SUBJECT:

Bank Account Reconciliation

PURPOSE:

To verify that the actual cash balance on deposit with financial institutions, including checking
and savings accounts, agrees to the accounting records.

OVERVIEW:

County checking and savings accounts are principal financial resources used in daily financial
operations.  Most county transactions occur within these accounts and generally on a daily
basis.  It is important that the county compare the transactions and amounts that the financial
institution has recorded in the checking and savings accounts with what the county has
recorded in the county’s books and records.  The process of comparing these amounts is
referred to as a bank reconciliation.   Differences between the amounts usually occur due to
timing.  Generally, there can be delays between when a county transaction that is recorded in
its accounts and when the transaction “clears” the bank account.  “Clears” means the
transaction has been recognized and recorded by the bank.  Because errors may occur (some
due to mistakes in recording and others made by the financial institution), prompt monthly
reconciliations between the accounts (bank statements) and the books/accounts maintained by
the county are necessary.  The reconciliation can determine whether errors have occurred or
if the differences are normal uncleared/outstanding items.  If errors are found, they should be
investigated and corrected without delay before monthly statements of operations are prepared.

To ensure internal control and segregation of duties, the task of reconciling should be assigned
to someone not responsible for writing, recording, or signing checks.  The unopened account
statement and all supporting documentation should be received by the person reconciling the
account.  After the completion of reconciliation, it should be approved by the appropriate
official, such as the finance officer or auditor-treasurer.  Many financial institutions provide
different account reconciliation services, which could lessen the burden on staff; however, the
work provided still should be reviewed by county staff.  In counties where there is limited staff
and adequate segregation of duties is a concern, senior management or board members should
review the bank reconciliation as a means of mitigating this internal control weakness.   
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The financial institution must return all redeemed canceled checks to the county.  The county
should retain these documents for six years after the year they originated.  The reasons for
receiving the canceled checks are:

C It is an important internal control.  County staff could detect many fraudulent
disbursements by reviewing the front and back of all redeemed checks.

C As an original document, the checks are an integral part of the audit trail for
disbursement transactions.  It is important for both appropriate county staff and external
auditors to have access to original source documents.

PROCEDURES:

The following are the steps involved in reconciling a bank account:

1. Compare canceled checks, electronic funds transfers, debit memos, and credit memos
with corresponding entries on the bank statement.

2. Compare deposits recorded by the bank with deposits entered in the county books and
evidenced by bank deposit slips.

3. Sort checks in numerical sequence and sort other items in date sequence.  It can be useful
to separate returned checks between those issued in the current month from those issued
previous to the current month.

4. List any deposits recorded in the county books that were not included on the bank
statement.  (Most often these occur with deposits made at the end of the month and are
known as “deposits in transit.”)

5. Note on the previous month’s reconciliation any canceled checks returned with the
current statement and compare check numbers, amounts, and endorsements.  These
checks should be on the outstanding check list of the previous month’s reconciliation.

6. Compare payee name, endorsement, check number, and amount with the check register
or disbursements journal for the checks issued during the current month.  Note all items
in the register and investigate any discrepancies.  (In addition to errors, this is a means
of identifying fraudulent or altered checks.)
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7. Determine that all returned checks, debit memos, and service charges are entered in the
disbursements journal.

8. List the outstanding (uncleared) checks at the end of the month:

a. First, list the checks issued from the prior month’s reconciliation that have still not
cleared the bank account.

b. Then, list checks issued during the current month that are shown to be outstanding
in the check register or other record.

9. Prepare a bank reconciliation form and determine if county books balance to the bank
statement.

a. Name of bank,

b. Account number,

c. Date of bank statement,

d. Ending balance as shown by bank statement,

e. Date and amount of each deposit not recorded by bank,

f. Explanation and amount of any errors made by bank which will increase the
balance,

g. Subtotal of amounts listed above, and

h. Outstanding checks at end of period as shown by list developed in Step 10 below.

10. Explain any errors by the bank which will decrease the balance.



SPECIFIC PRACTICES 4520

Cash Management (Continued) Page 4

August 2003

Minnesota County Financial Accounting & Reporting Standards

11. If the balances do not agree, an error has been made in one of three ways:

a. A mistake in the process of reconciling the balances,

b. An incorrect entry by the county, or

c. An incorrect entry by the bank.

Re-check all work step by step.  Find the errors, if any, and correct them.  Often, errors
by the financial institution are found and corrected.  This should result in offsetting
entries on the bank statement, and these items should be matched.  If no errors were
made in the reconciliation process, review all entries by the bank and on county books
for discrepancies.  Note the discrepancies for action by the finance officer on a separate
page and attach it to the reconciliation form.

12. Enter the name of person who reconciled the account and the date completed on the
bottom of the form.

13. Forward the reconciliation and bank statement (along with canceled checks, deposit slips,
and any notes on errors) to the finance officer for review and action.

14. Advise the finance officer of any needed corrections.

15. The finance officer should approve the reconciliation form and file it in a secure place.

16. After the monthly reconciliation is complete, determine if any checks outstanding over
a month have been outstanding long enough to be subject to escheat (unclaimed property)
law (reversion of unclaimed amounts to the county).  

17. Prepare a list of checks subject to escheat and advise claimants (based on county policy)
and, if possible, of the potential reversion of the amount.

18. After the appropriate procedure or time period, and at the direction of the finance officer,
notify the bank and follow the requirements of the unclaimed property laws.

Often, the bank reconciliation can be performed using the computer system.  In these cases,
some of the above steps can be made using the computer, such as identifying cleared and
uncleared items.  The calculations and reports can then be done by the computer.
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SUBJECT:

Monitoring Cash Balances

PURPOSE:

To provide a regular means of monitoring cash balances in each official depository and
identifying how to optimize this resource.

OVERVIEW:

Because county receipts seldom correspond to disbursements which must be made, there may
at times be large amounts of idle funds, while at other times there may scarcely be enough
funds to cover current needs.  For these reasons, all counties will find it useful to monitor
balances in county depositories and plan for regular investment of idle funds.  With online
banking and computers, the ability to monitor cash balances has greatly improved.  The
practice of monitoring cash balances should become a regular procedure done even daily if
balances change significantly.  The following procedures provide examples of how this process
can be accomplished routinely.

For smaller counties, a cash balance report should be prepared weekly.  In larger counties,
where there is a high volume of transactions, a daily cash balance report with the same general
format may be desirable.  When daily cash balances are abnormally high, smaller counties may
elect to complete the report daily to quickly know what balances are available for immediate
investment. 

 
PROCEDURES:

Determining Cash Balances

1. Assemble the following information:

a. Book balances by bank,

b. Total deposits since the previous report, and

c. Total checks issued since the previous report.
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2. Compute new cash balances for each depository:

a. Enter the previous day’s closing balance for each fund and for the bank in
total;

b. Enter all deposits made since compiling the previous report;

c. Enter any other adjustments which might increase cash in accounts and
subtotal all items 2a to 2c;

d. Enter the total amount for all checks issued since compiling the last report;

e. Enter any other adjustments which might decrease bank cash;

f. Deduct the amounts computed in 2d and 2e from the subtotal derived in 2c;

g. Compute the amount in bank time deposits for each fund; and

h. Compute the balance for the bank.

3. Repeat this procedure on a daily or weekly basis.

DISCUSSION:

Investing Cash Balances

All idle county funds not needed in the immediate future (even one day away) can be
invested to increase county revenues at minimum cost or risk.  In the larger counties,
hundreds of dollars can probably be earned each day; in smaller counties, investing the
large periodic tax receipts each day can provide the same level of earnings.   In1

Minnesota, qualified investments are established by Minn. Stat. §§ 118A.04 and
118A.05, and include time deposits, U.S. and U.S. agency securities, repurchase
agreements, certain state and local government securities, certain types of mutual funds
whose only investments are in securities described above, in any securities which are a
general obligation of the State of Minnesota or any of its municipalities, or in commercial
paper issued by United States corporations, or their Canadian subsidiaries that is of the
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highest quality and mature in 270 days or less.  This is only a partial list of legal
investments and, when investing, the county should review the requirements of Minn.
Stat. ch. 118A.

To make adequate use of idle cash, an accurate forecast of all cash sources and cash
requirements should be prepared and closely monitored.  Key elements include a
historical revenue and expense analysis (a total cash flow forecast) and other forecasted
large and smaller receipts or disbursements:  other maturing investments, sale of county
assets, receipt of state and federal funds, or payrolls, debt retirement, and knowledge of
upcoming other unusually large payments.

A great deal of current literature on local government finance exists.  Many fine cash
management systems have been described.  They enable finance officers to plan cash
requirements, monitor available funds and investments, and properly staff the function
at minimum cost.
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SUBJECT:

Electronic Funds Transfer

PURPOSE:

To provide guidance on establishing policies to control and monitor electronic funds
transfers.

OVERVIEW:

The electronic funds transfer (EFT) is the deposit to or disbursement from a financial
institution account by means of wire or other electronic communication.  Minn. Stat.
§ 385.071 governs the circumstances under which electronic funds transfers may be used.
The statute states the following:

Electronic funds transfer is the process of value exchange via mechanical
means without the use of checks, drafts, or similar negotiable instruments.
Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, a county may make electronic
funds transfers for investment purposes and for all county expenditures. The
county board shall establish policies and procedures for investment and
expenditure transactions via electronic funds transfer.  

We prescribe the following accounting procedures:

1. Receiving money by EFT:

a. Prepare a treasurer’s receipt upon receiving notice from the payor that the
funds have been transferred to your financial account.  The county should not
wait for the financial institution to notify you of receipt of the funds.
However, you may want to contact your financial institution to confirm the
expected funds have arrived.
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Enter the following information on the receipt:

C Date of receipt

C Name of person, company, or agency transferring money into your
account.

C Name and number of fund(s).

C COFARS account number.

C Notation that funds were received by EFT.

b. A file must be maintained of those payors who have agreed in writing to
receipt funds to your account electronically.

2. Disbursing money by EFT:

a. Prepare a record which shows:

C Chronological number of the EFT payment.

C Time and date of disbursement.

C Payee - name, address, and account number.

C Amount of disbursement.

C Purpose of disbursement.

C COFARS account number.

C Name and number of fund(s).
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C Disbursing bank’s unique transaction identification number, if
available.

C Receiving bank or financial institution's identification number.

b. A file must be maintained of authorizations signed by payees who have
thereby agreed to have funds disbursed to their accounts electronically.

c. The treasurer should notify the disbursing bank that access to files, records,
and documentation of all EFT transactions involving tile treasurer should be
provided to the State Auditor when required for the conduct of the statutory
post audit.
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SUBJECT:

Use of Credit Cards

PURPOSE:

To provide guidance on establishing policies to control and monitor the use of credit cards.

DISCUSSION:

Minn. Stat. § 375.171 authorizes counties to make purchases with credit cards.  The law also
places restrictions on the use of the credit cards.  The statute states the following:

A county board may authorize the use of a credit card by any county
officer or employee otherwise authorized to make a purchase on
behalf of the county.  If a county officer or employee makes a
purchase by credit card that is not approved by the county board, the
officer or employee is personally liable for the amount of the
purchase.  A purchase by credit card must otherwise comply with all
statutes, rules, or county policy applicable to county purchases. 

As noted above, the statute both authorizes the use and places restrictions on how credit
cards may be used.  The use of a credit is restricted to purchases for the county.  Pursuant to
the language of the statute, county credit cards should be used only by those employees and
officers of the county otherwise authorized to make county purchases.

Since use of the credit card is restricted to purchases for the county, no personal use is
permitted.  The statute further provides that if officers and employees make purchases for the
county that are not authorized by the county board, they become personally liable for the
amount of the purchase.  

Minn. Stat. § 375.171 further requires that the use of a credit card must be consistent with
other state law.  For example, Minn. Stat. § 471.38 requires that claims presented for
payment be in writing and itemized.  Bills received from a credit card company lack
sufficient detail to comply with these statutory sections.  Therefore, counties must also have
the invoices and receipts, from the actual purchases, needed to support the items charged in
the bill from the credit card company.
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In addition to the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 471.38, Minn. Stat. § 375.12 requires
publication of county board minutes, including claims allowed by the board.  Considered
together, these statutes require counties to publish a list of payments to those vendors
providing goods and services to the county.  Listing only the credit card company would
merely identify the method of payment.  It would not identify the vendors providing goods
and services to the county.  Therefore, it is the Office of the State Auditor’s position that if
a county published only the identity of the credit card company rather than the vendors, the
county would not be in compliance with Minn. Stat. §§ 375.12 and 471.38.

Further, the use of credit cards would require the county to act in compliance with Minnesota
chapter 475.  This statutory chapter governs the issuance of debt by public entities and a
number of restrictions attached to the issuance of any obligation.  Minn. Stat. § 375.171 is
not intended to be another method of creating debt for the county, but rather authorizes
another type of payment method.  Therefore, it is incumbent on counties to adopt a policy
of paying the total amount of credit card charges on the monthly credit card bill.  The statute
does not authorize the creation of a new form of debt for the counties.

 
PRACTICES:

A comprehensive credit card use policy should be adopted that implements statutory
requirements, good management practices, and internal controls.  A comprehensive policy
should:

C Identify the employees and officers who are authorized to make purchases on behalf
of the county and are eligible to use the card,

C Identify the particular purchases that are to be made with the credit card,

C Set up a review process for all purchases made with the credit card,

C Prohibit the use of a county credit card for personal purchases,

C Require supporting documentation for each purchase made, and

C Inform the users of the credit cards of these policy requirements.
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The county also should restrict the total amount of charges that can be made on the county
credit cards.  This will help limit the county’s exposure to theft or other improper use of the
county credit card.

The ability to use a credit card for small purchases in the ordinary course of business may be
advantageous to the county.  However, the ability of a card holder to make the county liable
for an improper or illegal purchase is an inherent risk associated with the use of credit cards.
Compliance with the requirements of the statute and the adoption and adherence to a policy
implementing further internal controls will greatly reduce the county’s exposure to loss of
public funds through theft or misuse of a county credit card.
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